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·1· · · · · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on Thursday, August 10,

·2· ·2023, at 2:01 p.m., before Michelle D. Elam, Certified

·3· ·Court Reporter, RPR, the following Prehearing

·4· ·Conference #5, was held, to wit:

·5

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · ·<<<<<< >>>>>>

·7

·8· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.· Good afternoon,

·9· ·everyone.· This is Judge Torem for the Final Prehearing

10· ·Conference No. 5 in the Scout Clean Energy application

11· ·for the Horse Heaven Wind Farm.

12· · · · · · Let me take a look first if we have someone from

13· ·the applicant today.

14· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Your Honor, Tim McMahan here,

15· ·along with Ariel Stavitsky and Emily Schimelpfenig.

16· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you,

17· ·Mr. McMahan.

18· · · · · · For Benton County today?

19· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Ken Harper, Your Honor.

20· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Good afternoon, Mr. Harper.

21· · · · · · Counsel for the environment joining us today?

22· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes.· Sarah Reyneveld is here.

23· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I hope everything is safe where

24· ·you are, Ms. Reyneveld.

25· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· We are just --



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· For the Yakama --

·2· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· So thank you.· Yeah, we just now

·3· ·have food and electricity.· It's been pretty devastating

·4· ·over here.

·5· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I understand that Maui is not a

·6· ·fun place right now.· So stay safe.· Thank you very, very

·7· ·much for making time to join us today.

·8· · · · · · For the Yakama Nation?

·9· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Good afternoon, Your Honor.

10· ·Shona Voelckers for the Yakama Nation.· And I believe my

11· ·colleagues Mr. Jones and Ms. Houston are on as well.

12· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Excellent.· Thank you,

13· ·Ms. Voelckers.

14· · · · · · And, Mr. Aramburu, are you there for Tri-Cities

15· ·C.A.R.E.S?

16· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I am.

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

18· · · · · · Any other EFSEC staff want to identify or need

19· ·to participate today?

20· · · · · · I know we have Ms. Grantham and our court

21· ·reporter today.

22· · · · · · Mr. Thompson, are you on?

23· · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· I am on, yes.· I don't need to

24· ·participate.

25· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · I hope not.

·2· · · · · · All right.· Let's move on to the agenda items,

·3· ·and I think we'll talk about further refinements and the

·4· ·adjudicative hearing schedule that the applicant's center

·5· ·around today.

·6· · · · · · Mr. Aramburu, I did get your note, and I just

·7· ·sent some suggestions about Mr. Simon.

·8· · · · · · So it looks like we have our land use topics all

·9· ·down to one-plus days.

10· · · · · · Mr. Aramburu?

11· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· When you're ready to talk about

12· ·Mr. Simon, let me know.

13· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I will.

14· · · · · · Let me see what the first day's schedule truly

15· ·looks like here.

16· · · · · · We've got our housekeeping built into every day

17· ·in the morning.· There will be some days we don't need

18· ·it, so that may also affect, particularly Wednesday,

19· ·depending what we think about Mr. Simon's availability.

20· · · · · · I'm taking a look at where we are on the land

21· ·use schedule there, and I think when we had talked last

22· ·time, there was a question of Ms. McClain being recalled

23· ·for other topics.

24· · · · · · Mr. McMahan, did we sort that out or was it

25· ·Ms. Ragsdale?



·1· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· (Inaudible) -- discussion about

·2· ·Ms. Ragsdale, but as to Ms. McClain, the issue there was

·3· ·the question of site retirement and that hadn't been

·4· ·something that we had originally thought about within the

·5· ·first day land use.· But I think we can pick that up, to

·6· ·the extent she has knowledge about the site restoration

·7· ·issues.· I think we can pick that up on Monday.

·8· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· So it looks like we built

·9· ·in time for her before and after lunch.

10· · · · · · The estimates look doable.· And I'm wondering if

11· ·anybody thinks there's any squeak time on Monday late

12· ·afternoon that we might fit in Mr. Simon, or my

13· ·preference, as I sent in the email just a moment ago,

14· ·some point on Wednesday, whether that's during our

15· ·housekeeping session or if we actually do end at 11:30,

16· ·the meeting for the afternoon is not scheduled until

17· ·1:30.· So we might be able to fill in a half an hour at

18· ·that point.

19· · · · · · Mr. Aramburu, let me turn to you right now to

20· ·see where Mr. Simon might get rescheduled, if it really

21· ·is only 45 to 50 minutes.

22· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Well, thank you, Judge Torem.

23· · · · · · I do want to present a preliminary issue related

24· ·to the entirety of the hearing schedule.

25· · · · · · We received just yesterday a brief from the



·1· ·applicant.· And in that brief, it included some

·2· ·significant additional materials that were referenced for

·3· ·review by the council.

·4· · · · · · These materials, though found in brief, were

·5· ·never provided -- were not provided to us with the brief.

·6· ·And it was only when Ms. Voelckers requested them that we

·7· ·received them.· Included in that is material from

·8· ·Mr. Kobus concerning the water issues.

·9· · · · · · Mr. Examiner, these are significant new matters,

10· ·material changes in the project, material changes in

11· ·analysis that have been received literally an hour before

12· ·our final prehearing conference.

13· · · · · · We think that's plainly violative of standards

14· ·of ethics, violative of standards of due process that

15· ·we -- that these -- we were treated to these surprises at

16· ·the -- just before the hearing starts and also with no

17· ·particular explanation of how this material is going to

18· ·be given to the council itself.

19· · · · · · We also have outstanding, our objection to the

20· ·substance of the supplement to the Kobus deposition.· We

21· ·do not have rulings on witnesses as well.

22· · · · · · So we think that because of this significant

23· ·late-filed material, without notice and without notice it

24· ·was coming, that a continuance is in order for at least a

25· ·month to allow us to review this new material that has



·1· ·just arrived today.

·2· · · · · · To do other -- to proceed without this

·3· ·continuance is to essentially have a hearing by ambush,

·4· ·by which additional material is submitted by the

·5· ·applicant, who knows how often, keeping everybody

·6· ·off-balance and off-guard.

·7· · · · · · The memo that we received this morning, which is

·8· ·referenced in the brief, which is particularly important

·9· ·for this and apparently is expected to be read by the

10· ·council because it's a part of the brief, deals with

11· ·multiple changes in locations of wind turbines, locations

12· ·of projects shifting the battery operations from one side

13· ·of the project to the other, making changes in a variety

14· ·of things.

15· · · · · · So the totality of this suggests that a

16· ·continuance of at least a month to allow review of this

17· ·material is entirely appropriate.

18· · · · · · And I will point out that this material has all

19· ·been kind of foisted on us by the applicant without

20· ·notice, without indication that it was coming, and

21· ·without indication of how it was going to be treated in

22· ·an evidentiary manner in this prehearing conference.

23· · · · · · So we think that due process compliance would

24· ·rule.· Attention to the public's participation in these

25· ·proceedings indicates that a continuance of at least a



·1· ·month is necessary to review all of this new material.

·2· · · · · · And that would indicate that the prehearing

·3· ·conference today should be canceled and a new one

·4· ·scheduled, based upon a new hearing schedule.

·5· · · · · · So thank you for that.· I hope my motion is

·6· ·clear.

·7· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· It's clear, and it's denied as far

·8· ·as the continuance.· That should be clear as well.

·9· · · · · · Let me turn to the applicant and find out

10· ·exactly what this material was that was shared at

11· ·1:01 p.m. today, according to Ms. Stavitsky's email.

12· · · · · · Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, I'm not sure who

13· ·wants to speak to it.

14· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Yes.

15· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, I would like to make

16· ·sure -- the sound quality coming from the applicant's

17· ·microphone has a little bit of an echo, so if you could

18· ·take it a little slower, the court reporter can still get

19· ·things down.· But I want to be kind to our court

20· ·reporter.

21· · · · · · Go ahead, sir.

22· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Thank you, Your Honor.

23· · · · · · Can you hear me okay?

24· · · · · · Can you hear me --

25· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· That's a little better.



·1· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· That's better.

·2· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I can.· That's a little better.

·3· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I appreciate the time.· Gave me an

·4· ·opportunity to lower my blood pressure down a little bit

·5· ·in the last two minutes.

·6· · · · · · So let me explain what happened here.

·7· · · · · · We have been in a process with EFSEC for a very

·8· ·long time, where EFSEC asks us for data requests.· And we

·9· ·had indicated to EFSEC some time ago that we have

10· ·continued to, as we go, modify the application to address

11· ·things we learn; ways to minimize, mitigate impacts;

12· ·additional information that EFSEC has asked specifically

13· ·of us for their work as they prepared the Final

14· ·Environmental Impact Statement.

15· · · · · · So we did, in fact, accumulate a number of

16· ·issues that we were aware of that EFSEC had asked us for

17· ·in Data Request No. 9.· So we did submit that this week

18· ·in order to be responsive to EFSEC.

19· · · · · · We did cite, in passing -- if I had to again, I

20· ·probably wouldn't have done it, but we did cite in

21· ·passing, reference to the memorandum that we submitted to

22· ·EFSEC.· And I believe there was also -- might have been a

23· ·reference to -- I think it might have been a reference to

24· ·a 2023 updated wildlife report, which also we provide

25· ·regularly to EFSEC, as they ask us for additional



·1· ·information concerning the project.· So that's what we

·2· ·submitted.

·3· · · · · · Now, I and our team here had certainly some

·4· ·sensitivity about doing that prior to moving along with

·5· ·the testimonial process.· Had I to do it again, I

·6· ·probably just wouldn't have put those references in the

·7· ·brief.· But we did it thinking this information will be

·8· ·posted on the EFSEC website and there will be access to

·9· ·it.

10· · · · · · The problem, of course, is that EFSEC takes a

11· ·bit of time to get stuff posted on the website.· So this

12· ·afternoon, we offered to the parties, and Ariel

13· ·circulated to the parties, the memorandum, which was for

14· ·Data Request No. 9 to be submitted to EFSEC staff.

15· · · · · · That's what we did.· It wasn't an ambush.· It

16· ·was what we have done throughout these whole proceedings

17· ·to respond to data requests that we've gotten from EFSEC

18· ·staff.· And our stuff was developed over the years and a

19· ·lot of stuff has developed over the last month.· And so

20· ·EFSEC asked us to accumulate that change information.

21· · · · · · And we could have held off until the

22· ·adjudication was done, which didn't make sense to me.· We

23· ·could have -- and really, we just had the time over the

24· ·last few days to finish it up, the team, the Scout team

25· ·had time to finish it up.



·1· · · · · · There is no untoward motive here.· It was all in

·2· ·an effort to be as transparent and open as possible to

·3· ·provide this information as requested by the council.

·4· · · · · · Yes, it coincided with the starting of the

·5· ·adjudication.· We will, if you want, if you think it

·6· ·best, Judge Torem, we'll reissue the brief taking those

·7· ·citations out of the brief.· I'm happy to do that.· And

·8· ·if there's anything else we can do to address this issue,

·9· ·we're happy to do that.

10· · · · · · It is simply an effort to provide the best

11· ·information at the time it was requested of us by EFSEC

12· ·staff.· Nothing more.· Nothing more conspiratorial than

13· ·that.

14· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Well, Mr. McMahan I appreciate the

15· ·explanation.

16· · · · · · I do see that there's essentially a one-page

17· ·cover letter and a 79-page memo.· It is noted that it's

18· ·responding to the Final Environmental Impact Statement

19· ·that staff is working on and not directly related, other

20· ·than the citations in the brief, to the adjudication.

21· · · · · · Aside from what you've stated and explained,

22· ·Mr. McMahan, was there any attempt to make that evidence

23· ·as part of the hearing?

24· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· A little solemn here, but, no.· In

25· ·fact, we said that; that this -- we did not intend to



·1· ·have this be part of the adjudication hearing.· We

·2· ·recognized that, you know, it's been challenging.

·3· · · · · · So, no, that was not our intention.

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Let me suggest, then, as I

·5· ·haven't got my finger exactly on what page this material

·6· ·is cited to, is it only on one or two pages of the

·7· ·applicant's brief?

·8· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· It is.· Yes, Your Honor.· I think

·9· ·mostly footnotes.· No.· I'm sorry.

10· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Let me have you --

11· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I'm sorry.

12· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Go ahead.

13· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· We're having a mute button

14· ·problem.

15· · · · · · So, yes, aside from -- I think in a couple of

16· ·footnotes in the brief, and we would be happy to take

17· ·those out.

18· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Why don't you do this:· As opposed

19· ·to taking them out, so it's exactly clear to all parties

20· ·on the line, go back in and use the strike-out feature of

21· ·Word.

22· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Sure.

23· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And if that's not helpful, I'm

24· ·sure there's a Sharpie in your office.· Black out that

25· ·material, if you have to do it manually, and resubmit by



·1· ·close of business today.· I'll make sure that staff

·2· ·that's on the phone here is able to let counsel know to

·3· ·use the Version 2 of your brief as opposed to the

·4· ·Version 1.

·5· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And they can -- everybody will see

·7· ·that they are getting this.· It's been stricken.· And

·8· ·these attachments that you sent out today won't be part

·9· ·of the adjudication, but staff will continue to use the

10· ·information supplied to them as part of your response to

11· ·Data Request No. 9.

12· · · · · · So I think we've now taken care of that

13· ·particular issue of any ambush.

14· · · · · · And, again, the continuance request, based on

15· ·that, is denied.

16· · · · · · And now the evidentiary issue is taken care of

17· ·as well.

18· · · · · · Is there anything else --

19· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor?

20· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers, go ahead.

21· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

22· · · · · · Just -- before we move forward, Yakama Nation,

23· ·if I could make my own verbal motion for the record,

24· ·understanding what -- all I have heard.· We have our own

25· ·motion to make, and I think that we should be able to



·1· ·make it on the record.· And I would like to do that

·2· ·before we move forward so that we're not coming back to

·3· ·the same issue.

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Is it in regard to what

·5· ·Mr. Aramburu raised or something different?

·6· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· In regard to what Mr. Aramburu

·7· ·raised.

·8· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I'll let you go ahead and make

·9· ·your motion and then we'll see if there's any additional

10· ·rulings that need to be made.

11· · · · · · Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.

12· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

13· · · · · · The Yakama Nation has its own motion to continue

14· ·the adjudication because of applicant's violation of

15· ·WAC 463-60-116.

16· · · · · · Applicant cited materials in its prehearing

17· ·brief that were not only unavailable to any other party

18· ·but actually also include extremely untimely

19· ·modifications to the project design that is the subject

20· ·of this adjudication, multiple witnesses' testimony, and

21· ·other parties' own prehearing briefs.

22· · · · · · I would respectfully ask that Your Honor review

23· ·the memorandum itself before ruling on our motion because

24· ·this is not simply an issue of striking footnotes.

25· · · · · · Applicant has provided absolutely no



·1· ·justification for its failure to disclose any of this

·2· ·information before this afternoon.· And this proposed

·3· ·project redesign does not fit within what is contemplated

·4· ·under WAC 463-60-116.

·5· · · · · · As Mr. McMahan said, a lot of information has

·6· ·developed, but it's not clear that this information was

·7· ·not developed this week and it is directly relevant to

·8· ·this proceeding.

·9· · · · · · Yakama Nation does not take its motion to

10· ·continue lightly, as we ourselves have been working

11· ·diligently and preparing in good faith.· But is truly

12· ·unworkable to be responding to this level of gamesmanship

13· ·in the midst of brief drafting, witness prep, and hearing

14· ·prep.

15· · · · · · This new information provides a clear --

16· ·presents a clear prejudice to our client, Yakama Nation.

17· ·We have essentially prepared for a hearing on a project

18· ·that is now apparently no longer before the council.

19· · · · · · It is not reasonable to ask the parties to

20· ·prepare for this new project design over the weekend.· We

21· ·haven't actually even been afforded the time to discuss

22· ·this new information with our own client before today's

23· ·conference.

24· · · · · · In order to ensure that all parties can cite to

25· ·a fair record, the adjudication should be continued to



·1· ·allow sufficient response.

·2· · · · · · The applicant has turned their proposal into a

·3· ·constantly evolving proposal, and Your Honor should draw

·4· ·a line and continue the hearing for the time necessary to

·5· ·ensure that all parties are talking about the same thing.

·6· · · · · · It is clear that applicant is now talking about

·7· ·a different proposal than the one that we had presented

·8· ·our cases on -- prepared our cases on for the hearing set

·9· ·on Monday.

10· · · · · · Even if the applicant does withdraw its footnote

11· ·citations, that does not cure the prejudice because there

12· ·are clearly project redesign conversations happening

13· ·outside the adjudicative process and outside of the

14· ·information shared with the other parties.

15· · · · · · Thank you for considering our motion.

16· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.

17· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Mr. Examiner, I would like to be

18· ·heard as well, please.

19· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Hold on, Mr. Aramburu.

20· · · · · · This is the Yakama Nation's motion.

21· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I understand.

22· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I've heard you on your motion and

23· ·I've issued my ruling.

24· · · · · · Let me have the applicant respond, and then

25· ·we'll see if there's anything that TCC needs to respond



·1· ·to back.

·2· · · · · · Mr. McMahan.

·3· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Your Honor, this is Ariel

·4· ·Stavitsky.· I can respond to this one.

·5· · · · · · You know, our reasoning here is the same as our

·6· ·response to TCC's similar motion.· I think this is really

·7· ·a product of these two parallel processes, this

·8· ·adjudication and the SEPA process, the DRA request

·9· ·process that are proceeding in tandem.

10· · · · · · And, Your Honor --

11· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Hold on a second.· Hold on a

12· ·second, Ms. Stavitsky.

13· · · · · · I'm a little worried that you're speaking

14· ·quickly, and I'm worried that the sound quality is

15· ·deteriorating.· So whatever Mr. McMahan did to improve

16· ·the auditory sound quality coming from your conference

17· ·room, if you would do the same.· And just slow down for

18· ·me and then we'll hear the rest of your explanation.

19· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· My apologies.· I'll try to keep

20· ·the court reporter in mind.

21· · · · · · I was stating that, you know, this issue is

22· ·really a product of the fact that we have these two

23· ·parallel processes proceeding in tandem:· The SEPA data

24· ·request process and this adjudication.

25· · · · · · So as Mr. McMahan explained, you know, these are



·1· ·ongoing -- this is an iterative process and we are

·2· ·providing updated information to EFSEC in response to

·3· ·their data requests.

·4· · · · · · And so this is our attempt to provide, you know,

·5· ·improved transparency, provide all parties with as much

·6· ·information as we possibly can, particularly given

·7· ·that -- well, I know that TCC and Yakama Nation have had

·8· ·concerns about the fact that, you know, information

·9· ·that's part of the EIS process is not making it into the

10· ·adjudication.

11· · · · · · So this is not an attempt to ambush.· This is an

12· ·attempt to provide as much information as we can.· But

13· ·if, you know, based on the timing of this adjudication,

14· ·if it's too much to be provided, this updated

15· ·information, we can certainly, you know, stall the clock

16· ·and base the adjudication on -- not on this updated

17· ·information.

18· · · · · · So, you know, we're happy to respond however

19· ·makes the most sense in terms of making sure that both of

20· ·these processes can proceed uninterrupted.

21· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you, Ms. Stavitsky.

22· · · · · · Mr. Aramburu, anything to add to what

23· ·Ms. Voelckers said, in response to what Ms. Stavitsky

24· ·said, either way?· I'll give you a few minutes.· Go

25· ·ahead, sir.



·1· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I mean, the general response here

·2· ·is, this is crazy.· They have sent us a memo, now, that

·3· ·says, for example, remove all solar array infrastructure

·4· ·west of I-82.

·5· · · · · · Remove solar infrastructure within 1 mile of

·6· ·I-82.

·7· · · · · · Remove four turbines near Benton City.

·8· · · · · · So this -- it goes on with 11 pages of this.

·9· · · · · · So the council has to understand what the

10· ·project is before it.· And the project has been changed

11· ·by the applicant.· It's not just a matter of deleting

12· ·footnotes and other things.· The project has been

13· ·changed.

14· · · · · · So we're going to go ahead with days and days of

15· ·testimony on a project that's been changed.· That makes

16· ·no sense of any kind.· Completely violative of due

17· ·process.

18· · · · · · And I guess I would like to know what you're

19· ·going to tell the council that the project is because

20· ·you're going to have to tell them the project has been

21· ·changed at 1:05 p.m. on August 10 by this memo from the

22· ·applicant.

23· · · · · · This makes no sense at all and is going to

24· ·confuse council members, and council members are going to

25· ·question why they are reviewing a project that's been



·1· ·changed by the applicant.· It makes no sense of any kind.

·2· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Your Honor, this is Ken Harper.

·3· ·Can I be heard?

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Of course, Mr. Harper.· You're

·5· ·next.

·6· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· I would just like to state for the

·7· ·record that the County joins in these motions.· It is

·8· ·going to be a significant impediment to

·9· ·cross-examination.

10· · · · · · I've been working on my cross-examination,

11· ·particularly of Ms. McClain.· And now it is very

12· ·difficult for me to understand how the cross-examination

13· ·should be modified.

14· · · · · · Mr. McMahan's suggestion, or I guess his action

15· ·of striking portions of the brief does not actually

16· ·address Mr. Aramburu's point, which is that the project

17· ·is in a state of transition.

18· · · · · · So the County joins in the motion, and the

19· ·County renews its earlier motion that this entire matter

20· ·should be stayed until there's an FEIS and we actually

21· ·have a project that's a fit subject for adjudication.

22· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

23· · · · · · We all know that I've already denied

24· ·continuances based on waiting for the FEIS.· There's not

25· ·a basis in law to do so.



·1· · · · · · That aside, I understand where the parties are

·2· ·coming from on a moving target.

·3· · · · · · Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, Ms. Schimelpfenig,

·4· ·would you care to give an explanation of why the

·5· ·applicant continues to make minor and/or major changes to

·6· ·the original proposal that we first saw in the

·7· ·application for site certification filed on February 8th

·8· ·of 2021?

·9· · · · · · And, Mr. McMahan, if you want to take into

10· ·account the ongoing debates or discussion of the project

11· ·with council staff and how a draft environmental impact

12· ·statement is being responded to with various

13· ·recommendations for mitigation that are not in dispute by

14· ·the applicant and coming up with the update prior to the

15· ·adjudicative hearing, as required by administrative code

16· ·provisions adopted by EFSEC, and give the overview of

17· ·what you think the council was expecting from the

18· ·applicant and what the applicant has been trying to do by

19· ·filing the changes, despite the frustration it might

20· ·create for anybody trying to figure out what we're

21· ·adjudicating here the rest of the month.

22· · · · · · So with all of that, as a compound question,

23· ·please, enlighten everybody on the call what the

24· ·applicant has been up to.

25· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Thank you, Your Honor.



·1· · · · · · And it's not just what the applicant has been up

·2· ·to, we have gone through nine data requests for the life

·3· ·of the project.· This is not -- this process is not one

·4· ·where you file an application and it sits there until the

·5· ·adjudication and then an approval is issued.

·6· · · · · · This is, as Ms. Stavitsky indicated, it's a

·7· ·two-track process.· It's an iterative process that we've

·8· ·been dealing with for the life of the project.

·9· · · · · · And the other irony here is what's actually

10· ·proposed with this information is a net reduction of

11· ·impact.· That's what we have been talking with EFSEC

12· ·staff about in terms of the intent of these

13· ·modifications.

14· · · · · · And, you know, it is part of a process that we

15· ·have been on for a very long time.· We debated, should we

16· ·just not move this forward right now.· We thought in the

17· ·interest of transparency, that it was best to put it out

18· ·there so that people understood.

19· · · · · · And, again, does not -- these are not

20· ·modifications that are going to increase impacts or

21· ·dramatically change the project.· They are fairly nuanced

22· ·and they do, in fact, accomplish net reduction of impact.

23· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And in your experience, which may

24· ·differ from mine, has this been, for other clients that

25· ·you represented before EFSEC, essentially a parallel of



·1· ·past practices reaching back to things done in Kittitas

·2· ·County, things done at the Tesoro matter, which I don't

·3· ·think you were on, or the Whistling Ridge project?

·4· · · · · · Has this been the ongoing funneling down of

·5· ·impact prior to the council actually considering what's

·6· ·in front of them?

·7· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· It absolutely has.· In fact, the

·8· ·Whistling Bridge project, during the adjudication,

·9· ·literally live during the adjudication, modifications

10· ·were made, you know, when the process was underway.

11· · · · · · So this is really -- in terms of the several

12· ·projects I've been involved in, there's nothing different

13· ·about this.· It has to do with the way the EFSEC process

14· ·works.· And the idea is that as EFSEC gains greater

15· ·knowledge through all of these proceedings and it tends

16· ·to, you know, accelerate at this point in time,

17· ·Judge Torem, because a lot of information is being

18· ·developed as we learn more about each others' positions

19· ·in the case.

20· · · · · · We are being responsive and we are being

21· ·responsive in a way that we've been directed by EFSEC

22· ·council staff to provide information as it evolves and as

23· ·it develops.

24· · · · · · There's nothing different that has been handled

25· ·in the other projects I've been involved in.



·1· · · · · · And, no, I didn't represent Tesoro.

·2· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Well, I've heard from

·3· ·the applicants in response and I've heard, Ms. Voelckers.

·4· ·I appreciate what you've raised, what Mr. Aramburu has

·5· ·supplemented, and what Mr. Harper has added as well.

·6· · · · · · Ms. Reyneveld, anything you wanted to add on

·7· ·this?

·8· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· So I have been out of internet

·9· ·access for -- until earlier this morning and have not had

10· ·an opportunity to review the prehearing briefs of any of

11· ·the parties.· And so I do not have the benefit of having

12· ·reviewed the updated information fully that the applicant

13· ·provided.

14· · · · · · You know, I do think a continuance makes sense

15· ·for us to be able to review the information, at least for

16· ·counsel for the environment, if it is, indeed, correct,

17· ·that there have been reductions or, you know, serious

18· ·modifications or mitigative measures that have been

19· ·proposed.· In response to the new information, I know

20· ·that I would like a little bit more time to review it

21· ·with my witness.

22· · · · · · With that said, I have not had the benefit of

23· ·the other parties of reviewing the information because

24· ·I'm just not getting internet access, but would certainly

25· ·benefit from a brief continuance to review the



·1· ·information, just so that we are all on the same page in

·2· ·terms of the actual project proposal that we're

·3· ·litigating.

·4· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Your Honor, Tim McMahan here.

·5· · · · · · I want to ground this in a very specific actual

·6· ·thing that happened in the Kittitas Valley case, and I

·7· ·know that you were there at the time.

·8· · · · · · During the adjudication and close to the time

·9· ·the case was depleted, the applicant in that case put on

10· ·the table, and the citing council was happy to see it, a

11· ·standard of four times to remind setback that would deal

12· ·with a lot of issues raised by residential landowners.

13· ·And that happened as we were in the closing days or

14· ·moments of the adjudication of Kittitas Valley.

15· · · · · · And I don't remember, frankly, you know,

16· ·whether -- if there was controversy around that, but it

17· ·was an issue of some importance to the cite council; that

18· ·we were able to resolve prior to the close of the

19· ·adjudication.

20· · · · · · I could probably come up with other examples,

21· ·but that's the one that really sticks out to me, Your

22· ·Honor.

23· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor, if I could respond

24· ·to a couple of things that Mr. McMahan had said, I would

25· ·appreciate the opportunity.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.

·2· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·3· · · · · · I just want to clarify that our motion, while we

·4· ·certainly do stand by the original motion continuance

·5· ·around the lack of FEIS, is not out of -- our motion

·6· ·today is not out of any confusion about what is happening

·7· ·between the applicant and EFSEC on the SEPA side.

·8· · · · · · It is about the need for substantive project

·9· ·modifications to be shared in a timely way.· And I think

10· ·that that is clearly supported by the WAC, which allows

11· ·the applicant to provide this information up to 30 days

12· ·before the hearing.· But it's not supported to do it now.

13· · · · · · And while Mr. McMahan concedes that there's a

14· ·net reduction in environmental impacts, respectfully,

15· ·none of the lawyers are the ones that can really testify

16· ·to that.· Like, we need time for our experts and their

17· ·experts to be able to speak about that.

18· · · · · · And so I just wanted to emphasize that we're not

19· ·saying that the applicant and EFSEC cannot talk through

20· ·these information exchanges and requests for further

21· ·information.· But when it is a project design

22· ·modification, that is a substantive change.· And this

23· ·last -- you know, last night or today, however you want

24· ·to count this new information, it's not compliant with

25· ·any rule.· And we need some sort of line here that allows



·1· ·us to be talking about the same thing on Monday.

·2· · · · · · So that's really what we're asking for here.

·3· ·And there might be certain positives that come out of

·4· ·certain modifications, but no one has had a chance to

·5· ·review this memo besides the applicant.

·6· · · · · · And so we really need the opportunity for the

·7· ·folks that we've called to testify over the next two

·8· ·weeks to be able to make that analysis, not the lawyers

·9· ·today.

10· · · · · · So thank you for your consideration.

11· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.

12· · · · · · Mr. McMahan, this memo that's being referred to,

13· ·that's the one that was circulated an hour before we

14· ·started today; is that correct?

15· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· That is correct.

16· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms. Voelckers, I'm

17· ·going to take that under advisement until Monday morning.

18· ·At 8:30, we'll take it up again and you can summarize the

19· ·motion on behalf of the other parties as well because I

20· ·don't want to take an extended amount of time at 8:30

21· ·Monday morning.· But I'll consider it.· I'll take a look

22· ·at the memo in the days ahead.

23· · · · · · My thought is that all of the parties are going

24· ·to bring Monday morning with them, their availability or

25· ·not, for the week of September 25th through the 29th for



·1· ·one to two days of additional supplemental adjudicative

·2· ·hearing, if I decide to grant the motion in part.· So I

·3· ·want that material by the end of the day on Monday the

·4· ·14th of August.· Everybody will have their availability

·5· ·for that week of September 25th to 29th.

·6· · · · · · I may want an additional four to eight hours of

·7· ·hearing time split over one or two days, depending on

·8· ·whether this raises, truly, any new issues that I think

·9· ·need to be talked about 30 days after the close of the

10· ·hearing, which would set back the filing of posthearing

11· ·briefs accordingly.

12· · · · · · If I grant a motion to continue the entire

13· ·hearing, I'll let you know Monday morning.· But I'm not

14· ·going to give you a ruling on that today.

15· · · · · · So let's move on to the original portions of

16· ·today's prehearing conference.

17· · · · · · I appreciate the reaction time today to some of

18· ·the late-breaking filings.· So no critique imposed.

19· · · · · · Much as it's still baseball season, you continue

20· ·to impress me with curve balls, all of you, and I'm going

21· ·to do my best to take my time before I swing at any of

22· ·these pitches.

23· · · · · · So let's go back to the original things that

24· ·were on the agenda for today.· One of them was reviewing

25· ·the schedule, and I want to come back to Mr. Simon's



·1· ·testimony.

·2· · · · · · Given the discussion we've had today and what it

·3· ·may have an impact on Ms. McClain's cross-examination, I

·4· ·certainly want to take back anything I said in my

·5· ·late-breaking email two minutes before today's

·6· ·conference.

·7· · · · · · We're not going to put Mr. Simon on Monday.

·8· ·Tuesday looks pretty full.· My suggestion is that we

·9· ·either bridge Tuesday into Wednesday or we run the

10· ·hearing an extra half hour to one hour on Wednesday,

11· ·August the 16th.

12· · · · · · Mr. Aramburu, can you make Mr. Simon available

13· ·either late Tuesday and/or late Wednesday?

14· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· We've -- Mr. Simon has a long

15· ·scheduled trip to Alaska.

16· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· That's not the issue.· That's not

17· ·the issue.· He's out for that week.

18· · · · · · Can you make him available next Tuesday or next

19· ·Wednesday?

20· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I can make him available by way of

21· ·email and phone conversations with him.· He can be

22· ·available at noon on Friday, August 25, which is when he

23· ·is currently scheduled.· He will be getting off -- he's

24· ·stepping off an airplane from Alaska, but he can be

25· ·available for cross-examination at that time.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Let's go with that as Plan B.  I

·2· ·don't trust airline schedules to deliver witnesses to a

·3· ·place where it's quiet.

·4· · · · · · Can he be available next week, since he's

·5· ·apparently not in Alaska next week?

·6· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· My proposal would be Friday,

·7· ·August 25, which is on his return from Alaska.

·8· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Are you willing, if

·9· ·he's not available within 15 minutes of the scheduled

10· ·time, that he waives his right to testify?

11· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I can't do that.· I just don't

12· ·know what the schedules are.· He is scheduled to get off

13· ·the airplane at 11:00 o'clock in the morning.· I can make

14· ·sure that he is by a phone at noon to be able to be

15· ·available for cross-examination.· But I cannot account

16· ·for the vagaries of travel for these witnesses.

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yes.· As I recall, Mr. Aramburu,

18· ·you had no control over the Blue Angles last Thursday,

19· ·and I'm not going to grant you any control over what I

20· ·presume is an Alaska Airlines flight from Anchorage.

21· · · · · · If he is to be made available on Friday, that is

22· ·at TCC's peril.· I am offering you going once, going

23· ·twice, going three times today, an opportunity to have

24· ·him testify next week on either Tuesday, late in the day,

25· ·or Wednesday, before the council meeting.



·1· · · · · · Would you like those options, or would you like

·2· ·to gamble next Friday on the 25th?

·3· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I would like to consult with him

·4· ·and get back to you by the end of the day.

·5· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· If you'll send an

·6· ·email with your selection, it will be accommodated

·7· ·accordingly.

·8· · · · · · So, again, his choices are, Tuesday -- let me

·9· ·roll back up to it -- August 15th at 4:00 o'clock;

10· ·Wednesday, August 16th at 11:30 -- I think there's a

11· ·typographical error there.· It should say a.m.· Or per

12· ·your suggestion, Friday, August 25th at noon.

13· · · · · · Let me know your preference.· If it's next week,

14· ·we'll talk about it at the housekeeping session on

15· ·Monday.· If it's the following week on Friday, I'm

16· ·putting it on the record today:· If he's not available at

17· ·the designated time, we'll check the flight number.· And

18· ·at my discretion and the council's indulgence, we may

19· ·wait for him.

20· · · · · · But if he's not available, I'm not going to have

21· ·however many people are on the line here today and the

22· ·entire council wait for that flight to come in on Friday.

23· ·That will be a gamble that TCC takes or not.· If he's not

24· ·present to adopt his testimony, it will be stricken.

25· · · · · · Are we absolutely clear on that, Mr. Aramburu?



·1· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· We disagree but we're clear.

·2· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Perfect.

·3· · · · · · All right.· Let's move on to the rest of the

·4· ·schedule.

·5· · · · · · Is there anything else I need to know beyond

·6· ·what's obvious on the piece here?· And, again, the

·7· ·Wednesday, 11:30 a.m., we would fit Mr. Simon in with the

·8· ·swearing in of uncalled wildlife witnesses, which should

·9· ·take mere moments.· That's why that particular time looks

10· ·attractive to me.

11· · · · · · From the applicant, anything else I need to know

12· ·that appears to be -- that the schedule might go

13· ·sideways, so I can anticipate any dates that were -- I

14· ·don't know, discussions that happened off line that

15· ·there's any worry about, the estimates from the

16· ·applicant's perspective?

17· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· No, Your Honor.· We believe that

18· ·list that was just circulated is still accurate, from our

19· ·perspective.

20· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Mr. Harper, I know

21· ·that Ms. Foster was covering the last couple of

22· ·prehearings.

23· · · · · · From your review of all of this, does the County

24· ·have any concerns?

25· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No, Your Honor.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Reyneveld, I know you've been

·2· ·out of internet for a piece of time due to the

·3· ·devastation in Maui.

·4· · · · · · From what you've participated in and getting the

·5· ·schedule together, does counsel for the environment have

·6· ·any concerns?

·7· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· No, counsel for the environment

·8· ·does not have any concerns at this time.

·9· · · · · · Thank you, Judge.

10· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And, Ms. Reyneveld, were you

11· ·intending to have submitted a prehearing brief?· In my

12· ·accounting, I did not see one come in.· I may have missed

13· ·it.

14· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Counsel for the environment was

15· ·not intending to submit a prehearing brief, but we will

16· ·be submitting a posthearing brief.

17· · · · · · Thank you for --

18· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Excellent.

19· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Thank you for asking, though,

20· ·because I wouldn't have been able to submit it yesterday.

21· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Understood.· I wanted to see if

22· ·there was going to be any accommodation needed, but it

23· ·sounds like we'll wait for posthearing briefs from you.

24· ·And hopefully the internet situation and the general

25· ·situation is better.



·1· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers, anything else that

·3· ·I need to know about the schedule that Yakama Nation is

·4· ·still concerned with?

·5· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·6· · · · · · I would like to better understand the plan for

·7· ·Mr. Kobus's recent -- or, excuse me, Stoel's recent

·8· ·motion to supplement Mr. Kobus's testimony before

·9· ·confirming our agreement.

10· · · · · · With the schedule as emailed on August 9th, we

11· ·are in agreement with what was emailed and that we did

12· ·workshop collaboratively with Stoel, but I think there's

13· ·still a question that remains about Mr. Kobus's

14· ·testimony.· And so we would like to wait for that to be

15· ·resolved before we agree with the schedule in its

16· ·entirety.

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And, Ms. Voelckers, it's my

18· ·understanding that Mr. Kobus does not appear on the

19· ·witness list; is that correct?

20· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Correct, Your Honor, because

21· ·this was developed before -- or, I mean, this has been a

22· ·work in progress, but the motion to supplement was just

23· ·so recently filed that it was not accounted for on this

24· ·list.· And, in fact, it was filed after we gave our final

25· ·feedback to the applicant on the list that you have in



·1· ·front of you.

·2· · · · · · And so seeing now that there is a proposal for

·3· ·him to sit for cross-examination, if Your Honor does

·4· ·allow that new supplemental testimony to come in, we

·5· ·would like to reserve the right to cross-examine him.

·6· ·And I don't know what his general availability is, but I

·7· ·think there's certainly time left at the end of the

·8· ·hearing for that.

·9· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Let me hear from Mr. McMahan or

10· ·someone else at the Stoel Rives office as to the

11· ·intention and timing, if that supplemental testimony is

12· ·admitted in conjunction with his discovery deposition.

13· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Thank you, your Honor.· Tim

14· ·McMahan here.

15· · · · · · We notified the parties at the last prehearing

16· ·conference that we were most likely to be submitting some

17· ·supplemental testimony to correct some understanding --

18· ·some misunderstandings about the battery energy storage

19· ·system, technology, and water safety around the BESS

20· ·systems.

21· · · · · · We notified everyone last prehearing conference

22· ·that we felt that was going to be necessary.· We intended

23· ·to provide some supplementary testimony in order to

24· ·correct some information and to update some information.

25· ·So we have done that.



·1· · · · · · I recognize that Mr. Aramburu has strongly

·2· ·objected to that testimony.· Our view is that it would be

·3· ·inaccurate to submit to the citing council prior

·4· ·information, design information, prior information about

·5· ·the BESS facility -- battery energy storage system

·6· ·facility because that is just simply not as described in

·7· ·the original testimony.· It's just simply not the way

·8· ·it's going to be proposed to EFSEC.

·9· · · · · · So we -- and I apologize that it took some days

10· ·to pull this together because, frankly, this was new

11· ·stuff for me to learn and figure out.· And it took a bit

12· ·to have sufficiency and technical information so that we

13· ·could provide helpful information to the citing council

14· ·to understand the safety issues around the BESS -- the

15· ·battery energy storage facility -- around the BESS

16· ·facility.

17· · · · · · So that's what we did.· We felt that it was

18· ·just -- it was not productive or fruitful to give the

19· ·council something that was not accurate.· So we just

20· ·tried to provide accurate information with that

21· ·supplemental testimony.

22· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· One more question, Mr. McMahan.

23· ·And, again, slow down a little bit for the court

24· ·reporter.

25· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Sorry.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· When would Mr. McMahan be --

·2· ·sorry.

·3· · · · · · When would Mr. Kobus be available to testify?

·4· ·Would that also be on Friday, August 25th in the

·5· ·afternoon?

·6· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Your Honor, Mr. Kobus is along for

·7· ·the ride, and we will make him available if

·8· ·cross-examination is desired whenever it fits within the

·9· ·schedule.

10· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· That's good to know.

11· · · · · · Ms. Voelckers, once I have a chance to take a

12· ·look at that supplemental testimony, if it is admitted,

13· ·I'll let the parties know as soon as possible.· It may be

14· ·Monday morning at the housekeeping.· It may then be

15· ·something to renew the -- if it is admitted, renew the

16· ·motions or add to the motions a reason for the

17· ·continuance and/or the supplemental dates of hearing that

18· ·I mentioned earlier, that would be, without looking at

19· ·the council's schedule, possibly the week of

20· ·September 25th to 29th.

21· · · · · · Those are dates that I think are 30 days after

22· ·the close of the hearing and responsive to the length of

23· ·continuance the parties were seeking.· So that's why I've

24· ·selected that week to determine your availabilities.

25· · · · · · Mr. McMahan, if I do end up admitting the



·1· ·testimony and I believe that it needs additional time for

·2· ·the parties, that would be when I would ask Mr. Kobus to

·3· ·make himself available for cross-exam.

·4· · · · · · If I admit the testimony supplementally to go

·5· ·with what's in the deposition and I think it's not

·6· ·something the parties need 30 days, then we'll see if

·7· ·he's available at another place in the hearing.· But

·8· ·likely Friday, August 25th, with some of that afternoon

·9· ·time.· And we'll schedule it after the time that we might

10· ·have for Mr. Simon, if that's the choice that TCC makes

11· ·to present him, as opposed to the current scheduled time.

12· ·But we'll take that matter up later.

13· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· That's fine.· Thank you, Your

14· ·Honor.

15· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Judge, may I be heard on these

16· ·matters briefly?

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Certainly.· Go ahead,

18· ·Mr. Aramburu.

19· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· First of all, with respect to

20· ·witness scheduling, we have been in contact with Lonnie

21· ·Click from the Benton Fire District.· And he is scheduled

22· ·for Wednesday, August 23, at 9:30.

23· · · · · · It turns out he is not available on that day but

24· ·he is available on August 21 or 22.· So we would like the

25· ·parties to accommodate.· And he is -- there has not been



·1· ·a request to cross-examine him nor was his testimony

·2· ·requested to be stricken.· So it would be simply an

·3· ·affirmation of testimony.

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I have no problem at all with

·5· ·that, Mr. Aramburu.· If you would let us know what day is

·6· ·most convenient for Lonnie Click to document testimony, I

·7· ·don't think the parties will object at all.· We'll just,

·8· ·in a housekeeping session, move that to whatever day he's

·9· ·going to adopt his testimony.

10· · · · · · Is that acceptable with TCC?

11· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· That would be fine with us.

12· · · · · · And I do want a clarification about our position

13· ·about -- regarding Mr. Kobus's testimony.

14· · · · · · His supplement that he submitted to us involves

15· ·a lot of technical material analysis of National Fire

16· ·Protection Association standards and that kind of thing.

17· · · · · · So our principal interest is not so much to

18· ·cross-examine him on those things, which he didn't seem

19· ·to know anything about during his deposition, but rather

20· ·to make sure that we have an opportunity to rebut that

21· ·information with information of our own, given the late

22· ·nature of what's been proposed here.

23· · · · · · So we are not necessarily asking for

24· ·cross-examination, but we are asking for an opportunity

25· ·to provide rebuttal to that material.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And TCC may feel that

·2· ·way but the other parties may wish to cross-examine.

·3· · · · · · I'll let the other parties clarify with me next

·4· ·week on Monday at the housekeeping session or as soon

·5· ·thereafter as possible, what their intent is.· If there's

·6· ·nobody wishing to cross-examine but simply more time to

·7· ·rebut and supplement the record, we can do that and give

·8· ·additional time for posthearing briefs.

·9· · · · · · Again, the extension that the applicant has is

10· ·through January 31st of 2024.· It's my understanding that

11· ·we would have all of the materials in from the

12· ·adjudication late this fall and that the FEIS is on track

13· ·to be presented to the council shortly thereafter.· We'll

14· ·find out from the appropriate EFSEC staff when that

15· ·timing is.· And then the council will have its full

16· ·deliberations on the entire record.

17· · · · · · So there's time, Mr. Aramburu, to get additional

18· ·information from the parties into the record on the

19· ·adjudication side.· And when the FEIS is completed, it

20· ·will also be before the council with sufficient time for

21· ·them to make their recommendation on the entire record

22· ·and the SEPA record up to the governor.

23· · · · · · So I want to assure you that on my side of the

24· ·house, which is the adjudication, the entire record will

25· ·be considered before any findings of fact or conclusions



·1· ·of law are drawn from the adjudication.

·2· · · · · · And I am assured by the rest of EFSEC staff that

·3· ·the council will also have the FEIS in time for their

·4· ·deliberations that go in conjunctive nature with what

·5· ·we're doing in the adjudication, before any

·6· ·recommendation is made to Governor Inslee.

·7· · · · · · All right.· We've taken care of the schedule

·8· ·concerns.

·9· · · · · · We've got Lonnie Click that will be moved around

10· ·according to that schedule.

11· · · · · · We've got Rick Simon to come on a different date

12· ·than August 23rd.

13· · · · · · And we've got questions now about the

14· ·continuance request to handle all of the redesign issues

15· ·per 463-60-116 and anything else that might come out of

16· ·the Kobus deposition and the supplemental testimony.

17· · · · · · So we're going to move on from Agenda Item 2 to

18· ·Agenda Item 3, which is the status update on the Yakama

19· ·Nation's discovery requests regarding water resources.

20· · · · · · Ms. Voelckers.

21· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

22· · · · · · And I respect that you are moving on, but if I

23· ·could finish my thoughts on the schedule, I think we got

24· ·a little sidetracked with my comment on Mr. Kobus.· I did

25· ·have one more question for you --



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Please.

·2· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· -- on that.

·3· · · · · · Okay.· So -- and then just to be clear, we will

·4· ·be asking to cross-examine Mr. Kobus, if that testimony

·5· ·is submitted.

·6· · · · · · So on the 21st, when there is -- we'll be

·7· ·requesting the closed-record hearing, in meeting with my

·8· ·client this week, the question came up about viewing of

·9· ·the hearing for the council members, meaning the tribal

10· ·council members.

11· · · · · · And so we can update our confidentiality

12· ·agreement to reflect additional council members, but I

13· ·wanted to make sure to understand if it would be okay to

14· ·have multiple folks just kind of in a room together

15· ·viewing the screen, or whether or not EFSEC would like a

16· ·record of who all is participating in these hearings by

17· ·being in the room for them.

18· · · · · · I mean, it's being closed at the Yakama Nation's

19· ·request, so I hope that, you know, there's not concern

20· ·about the Nation's tribal council members joining.· But I

21· ·just want to make sure that we're doing it in a way

22· ·that's appropriate and also so people aren't accidentally

23· ·excluded from the room with the technology that's going

24· ·to be used.

25· · · · · · So I don't know if this is a question for Your



·1· ·Honor or for EFSEC staff, but I just wanted to bring that

·2· ·up while it was front of mind, to make sure that we're

·3· ·doing what we had to to avoid complications on your end.

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I appreciate that very much.

·5· · · · · · Let's go over that Monday schedule with the

·6· ·cultural historic archaeological resource impacts and

·7· ·identify each session that needs to be a closed-record

·8· ·hearing.

·9· · · · · · I think the first one would be starting at

10· ·10:45 a.m.; is that correct?

11· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· I'm sorry.· I'm having a little

12· ·bit of a technical issue.

13· · · · · · Is that -- that's the beginning of Ms. Lally's

14· ·testimony, I believe?

15· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Correct.· So the Lally testimony

16· ·is scheduled for 10:45 to 11:45 and again after lunch

17· ·from 12:45 to 1:45.

18· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes.· Okay.

19· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Your Honor, apologies.· This is

20· ·Ariel Stavitsky for applicant.· And I would also ask --

21· ·I'm glad we're addressing this.

22· · · · · · Ms. Ragsdale also had the question whether her

23· ·testimony would be held in the breakout room as private.

24· ·And her position is that it's going to be difficult, I

25· ·think for her as well, to determine in the moment what of



·1· ·her testimony is subject to the protective order and what

·2· ·is not.

·3· · · · · · So her preference would be that her testimony as

·4· ·well would be all held in the private breakout room.

·5· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· So it sounds as though

·6· ·the morning session starting at 9:00 all of the way

·7· ·through 1:45 --

·8· · · · · · Let me go back to you, Ms. Voelckers.

·9· · · · · · In looking at the rest of the day, is any of

10· ·that day not going to be a confidential breakout session?

11· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Not -- my expectation, Your

12· ·Honor, is that full day would be a closed hearing.  I

13· ·know that there's discussion about having the fire chief

14· ·just adopt his testimony, but for the witnesses that are

15· ·listed there, we are asking that they all be heard in a

16· ·closed-record hearing.

17· · · · · · So I would expect that, yes, that would be a

18· ·full day of a closed hearing.

19· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Noted.

20· · · · · · I don't see any problem with the Yakama Nation

21· ·who is forwarding this confidential information, having

22· ·as many people in any room that you would like or tribal

23· ·members that you and the rest of the elders determine are

24· ·entitled to hear this information.

25· · · · · · If you would like to have them sign on, I think



·1· ·that we should make that Ms. Grantham and Ms. Owens know

·2· ·who else to expect so they can add them to the list of

·3· ·people authorized to be in the hearing that day.

·4· · · · · · It will also be something that we can make clear

·5· ·next week at the hearing and maybe send out a supplement

·6· ·to the notice that went out for the hearing, that the

·7· ·bulk of the day on Monday, August 21st, other than Lonnie

·8· ·Click adopting testimony, if that's the date that works,

·9· ·that the hearing will be a closed record because of the

10· ·sensitive and confidential nature of the testimony.· So

11· ·that's Monday the 21st.

12· · · · · · Are there any other sessions throughout the

13· ·course of the hearing that are anticipated to be

14· ·confidential in a closed-record hearing?

15· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor, from the Yakama

16· ·Nation's perspective, the other time where there might be

17· ·a request for a closed-record hearing would be on

18· ·testimony around the project's potential impacts to the

19· ·pronghorn population.· And it's hard to predict how much

20· ·of that, not knowing whether or not the council would

21· ·have questions for Yakama Nation's own expert on that

22· ·topic, Mr. Ganuelas, which is why we estimate half an

23· ·hour, even though I understand that he, you know, is not

24· ·appearing for cross-examination, just because we weren't

25· ·sure whether or not the council would have questions for



·1· ·him.

·2· · · · · · And so our understanding from last Friday from

·3· ·you was they should be prepared to answer questions from

·4· ·the council.· And so we built in that time.

·5· · · · · · So it is possible that there would be time at

·6· ·the end of the day Tuesday during Mr. Rahmig's testimony

·7· ·and Wednesday, during the remainder of his testimony or

·8· ·the swearing in of Yakama Nation's wildlife biologist.

·9· ·That's the only other time that I see on the schedule

10· ·where we might be asking for that.· And it's a little

11· ·tricky to predict how long that would be right now.

12· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I appreciate that.

13· · · · · · So in summing that up, Tuesday afternoon at

14· ·2:50 p.m., depending on where the cross-exam goes and the

15· ·redirect for Mr. Rahmig and continuing on Wednesday

16· ·morning at 9:00 a.m. for that testimony and redirect,

17· ·those portions may have sessions that require us to go

18· ·into closed record.

19· · · · · · You're also saying that when Mr. Ganuelas adopts

20· ·his testimony Wednesday, late morning, if there are

21· ·questions and he needs to comment on the pronghorn

22· ·issues, those may also require us to move into closed

23· ·session.

24· · · · · · Did I get that right?

25· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Your Honor, may I --

·3· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· But I think it's help --

·4· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· I just wanted to add, the same

·5· ·will likely be true of -- there may be some need for

·6· ·confidential pronghorn testimony from our wildlife

·7· ·experts Erik Jansen and Troy Rahmig.

·8· · · · · · And we were -- just to throw it out there as

·9· ·sort of a logistical solution, we were thinking it may

10· ·make sense to sort of have a pronghorn subject matter

11· ·time of day so that that could be held in the private

12· ·breakout room, but defer to you and Ms. Voelckers on how

13· ·you -- how best you think that would work out.

14· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And this was Ms. Stavitsky; right?

15· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Yes.· Thanks, Your Honor.

16· ·Ms. Stavitsky for applicant.

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· So, Ms. Stavitsky, you mentioned

18· ·Mr. Jansen and was it Mr. Cook as well?

19· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Mr. Jansen and Mr. Rahmig.

20· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And we already had

21· ·identified Mr. Rahmig as potentially having that

22· ·testimony.

23· · · · · · So Jansen and Rahmig on Tuesday and Wednesday

24· ·this coming week and then the entire day on Monday, the

25· ·21st.



·1· · · · · · All right.· I'm going to make sure Ms. Grantham

·2· ·is taking notes on that.· And if not, to reach out to me

·3· ·later to qualify or clarify anything.· But we may be

·4· ·putting out an amended notice today or tomorrow that

·5· ·indicates that those sessions on Tuesday the 15th of

·6· ·August and Wednesday the 16th of August are anticipated

·7· ·to have closed-record hearings, and that essentially the

·8· ·full day after the hearing opens on August 21st will be

·9· ·anticipated to being a closed-record session.

10· · · · · · Were there any other witnesses that any party

11· ·thinks will have confidential information that requires a

12· ·closed-record hearing?

13· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Your Honor --

14· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Hearing -- go ahead.

15· · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Apologies, Your Honor.· This is

16· ·Ariel Stavitsky, again, for applicant.

17· · · · · · The only other thing we can possibly think may

18· ·require a closed hearing is depending on your ruling on

19· ·the pending motion to strike.

20· · · · · · If some of that testimony is allowed, there is

21· ·certain trade secret information that may be required to

22· ·be disclosed in a closed-record hearing.· And so that

23· ·would be -- the witnesses likely affected by that, from

24· ·our perspective, would be Rich Simon and Greg Poulos.

25· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Understood.



·1· · · · · · Parties, we've been going at this for over an

·2· ·hour.· I want to have some mercy for the court reporter

·3· ·and anybody who has late-afternoon coffee consumption.

·4· · · · · · So it's now 3:02.· I propose we come back at

·5· ·3:15 and get back on the record at that time.· So we'll

·6· ·take a 12-minute break here and come back at 3:15 and

·7· ·we'll resume the agenda with Item No. 3, I believe it is

·8· ·on -- Ms. Voelckers, I'm going to turn to you at 3:15 on

·9· ·the status of that discovery request.

10· · · · · · And I'll be prepared to give you a list of the

11· ·outstanding orders I believe I need to get out when we

12· ·get to Item No. 4, and then we'll go around again for

13· ·No. 5.· And hopefully by 4:15, we can be done today, but

14· ·I know we've scheduled it through 5:00 o'clock.

15· · · · · · ·All right.· We'll take a recess now until 3:15.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · (Recess from 3:03 p.m. to 3:15 p.m.)

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· It's now 3:15.· Let me

18· ·have a brief roll call to make sure everybody is back.

19· · · · · · For the applicant?

20· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· We're here, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· For the Yakama Nation?

22· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Present.

23· · · · · · Thank you, Your Honor.

24· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Benton County?

25· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Present, Your Honor.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Reyneveld?

·2· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I'm here.

·3· · · · · · Thank you, Judge.

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And, Mr. Aramburu?

·5· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Present for Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.

·6· · · · · · Thank you, Your Honor.

·7· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Let's resume with Item

·8· ·No. 3 on the agenda, status update on the Yakama Nation's

·9· ·discovery request.

10· · · · · · Ms. Voelckers.

11· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your Honor.

12· · · · · · We did receive a response to our discovery

13· ·requests.· So that has been solved.

14· · · · · · I would like to note that we would likely have

15· ·more, once we have a chance to review the memo that was

16· ·submitted yesterday, and that's the subject of the motion

17· ·to continue.

18· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· When you say that's the memo, is

19· ·it the same memo we've been discussing today?

20· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Your Honor, this is Rick Aramburu

22· ·speaking.

23· · · · · · The subject of the well is found for your notes,

24· ·Your Honor, on Page 8 of the memo under Section 1.12.· It

25· ·has been made an issue for these proceedings.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· You said Page 8, Section 1.12?

·2· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Correct.

·3· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Thank you, Mr. Aramburu,

·4· ·for that refinement.

·5· · · · · · Ms. Voelckers, anything else I need to know

·6· ·about the discovery requests?

·7· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Not at this time.

·8· · · · · · Thank you, Your Honor.

·9· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Anybody from the

10· ·applicant want to confirm, is there anything else

11· ·outstanding you intend to be providing as continuing in

12· ·this discovery request?

13· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Not that I'm aware of, Your Honor,

14· ·no.

15· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Then moving onto

16· ·No. 4, the what does Judge Torem still have to do.

17· · · · · · So you can cross out the "if any."

18· · · · · · I understand that I still owe Mr. Aramburu and

19· ·the parties my order on which witnesses are formally

20· ·being moved from the TCC list that might be subject to

21· ·adopting testimony and allowed for council questions and

22· ·converting those to public comment.· So that's definitely

23· ·something outstanding.

24· · · · · · There's some other motions to take out, I think

25· ·it's Mr. Simon's testimony that was stricken.



·1· · · · · · And tell me for sure, Mr. Aramburu, if there's

·2· ·other portions for Mr. Krupin?· It looked as though he

·3· ·was listed for potential cross-examination.

·4· · · · · · So there's still a motion out for both of those;

·5· ·is that correct?

·6· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Your Honor, as I see your list,

·7· ·if I can put it that way, there is still an outstanding

·8· ·decision on a motion for reconsideration of inclusion of

·9· ·the testimony for witnesses Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and

10· ·Simon -- part of Simon's testimony.

11· · · · · · There is an outstanding motion by the applicant

12· ·to strike rebuttal testimony of those witnesses, which is

13· ·also opposed by TCC.

14· · · · · · The third motion is our motion to compel certain

15· ·documents in our request for production.· We have filed

16· ·with you on Monday our response to that.

17· · · · · · So as far as we know, those are the three items

18· ·that are outstanding that we are the most concerned with.

19· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And I think by that

20· ·listing, there's four.· There's the public comment versus

21· ·prefile.· There's the motion for reconsideration you

22· ·detailed.· There's the motion to compel certain documents

23· ·and the Scout Clean Energy's opposition.

24· · · · · · And then there's the applicant's motion to

25· ·strike rebuttal and your response that came in on this



·1· ·first motion and your response this past week.

·2· · · · · · I think I also have, Ms. Voelckers, a motion --

·3· ·I think it's really going to be the agreed order we

·4· ·talked about last week on the motion to supplement.  I

·5· ·think those came in on -- since our hearing last time or

·6· ·since our prehearing conference -- I can try to scroll

·7· ·through --

·8· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.

·9· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- emails and find them.

10· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.· Shona

11· ·Voelckers.

12· · · · · · That should be in your inbox.· And it just -- it

13· ·took us a couple of days, given all of the other

14· ·briefing.

15· · · · · · But we did circulate that and made sure that

16· ·that was okay with the applicant, the way that it was

17· ·phrased.· And also attached to my email is the deposition

18· ·transcript for Mr. Kobus.

19· · · · · · The deposition transcripts and exhibits for

20· ·Yakama Nation's motion to supplement were already

21· ·provided.· And I know that Ms. Masengale was making sure

22· ·that those were all able to be put online as well so that

23· ·anyone could access those once the order is entered.

24· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· So then by my count,

25· ·we're up to a fifth order, depending on 5A, 5B, however



·1· ·many orders, taking into consideration those motions to

·2· ·supplement from Yakama Nation.

·3· · · · · · Does the applicant see anything more outstanding

·4· ·than those five that we've talked about so far?

·5· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I don't believe so, Your Honor.

·6· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Harper, was the County looking

·7· ·for anything else that I still owe the parties?

·8· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No, I don't believe so, Your Honor.

·9· ·Thank you.

10· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· For counsel for the environment,

11· ·anything else that you are looking for that I still need

12· ·to get to?

13· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· No.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · We do still plan on submitting supplemental

15· ·testimony, hopefully, today from our witness.· I was not

16· ·able to submit that previously because of lack of access

17· ·to internet.· So that's the only thing outstanding for

18· ·us.

19· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And do you anticipate

20· ·that any of the parties will be objecting to that

21· ·supplemental testimony, Ms. Reyneveld?· I'm not sure what

22· ·discussions you may have had about that.

23· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I do not anticipate that, no.

24· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, was the applicant

25· ·considering, if you know what's going to be supplemented,



·1· ·any concerns with CFE's witness?

·2· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· You know, Your Honor, this is an

·3· ·awkward question to ask -- or answer because we don't

·4· ·know exactly what it would be.

·5· · · · · · I would say that before Ms. Reyneveld went to

·6· ·Maui, we did talk about it briefly and it didn't seem

·7· ·like we would have an issue.· But I guess it's -- I would

·8· ·like to reserve the opportunity to object to it if

·9· ·there's reason to do so.· I guess if I could just leave

10· ·it at that.· I don't anticipate -- because we did --

11· ·Ms. --

12· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yeah, and I'm not asking --

13· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Sorry.

14· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I'm not asking, Mr. McMahan, that

15· ·you waive any right once you've read it.· But I'm just

16· ·looking for, should I be anticipating any further

17· ·motions, whether in writing or verbally at one of our

18· ·housekeeping sessions?

19· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I don't think so because I think I

20· ·have -- we had good conversation with the CFE and so

21· ·that's my answer.· I don't think so.

22· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And, again, I don't expect

23· ·attorneys to be predicting with any better luck than I

24· ·had in front of military court-martial telling a judge

25· ·how long a witness would take.· So I get it.



·1· · · · · · On this side of the bench, it's a lot easier to

·2· ·ask for information than it might be to provide it with

·3· ·any fidelity.

·4· · · · · · Let me go, then, to Mr. Aramburu.

·5· · · · · · Any other items besides those five that -- other

·6· ·than the pending motion we talked about earlier under

·7· ·No. 2 in the agenda?

·8· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· No.· There's been the motion to

·9· ·supplement the Kobus deposition.· We've filed a response

10· ·to that just at 10:00 o'clock this morning.· So I think

11· ·that's on your list.

12· · · · · · I do have one additional question, and it arises

13· ·from this memorandum that we received at 1:05 this

14· ·afternoon.

15· · · · · · On Page 2, there is a discussion of the east

16· ·solar array size reduction.· And there's a paragraph that

17· ·begins, "Rationale for change."· And the second sentence

18· ·says, "In a settlement agreement, Scout Clean Energy is

19· ·committed to reduce solar generation from this location

20· ·by approximately 100 megawatts."

21· · · · · · I am not -- I have not seen a settlement

22· ·agreement, and I think I would like the applicant to

23· ·explain what that settlement agreement is.· And if

24· ·it's -- and if one exists, that he make it available to

25· ·us.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan.

·2· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·3· · · · · · Yeah, we have been -- I would say a settlement

·4· ·agreement probably ought to say "proposed settlement

·5· ·agreement."· We -- Ms. Reyneveld can step in here too.

·6· · · · · · We had -- during the spring, in particular, we

·7· ·had some productive conversations with the counsel for

·8· ·the environment on a variety of issues to deal with.

·9· ·Some occurred, and Mr. McGyver's concerns regarding

10· ·habitat impacts any impacts on any of the species and the

11· ·like.

12· · · · · · And in that discussion, we -- the applicant

13· ·agreed to modify the east solar array, to remove it.

14· ·Essentially remove it from a habitat that was of concern

15· ·to the CFE.

16· · · · · · So that is what that is about.· And so that --

17· ·so we're documenting that we have minimized the impact of

18· ·that area.

19· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And so that's not an agreement

20· ·that's been signed or submitted to the council; is that

21· ·correct?

22· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· That is correct.· No agreement has

23· ·been signed or submitted.· And as I, and Ms. Reyneveld

24· ·can weigh in here, as I understand it, such a thing would

25· ·have to be approved by the attorney general's office



·1· ·anyway.

·2· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes, that's correct.· That's

·3· ·a --

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Go ahead, Ms. Reyneveld.· I want

·5· ·you to address also the timing of when that might be

·6· ·submitted.· And what, if any other -- from CFEs

·7· ·perspective, negotiations or inclusion of the other

·8· ·parties was done or is needed.

·9· · · · · · So let me have you start again.

10· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes.· We had early settlement

11· ·discussions, and they did particularly involve litigation

12· ·to the east solar field.· So Mr. McMahan is correct.

13· · · · · · We -- I mean, I don't think anything has been

14· ·decided other than I think those have been brought to our

15· ·office and up the chain.· We've considered them but have

16· ·not definitely arrived at any sort of settlement

17· ·agreement.· Those discussions are on hold currently.

18· · · · · · And from my recollection, we did involve all of

19· ·the parties in those initial discussions.· And the

20· ·settlement proposal was shared with all of the parties,

21· ·the most recent settlement proposal.· So this should not

22· ·be a surprise pertaining to that discussion, if my

23· ·recollection is correct.

24· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

25· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· This is Rick Aramburu.



·1· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Hold on a second, Mr. Aramburu.

·2· · · · · · If it's a settlement between just counsel for

·3· ·the environment and the applicant, Mr. McMahan, that

·4· ·would not preclude the other parties from either

·5· ·commenting on, objecting to, or continuing their own

·6· ·positions, but simply reflects the settlement between the

·7· ·applicant and the counsel for the environment; true?

·8· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· That is correct, Your Honor.

·9· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Correct.

10· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Arauburu.

11· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I just wanted to clarify my

12· ·statement, that I do believe we shared that proposal with

13· ·all of the parties.· So I think that they should have

14· ·received that.

15· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And, Ms. Reyneveld, they are free

16· ·to sign on to it as well but they don't have to; correct?

17· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· That's correct.· At this point,

18· ·no one has signed on to anything.

19· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· If CFE and the

20· ·applicant enter such an agreement, you would welcome the

21· ·other parties to either sign on or indicate via the

22· ·adjudication at some point, that they don't concur with

23· ·whatever the stipulation might be.

24· · · · · · Ms. Reyneveld; is that correct?

25· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· That's correct.· If and when we



·1· ·do, yes.

·2· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Now, Mr. Aramburu.

·3· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I am speaking for myself.· My

·4· ·inbox is filled with emails on this case, but I do not

·5· ·recall receiving any draft proposals or discussions of

·6· ·the settlement agreement from either the applicant or

·7· ·Ms. Reyneveld.· Perhaps I've missed one, but I have not

·8· ·seen such a document.

·9· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· (Multiple speakers.)

10· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, given Ms. Reyneveld's

11· ·position and other things that should have her attention

12· ·when we hang up today, would you care to provide any of

13· ·that email traffic, forward it to Mr. Aramburu and copy

14· ·Ms. Reyneveld so she'll know what's been sent and, of

15· ·course, copy the other parties?

16· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Sorry, Your Honor.· We spoke over

17· ·each other for a moment.

18· · · · · · So that's a request of the applicant to forward

19· ·that to the other parties?

20· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Correct.· And I don't need to see

21· ·it because it's not involving the council, but certainly

22· ·if it's something that staff has been involved in, then

23· ·copy the appropriate staff.· But I'm asking you to

24· ·relieve Ms. Reyneveld of the obligation today on Thursday

25· ·while she has other things to attend to.



·1· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· I would be happy to do that, Your

·2· ·Honor.

·3· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· So, Mr. Aramburu,

·4· ·hopefully your inbox will get even fuller later today.

·5· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Yes.· And thank you, Your Honor,

·6· ·for helping with that clarification.

·7· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· No worries.

·8· · · · · · On the agenda, then, I've got it looks like,

·9· ·five orders that I need to write and the motion today

10· ·regarding Mr. Kobus's supplemental testimony that I have

11· ·under advisement.· We may be able to deal with that on

12· ·the record next week.· So I've got some homework to do.

13· · · · · · Let me go around the room, then we'll switch to

14· ·Item No. 5 and we'll see what other miscellaneous or

15· ·last-minute questions.

16· · · · · · I think we've brought up the settlement

17· ·agreement and the other supplemental testimony that may

18· ·be coming in from counsel for the environment.

19· · · · · · But let me ask the applicant, is there any other

20· ·last-minute questions or concerns before we convene

21· ·everything Monday morning at 8:30?

22· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· No, Your Honor, as far as I'm

23· ·aware of.

24· · · · · · For Monday, I intend to get cross-examination

25· ·exhibits out to the parties for the land use section of



·1· ·the hearing beginning Monday.· So they can expect to

·2· ·receive that from us tomorrow.

·3· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I'm sorry.· What was it you're

·4· ·going to circulate?

·5· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Yeah.· Cross-examination exhibits

·6· ·for land use.

·7· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And if those are

·8· ·exhibits -- let me, again, since you mentioned that word,

·9· ·indicate to the parties.· I've consulted with

10· ·Ms. Masengale about the screen-sharing issues.· And I

11· ·know we had, in a technical shakeout on July 25th,

12· ·watched Mr. Aramburu share with success his screen.

13· · · · · · I'm hoping that all of the parties will be able

14· ·to do that themselves.· And if they are planning to have

15· ·Ms. Masengale put anything up on the screen on their

16· ·behalf, that those exhibits be identified by number and

17· ·that she affirmatively respond to you that she will have

18· ·that ready to share on your behalf.

19· · · · · · As it turns out, there have been some other

20· ·duties that are going to distract Ms. Masengale from

21· ·being on call during the hearing the entire dates.· So if

22· ·we're going to make use of EFSEC staff, I just want

23· ·parties to reach out in advance.· But otherwise, be

24· ·prepared to share your own screens so that council

25· ·members will be able to see things and will go on with



·1· ·any of those exhibits.

·2· · · · · · Mr. McMahan --

·3· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor.

·4· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- does that work for the

·5· ·applicant?

·6· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· Yes, Your Honor.

·7· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers.

·8· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· If I could ask in the interest

·9· ·of clarity and also making sure that we're kind of all

10· ·working off the same -- so I had planned to ask for

11· ·Ms. Masengale's assistance.· So it would be helpful to

12· ·know how far in advance she needs that information, with

13· ·the understanding that if we don't provide that to her,

14· ·we could still share the exhibits but we would need to do

15· ·it ourself.

16· · · · · · Did she have a timing request on that?

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I don't think Ms. Masengale is on

18· ·the call today to speak for herself.· If she is, I'll ask

19· ·her to speak up now, but I think she's out today.

20· · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· This is Andrea Grantham.· She is

21· ·out today and tomorrow as well.

22· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· So, Ms. Voelckers, what I

23· ·would suggest is that Monday morning at the housekeeping

24· ·session or if you would like to send an email prior, just

25· ·sometime early next week or depending on the date you're



·1· ·going to ask for her assistance, that we identify which

·2· ·parts of the hearing session we might want to have her or

·3· ·another member of EFSEC staff assist.

·4· · · · · · But certainly Yakama Nation will be permitted to

·5· ·display those exhibits that we need during

·6· ·cross-examination or for the supplemental testimony.  I

·7· ·believe it was a PowerPoint presentation to help walk

·8· ·through one of your witnesses' testimony.

·9· · · · · · So we'll get it done one way or the other.  I

10· ·just wanted to make sure -- I had made some promises for

11· ·Ms. Masengale and overpromised what I think her schedule

12· ·is going to allow her to deliver.

13· · · · · · If parties need assistance, we will find a way

14· ·to get those exhibits up on the screens and in front of

15· ·the council members so everybody can see them.· But I

16· ·just need to know those things in advance.· Probably by

17· ·at least 24 hours, but 48 would be preferred.· And that

18· ·would be the same for any other party seeking assistance

19· ·with displaying exhibits during the hearing.

20· · · · · · It's just really a troubleshooting matter to

21· ·make sure we have it ready to go, so there's not any

22· ·delay, given the tightness of the schedule that we have.

23· · · · · · Ms. Voelckers, does that address your concern?

24· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.· We will

25· ·continue to do our best to get all of that in an orderly



·1· ·fashion so we can share with Ms. Masengale.

·2· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And while I've got you

·3· ·talking, anything else that you wanted to bring up,

·4· ·outstanding issues before Monday morning?

·5· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, your Honor.

·6· · · · · · If you could humor me.· I just want to make sure

·7· ·that people can see me on camera.· I've been trying to

·8· ·work with our technical IT support staff.

·9· · · · · · So if you or anyone else -- I just turned my

10· ·camera on.· If you could let me know whether or not you

11· ·can see me, that would be great.

12· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Grantham, I'm not on camera

13· ·today myself.· I'm calling in by phone.

14· · · · · · Is Ms. Voelckers' camera working, as far as you

15· ·can tell?

16· · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Yes, I can see Ms. Voelckers.

17· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Okay.· Thank you so much for

18· ·humoring that.

19· · · · · · And I don't have anything else at this time.

20· · · · · · Thank you, Your Honor.

21· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Mr. Harper, anything

22· ·from the County?

23· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No.

24· · · · · · Thank you, Your Honor.

25· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu?



·1· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I don't see anything further for

·2· ·the day.· It sounds as though our housekeeping, if we

·3· ·want to call it that session for Monday, setting half an

·4· ·hour for that meeting may not be enough.· Perhaps we want

·5· ·to start early.

·6· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Well, I think we have a question

·7· ·as far as people's availability.· We should be able to

·8· ·bleed into the 9:00 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. adoption of

·9· ·uncalled land use witnesses.

10· · · · · · And what I might do, Mr. Aramburu, is let the

11· ·parties -- or the council members know that they don't

12· ·need to be on until 9:15 on Monday to take care of

13· ·Ms. Wadsworth and Mr. Wiley, but we'll see where they

14· ·are.· And if we need to go to 9:15 for housekeeping, we

15· ·will.

16· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms. Reyneveld.

18· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I guess my only question is, I

19· ·assume there's no objection to having expert witnesses

20· ·listen to the prior testimony of witnesses in their

21· ·subject matter.

22· · · · · · But I wanted to ask the question as to what the

23· ·protocol was pertaining to expert witnesses

24· ·participating.

25· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Reyneveld, my understanding is



·1· ·that there's no need to have them excluded.· They have

·2· ·all had a chance to read each other's direct testimony.

·3· ·They have all submitted their testimony.· So I'm not

·4· ·worried, like a normal trial, where credibility or people

·5· ·sticking to somebody else's story might come up.· All of

·6· ·the evidence that parties expect to come in has been

·7· ·disclosed.

·8· · · · · · So I would have no concerns, unless a party can

·9· ·make a very rational objection, why any other person or

10· ·expert testifying should be excluded from any other

11· ·witness's testimony.

12· · · · · · So that's my initial take on things.· There may

13· ·be an exception to that, but I think it will be incumbent

14· ·upon a party to let the others know that they want

15· ·someone excluded.· And then during housekeeping on the

16· ·day of, not now, during housekeeping on the day of, let

17· ·me know if there's any such concerns with people that

18· ·should be excluded beyond the arrangements we've made for

19· ·the confidential closed-record portions of the hearing.

20· · · · · · So, Ms. Reyneveld, I hope that addresses your

21· ·concern.· Your witness, certainly, I don't think would

22· ·have any -- they would be wanting to listen in to the

23· ·other wildlife testimony, I'm sure, so they can respond

24· ·to anything that they hear.· That would make sense to me.

25· · · · · · Does that answer your question?



·1· · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· It does.· Thank you, Your Honor.

·2· ·And that's correct.

·3· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Does anybody want to voice a

·4· ·general concern now as opposed to the instruction I'm

·5· ·giving you to let me know the day of witnesses, if

·6· ·there's anyone to be excluded?

·7· · · · · · Mr. McMahan.

·8· · · · · · MR. MCMAHAN:· No, Your Honor.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu.

10· · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I don't have anything further,

11· ·Your Honor.

12· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And, Ms. Voelckers, any

13· ·concerns with that?

14· · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· No, Your Honor.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And, Mr. Harper.

16· · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No concerns.

17· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· I think we've gone around

18· ·the room.

19· · · · · · Let me see if EFSEC staff has anything for me or

20· ·the parties regarding technology issues or scheduling

21· ·questions.

22· · · · · · Ms. Grantham, are you aware of anything I need

23· ·to raise today that hasn't already been discussed?

24· · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Not as of right now.

25· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· You'll let me know Monday



·1· ·morning as needed.

·2· · · · · · Mr. Thompson, it's your chance to participate.

·3· · · · · · Anything?

·4· · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· No.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Then with that, it's

·6· ·3:39, almost 3:40 p.m.· We are adjourned.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · (Prehearing adjourned at 3:39 p.m.)
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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that on Thursday, August 10,

 2   2023, at 2:01 p.m., before Michelle D. Elam, Certified

 3   Court Reporter, RPR, the following Prehearing

 4   Conference #5, was held, to wit:

 5

 6                         <<<<<< >>>>>>

 7

 8            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Good afternoon,

 9   everyone.  This is Judge Torem for the Final Prehearing

10   Conference No. 5 in the Scout Clean Energy application

11   for the Horse Heaven Wind Farm.

12            Let me take a look first if we have someone from

13   the applicant today.

14            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan here,

15   along with Ariel Stavitsky and Emily Schimelpfenig.

16            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,

17   Mr. McMahan.

18            For Benton County today?

19            MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper, Your Honor.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Good afternoon, Mr. Harper.

21            Counsel for the environment joining us today?

22            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah Reyneveld is here.

23            JUDGE TOREM:  I hope everything is safe where

24   you are, Ms. Reyneveld.

25            MS. REYNEVELD:  We are just --
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama --

 2            MS. REYNEVELD:  So thank you.  Yeah, we just now

 3   have food and electricity.  It's been pretty devastating

 4   over here.

 5            JUDGE TOREM:  I understand that Maui is not a

 6   fun place right now.  So stay safe.  Thank you very, very

 7   much for making time to join us today.

 8            For the Yakama Nation?

 9            MS. VOELCKERS:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.

10   Shona Voelckers for the Yakama Nation.  And I believe my

11   colleagues Mr. Jones and Ms. Houston are on as well.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  Thank you,

13   Ms. Voelckers.

14            And, Mr. Aramburu, are you there for Tri-Cities

15   C.A.R.E.S?

16            MR. ARAMBURU:  I am.

17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

18            Any other EFSEC staff want to identify or need

19   to participate today?

20            I know we have Ms. Grantham and our court

21   reporter today.

22            Mr. Thompson, are you on?

23            MR. THOMPSON:  I am on, yes.  I don't need to

24   participate.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.
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 1            I hope not.

 2            All right.  Let's move on to the agenda items,

 3   and I think we'll talk about further refinements and the

 4   adjudicative hearing schedule that the applicant's center

 5   around today.

 6            Mr. Aramburu, I did get your note, and I just

 7   sent some suggestions about Mr. Simon.

 8            So it looks like we have our land use topics all

 9   down to one-plus days.

10            Mr. Aramburu?

11            MR. ARAMBURU:  When you're ready to talk about

12   Mr. Simon, let me know.

13            JUDGE TOREM:  I will.

14            Let me see what the first day's schedule truly

15   looks like here.

16            We've got our housekeeping built into every day

17   in the morning.  There will be some days we don't need

18   it, so that may also affect, particularly Wednesday,

19   depending what we think about Mr. Simon's availability.

20            I'm taking a look at where we are on the land

21   use schedule there, and I think when we had talked last

22   time, there was a question of Ms. McClain being recalled

23   for other topics.

24            Mr. McMahan, did we sort that out or was it

25   Ms. Ragsdale?
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 1            MR. MCMAHAN:  (Inaudible) -- discussion about

 2   Ms. Ragsdale, but as to Ms. McClain, the issue there was

 3   the question of site retirement and that hadn't been

 4   something that we had originally thought about within the

 5   first day land use.  But I think we can pick that up, to

 6   the extent she has knowledge about the site restoration

 7   issues.  I think we can pick that up on Monday.

 8            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So it looks like we built

 9   in time for her before and after lunch.

10            The estimates look doable.  And I'm wondering if

11   anybody thinks there's any squeak time on Monday late

12   afternoon that we might fit in Mr. Simon, or my

13   preference, as I sent in the email just a moment ago,

14   some point on Wednesday, whether that's during our

15   housekeeping session or if we actually do end at 11:30,

16   the meeting for the afternoon is not scheduled until

17   1:30.  So we might be able to fill in a half an hour at

18   that point.

19            Mr. Aramburu, let me turn to you right now to

20   see where Mr. Simon might get rescheduled, if it really

21   is only 45 to 50 minutes.

22            MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, thank you, Judge Torem.

23            I do want to present a preliminary issue related

24   to the entirety of the hearing schedule.

25            We received just yesterday a brief from the
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 1   applicant.  And in that brief, it included some

 2   significant additional materials that were referenced for

 3   review by the council.

 4            These materials, though found in brief, were

 5   never provided -- were not provided to us with the brief.

 6   And it was only when Ms. Voelckers requested them that we

 7   received them.  Included in that is material from

 8   Mr. Kobus concerning the water issues.

 9            Mr. Examiner, these are significant new matters,

10   material changes in the project, material changes in

11   analysis that have been received literally an hour before

12   our final prehearing conference.

13            We think that's plainly violative of standards

14   of ethics, violative of standards of due process that

15   we -- that these -- we were treated to these surprises at

16   the -- just before the hearing starts and also with no

17   particular explanation of how this material is going to

18   be given to the council itself.

19            We also have outstanding, our objection to the

20   substance of the supplement to the Kobus deposition.  We

21   do not have rulings on witnesses as well.

22            So we think that because of this significant

23   late-filed material, without notice and without notice it

24   was coming, that a continuance is in order for at least a

25   month to allow us to review this new material that has
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 1   just arrived today.

 2            To do other -- to proceed without this

 3   continuance is to essentially have a hearing by ambush,

 4   by which additional material is submitted by the

 5   applicant, who knows how often, keeping everybody

 6   off-balance and off-guard.

 7            The memo that we received this morning, which is

 8   referenced in the brief, which is particularly important

 9   for this and apparently is expected to be read by the

10   council because it's a part of the brief, deals with

11   multiple changes in locations of wind turbines, locations

12   of projects shifting the battery operations from one side

13   of the project to the other, making changes in a variety

14   of things.

15            So the totality of this suggests that a

16   continuance of at least a month to allow review of this

17   material is entirely appropriate.

18            And I will point out that this material has all

19   been kind of foisted on us by the applicant without

20   notice, without indication that it was coming, and

21   without indication of how it was going to be treated in

22   an evidentiary manner in this prehearing conference.

23            So we think that due process compliance would

24   rule.  Attention to the public's participation in these

25   proceedings indicates that a continuance of at least a
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 1   month is necessary to review all of this new material.

 2            And that would indicate that the prehearing

 3   conference today should be canceled and a new one

 4   scheduled, based upon a new hearing schedule.

 5            So thank you for that.  I hope my motion is

 6   clear.

 7            JUDGE TOREM:  It's clear, and it's denied as far

 8   as the continuance.  That should be clear as well.

 9            Let me turn to the applicant and find out

10   exactly what this material was that was shared at

11   1:01 p.m. today, according to Ms. Stavitsky's email.

12            Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, I'm not sure who

13   wants to speak to it.

14            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes.

15            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, I would like to make

16   sure -- the sound quality coming from the applicant's

17   microphone has a little bit of an echo, so if you could

18   take it a little slower, the court reporter can still get

19   things down.  But I want to be kind to our court

20   reporter.

21            Go ahead, sir.

22            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

23            Can you hear me okay?

24            Can you hear me --

25            JUDGE TOREM:  That's a little better.
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 1            MR. MCMAHAN:  That's better.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  I can.  That's a little better.

 3            MR. MCMAHAN:  I appreciate the time.  Gave me an

 4   opportunity to lower my blood pressure down a little bit

 5   in the last two minutes.

 6            So let me explain what happened here.

 7            We have been in a process with EFSEC for a very

 8   long time, where EFSEC asks us for data requests.  And we

 9   had indicated to EFSEC some time ago that we have

10   continued to, as we go, modify the application to address

11   things we learn; ways to minimize, mitigate impacts;

12   additional information that EFSEC has asked specifically

13   of us for their work as they prepared the Final

14   Environmental Impact Statement.

15            So we did, in fact, accumulate a number of

16   issues that we were aware of that EFSEC had asked us for

17   in Data Request No. 9.  So we did submit that this week

18   in order to be responsive to EFSEC.

19            We did cite, in passing -- if I had to again, I

20   probably wouldn't have done it, but we did cite in

21   passing, reference to the memorandum that we submitted to

22   EFSEC.  And I believe there was also -- might have been a

23   reference to -- I think it might have been a reference to

24   a 2023 updated wildlife report, which also we provide

25   regularly to EFSEC, as they ask us for additional
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 1   information concerning the project.  So that's what we

 2   submitted.

 3            Now, I and our team here had certainly some

 4   sensitivity about doing that prior to moving along with

 5   the testimonial process.  Had I to do it again, I

 6   probably just wouldn't have put those references in the

 7   brief.  But we did it thinking this information will be

 8   posted on the EFSEC website and there will be access to

 9   it.

10            The problem, of course, is that EFSEC takes a

11   bit of time to get stuff posted on the website.  So this

12   afternoon, we offered to the parties, and Ariel

13   circulated to the parties, the memorandum, which was for

14   Data Request No. 9 to be submitted to EFSEC staff.

15            That's what we did.  It wasn't an ambush.  It

16   was what we have done throughout these whole proceedings

17   to respond to data requests that we've gotten from EFSEC

18   staff.  And our stuff was developed over the years and a

19   lot of stuff has developed over the last month.  And so

20   EFSEC asked us to accumulate that change information.

21            And we could have held off until the

22   adjudication was done, which didn't make sense to me.  We

23   could have -- and really, we just had the time over the

24   last few days to finish it up, the team, the Scout team

25   had time to finish it up.
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 1            There is no untoward motive here.  It was all in

 2   an effort to be as transparent and open as possible to

 3   provide this information as requested by the council.

 4            Yes, it coincided with the starting of the

 5   adjudication.  We will, if you want, if you think it

 6   best, Judge Torem, we'll reissue the brief taking those

 7   citations out of the brief.  I'm happy to do that.  And

 8   if there's anything else we can do to address this issue,

 9   we're happy to do that.

10            It is simply an effort to provide the best

11   information at the time it was requested of us by EFSEC

12   staff.  Nothing more.  Nothing more conspiratorial than

13   that.

14            JUDGE TOREM:  Well, Mr. McMahan I appreciate the

15   explanation.

16            I do see that there's essentially a one-page

17   cover letter and a 79-page memo.  It is noted that it's

18   responding to the Final Environmental Impact Statement

19   that staff is working on and not directly related, other

20   than the citations in the brief, to the adjudication.

21            Aside from what you've stated and explained,

22   Mr. McMahan, was there any attempt to make that evidence

23   as part of the hearing?

24            MR. MCMAHAN:  A little solemn here, but, no.  In

25   fact, we said that; that this -- we did not intend to
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 1   have this be part of the adjudication hearing.  We

 2   recognized that, you know, it's been challenging.

 3            So, no, that was not our intention.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me suggest, then, as I

 5   haven't got my finger exactly on what page this material

 6   is cited to, is it only on one or two pages of the

 7   applicant's brief?

 8            MR. MCMAHAN:  It is.  Yes, Your Honor.  I think

 9   mostly footnotes.  No.  I'm sorry.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me have you --

11            MR. MCMAHAN:  I'm sorry.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead.

13            MR. MCMAHAN:  We're having a mute button

14   problem.

15            So, yes, aside from -- I think in a couple of

16   footnotes in the brief, and we would be happy to take

17   those out.

18            JUDGE TOREM:  Why don't you do this:  As opposed

19   to taking them out, so it's exactly clear to all parties

20   on the line, go back in and use the strike-out feature of

21   Word.

22            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sure.

23            JUDGE TOREM:  And if that's not helpful, I'm

24   sure there's a Sharpie in your office.  Black out that

25   material, if you have to do it manually, and resubmit by
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 1   close of business today.  I'll make sure that staff

 2   that's on the phone here is able to let counsel know to

 3   use the Version 2 of your brief as opposed to the

 4   Version 1.

 5            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes.

 6            JUDGE TOREM:  And they can -- everybody will see

 7   that they are getting this.  It's been stricken.  And

 8   these attachments that you sent out today won't be part

 9   of the adjudication, but staff will continue to use the

10   information supplied to them as part of your response to

11   Data Request No. 9.

12            So I think we've now taken care of that

13   particular issue of any ambush.

14            And, again, the continuance request, based on

15   that, is denied.

16            And now the evidentiary issue is taken care of

17   as well.

18            Is there anything else --

19            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor?

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, go ahead.

21            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22            Just -- before we move forward, Yakama Nation,

23   if I could make my own verbal motion for the record,

24   understanding what -- all I have heard.  We have our own

25   motion to make, and I think that we should be able to
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 1   make it on the record.  And I would like to do that

 2   before we move forward so that we're not coming back to

 3   the same issue.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Is it in regard to what

 5   Mr. Aramburu raised or something different?

 6            MS. VOELCKERS:  In regard to what Mr. Aramburu

 7   raised.

 8            JUDGE TOREM:  I'll let you go ahead and make

 9   your motion and then we'll see if there's any additional

10   rulings that need to be made.

11            Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.

12            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

13            The Yakama Nation has its own motion to continue

14   the adjudication because of applicant's violation of

15   WAC 463-60-116.

16            Applicant cited materials in its prehearing

17   brief that were not only unavailable to any other party

18   but actually also include extremely untimely

19   modifications to the project design that is the subject

20   of this adjudication, multiple witnesses' testimony, and

21   other parties' own prehearing briefs.

22            I would respectfully ask that Your Honor review

23   the memorandum itself before ruling on our motion because

24   this is not simply an issue of striking footnotes.

25            Applicant has provided absolutely no
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 1   justification for its failure to disclose any of this

 2   information before this afternoon.  And this proposed

 3   project redesign does not fit within what is contemplated

 4   under WAC 463-60-116.

 5            As Mr. McMahan said, a lot of information has

 6   developed, but it's not clear that this information was

 7   not developed this week and it is directly relevant to

 8   this proceeding.

 9            Yakama Nation does not take its motion to

10   continue lightly, as we ourselves have been working

11   diligently and preparing in good faith.  But is truly

12   unworkable to be responding to this level of gamesmanship

13   in the midst of brief drafting, witness prep, and hearing

14   prep.

15            This new information provides a clear --

16   presents a clear prejudice to our client, Yakama Nation.

17   We have essentially prepared for a hearing on a project

18   that is now apparently no longer before the council.

19            It is not reasonable to ask the parties to

20   prepare for this new project design over the weekend.  We

21   haven't actually even been afforded the time to discuss

22   this new information with our own client before today's

23   conference.

24            In order to ensure that all parties can cite to

25   a fair record, the adjudication should be continued to
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 1   allow sufficient response.

 2            The applicant has turned their proposal into a

 3   constantly evolving proposal, and Your Honor should draw

 4   a line and continue the hearing for the time necessary to

 5   ensure that all parties are talking about the same thing.

 6            It is clear that applicant is now talking about

 7   a different proposal than the one that we had presented

 8   our cases on -- prepared our cases on for the hearing set

 9   on Monday.

10            Even if the applicant does withdraw its footnote

11   citations, that does not cure the prejudice because there

12   are clearly project redesign conversations happening

13   outside the adjudicative process and outside of the

14   information shared with the other parties.

15            Thank you for considering our motion.

16            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.

17            MR. ARAMBURU:  Mr. Examiner, I would like to be

18   heard as well, please.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on, Mr. Aramburu.

20            This is the Yakama Nation's motion.

21            MR. ARAMBURU:  I understand.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  I've heard you on your motion and

23   I've issued my ruling.

24            Let me have the applicant respond, and then

25   we'll see if there's anything that TCC needs to respond
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 1   to back.

 2            Mr. McMahan.

 3            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, this is Ariel

 4   Stavitsky.  I can respond to this one.

 5            You know, our reasoning here is the same as our

 6   response to TCC's similar motion.  I think this is really

 7   a product of these two parallel processes, this

 8   adjudication and the SEPA process, the DRA request

 9   process that are proceeding in tandem.

10            And, Your Honor --

11            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on a second.  Hold on a

12   second, Ms. Stavitsky.

13            I'm a little worried that you're speaking

14   quickly, and I'm worried that the sound quality is

15   deteriorating.  So whatever Mr. McMahan did to improve

16   the auditory sound quality coming from your conference

17   room, if you would do the same.  And just slow down for

18   me and then we'll hear the rest of your explanation.

19            MS. STAVITSKY:  My apologies.  I'll try to keep

20   the court reporter in mind.

21            I was stating that, you know, this issue is

22   really a product of the fact that we have these two

23   parallel processes proceeding in tandem:  The SEPA data

24   request process and this adjudication.

25            So as Mr. McMahan explained, you know, these are
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 1   ongoing -- this is an iterative process and we are

 2   providing updated information to EFSEC in response to

 3   their data requests.

 4            And so this is our attempt to provide, you know,

 5   improved transparency, provide all parties with as much

 6   information as we possibly can, particularly given

 7   that -- well, I know that TCC and Yakama Nation have had

 8   concerns about the fact that, you know, information

 9   that's part of the EIS process is not making it into the

10   adjudication.

11            So this is not an attempt to ambush.  This is an

12   attempt to provide as much information as we can.  But

13   if, you know, based on the timing of this adjudication,

14   if it's too much to be provided, this updated

15   information, we can certainly, you know, stall the clock

16   and base the adjudication on -- not on this updated

17   information.

18            So, you know, we're happy to respond however

19   makes the most sense in terms of making sure that both of

20   these processes can proceed uninterrupted.

21            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Stavitsky.

22            Mr. Aramburu, anything to add to what

23   Ms. Voelckers said, in response to what Ms. Stavitsky

24   said, either way?  I'll give you a few minutes.  Go

25   ahead, sir.
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 1            MR. ARAMBURU:  I mean, the general response here

 2   is, this is crazy.  They have sent us a memo, now, that

 3   says, for example, remove all solar array infrastructure

 4   west of I-82.

 5            Remove solar infrastructure within 1 mile of

 6   I-82.

 7            Remove four turbines near Benton City.

 8            So this -- it goes on with 11 pages of this.

 9            So the council has to understand what the

10   project is before it.  And the project has been changed

11   by the applicant.  It's not just a matter of deleting

12   footnotes and other things.  The project has been

13   changed.

14            So we're going to go ahead with days and days of

15   testimony on a project that's been changed.  That makes

16   no sense of any kind.  Completely violative of due

17   process.

18            And I guess I would like to know what you're

19   going to tell the council that the project is because

20   you're going to have to tell them the project has been

21   changed at 1:05 p.m. on August 10 by this memo from the

22   applicant.

23            This makes no sense at all and is going to

24   confuse council members, and council members are going to

25   question why they are reviewing a project that's been
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 1   changed by the applicant.  It makes no sense of any kind.

 2            MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, this is Ken Harper.

 3   Can I be heard?

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  Of course, Mr. Harper.  You're

 5   next.

 6            MR. HARPER:  I would just like to state for the

 7   record that the County joins in these motions.  It is

 8   going to be a significant impediment to

 9   cross-examination.

10            I've been working on my cross-examination,

11   particularly of Ms. McClain.  And now it is very

12   difficult for me to understand how the cross-examination

13   should be modified.

14            Mr. McMahan's suggestion, or I guess his action

15   of striking portions of the brief does not actually

16   address Mr. Aramburu's point, which is that the project

17   is in a state of transition.

18            So the County joins in the motion, and the

19   County renews its earlier motion that this entire matter

20   should be stayed until there's an FEIS and we actually

21   have a project that's a fit subject for adjudication.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

23            We all know that I've already denied

24   continuances based on waiting for the FEIS.  There's not

25   a basis in law to do so.
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 1            That aside, I understand where the parties are

 2   coming from on a moving target.

 3            Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, Ms. Schimelpfenig,

 4   would you care to give an explanation of why the

 5   applicant continues to make minor and/or major changes to

 6   the original proposal that we first saw in the

 7   application for site certification filed on February 8th

 8   of 2021?

 9            And, Mr. McMahan, if you want to take into

10   account the ongoing debates or discussion of the project

11   with council staff and how a draft environmental impact

12   statement is being responded to with various

13   recommendations for mitigation that are not in dispute by

14   the applicant and coming up with the update prior to the

15   adjudicative hearing, as required by administrative code

16   provisions adopted by EFSEC, and give the overview of

17   what you think the council was expecting from the

18   applicant and what the applicant has been trying to do by

19   filing the changes, despite the frustration it might

20   create for anybody trying to figure out what we're

21   adjudicating here the rest of the month.

22            So with all of that, as a compound question,

23   please, enlighten everybody on the call what the

24   applicant has been up to.

25            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.
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 1            And it's not just what the applicant has been up

 2   to, we have gone through nine data requests for the life

 3   of the project.  This is not -- this process is not one

 4   where you file an application and it sits there until the

 5   adjudication and then an approval is issued.

 6            This is, as Ms. Stavitsky indicated, it's a

 7   two-track process.  It's an iterative process that we've

 8   been dealing with for the life of the project.

 9            And the other irony here is what's actually

10   proposed with this information is a net reduction of

11   impact.  That's what we have been talking with EFSEC

12   staff about in terms of the intent of these

13   modifications.

14            And, you know, it is part of a process that we

15   have been on for a very long time.  We debated, should we

16   just not move this forward right now.  We thought in the

17   interest of transparency, that it was best to put it out

18   there so that people understood.

19            And, again, does not -- these are not

20   modifications that are going to increase impacts or

21   dramatically change the project.  They are fairly nuanced

22   and they do, in fact, accomplish net reduction of impact.

23            JUDGE TOREM:  And in your experience, which may

24   differ from mine, has this been, for other clients that

25   you represented before EFSEC, essentially a parallel of
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 1   past practices reaching back to things done in Kittitas

 2   County, things done at the Tesoro matter, which I don't

 3   think you were on, or the Whistling Ridge project?

 4            Has this been the ongoing funneling down of

 5   impact prior to the council actually considering what's

 6   in front of them?

 7            MR. MCMAHAN:  It absolutely has.  In fact, the

 8   Whistling Bridge project, during the adjudication,

 9   literally live during the adjudication, modifications

10   were made, you know, when the process was underway.

11            So this is really -- in terms of the several

12   projects I've been involved in, there's nothing different

13   about this.  It has to do with the way the EFSEC process

14   works.  And the idea is that as EFSEC gains greater

15   knowledge through all of these proceedings and it tends

16   to, you know, accelerate at this point in time,

17   Judge Torem, because a lot of information is being

18   developed as we learn more about each others' positions

19   in the case.

20            We are being responsive and we are being

21   responsive in a way that we've been directed by EFSEC

22   council staff to provide information as it evolves and as

23   it develops.

24            There's nothing different that has been handled

25   in the other projects I've been involved in.
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 1            And, no, I didn't represent Tesoro.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well, I've heard from

 3   the applicants in response and I've heard, Ms. Voelckers.

 4   I appreciate what you've raised, what Mr. Aramburu has

 5   supplemented, and what Mr. Harper has added as well.

 6            Ms. Reyneveld, anything you wanted to add on

 7   this?

 8            MS. REYNEVELD:  So I have been out of internet

 9   access for -- until earlier this morning and have not had

10   an opportunity to review the prehearing briefs of any of

11   the parties.  And so I do not have the benefit of having

12   reviewed the updated information fully that the applicant

13   provided.

14            You know, I do think a continuance makes sense

15   for us to be able to review the information, at least for

16   counsel for the environment, if it is, indeed, correct,

17   that there have been reductions or, you know, serious

18   modifications or mitigative measures that have been

19   proposed.  In response to the new information, I know

20   that I would like a little bit more time to review it

21   with my witness.

22            With that said, I have not had the benefit of

23   the other parties of reviewing the information because

24   I'm just not getting internet access, but would certainly

25   benefit from a brief continuance to review the
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 1   information, just so that we are all on the same page in

 2   terms of the actual project proposal that we're

 3   litigating.

 4            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan here.

 5            I want to ground this in a very specific actual

 6   thing that happened in the Kittitas Valley case, and I

 7   know that you were there at the time.

 8            During the adjudication and close to the time

 9   the case was depleted, the applicant in that case put on

10   the table, and the citing council was happy to see it, a

11   standard of four times to remind setback that would deal

12   with a lot of issues raised by residential landowners.

13   And that happened as we were in the closing days or

14   moments of the adjudication of Kittitas Valley.

15            And I don't remember, frankly, you know,

16   whether -- if there was controversy around that, but it

17   was an issue of some importance to the cite council; that

18   we were able to resolve prior to the close of the

19   adjudication.

20            I could probably come up with other examples,

21   but that's the one that really sticks out to me, Your

22   Honor.

23            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, if I could respond

24   to a couple of things that Mr. McMahan had said, I would

25   appreciate the opportunity.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.

 2            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 3            I just want to clarify that our motion, while we

 4   certainly do stand by the original motion continuance

 5   around the lack of FEIS, is not out of -- our motion

 6   today is not out of any confusion about what is happening

 7   between the applicant and EFSEC on the SEPA side.

 8            It is about the need for substantive project

 9   modifications to be shared in a timely way.  And I think

10   that that is clearly supported by the WAC, which allows

11   the applicant to provide this information up to 30 days

12   before the hearing.  But it's not supported to do it now.

13            And while Mr. McMahan concedes that there's a

14   net reduction in environmental impacts, respectfully,

15   none of the lawyers are the ones that can really testify

16   to that.  Like, we need time for our experts and their

17   experts to be able to speak about that.

18            And so I just wanted to emphasize that we're not

19   saying that the applicant and EFSEC cannot talk through

20   these information exchanges and requests for further

21   information.  But when it is a project design

22   modification, that is a substantive change.  And this

23   last -- you know, last night or today, however you want

24   to count this new information, it's not compliant with

25   any rule.  And we need some sort of line here that allows
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 1   us to be talking about the same thing on Monday.

 2            So that's really what we're asking for here.

 3   And there might be certain positives that come out of

 4   certain modifications, but no one has had a chance to

 5   review this memo besides the applicant.

 6            And so we really need the opportunity for the

 7   folks that we've called to testify over the next two

 8   weeks to be able to make that analysis, not the lawyers

 9   today.

10            So thank you for your consideration.

11            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.

12            Mr. McMahan, this memo that's being referred to,

13   that's the one that was circulated an hour before we

14   started today; is that correct?

15            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct.

16            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Voelckers, I'm

17   going to take that under advisement until Monday morning.

18   At 8:30, we'll take it up again and you can summarize the

19   motion on behalf of the other parties as well because I

20   don't want to take an extended amount of time at 8:30

21   Monday morning.  But I'll consider it.  I'll take a look

22   at the memo in the days ahead.

23            My thought is that all of the parties are going

24   to bring Monday morning with them, their availability or

25   not, for the week of September 25th through the 29th for
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 1   one to two days of additional supplemental adjudicative

 2   hearing, if I decide to grant the motion in part.  So I

 3   want that material by the end of the day on Monday the

 4   14th of August.  Everybody will have their availability

 5   for that week of September 25th to 29th.

 6            I may want an additional four to eight hours of

 7   hearing time split over one or two days, depending on

 8   whether this raises, truly, any new issues that I think

 9   need to be talked about 30 days after the close of the

10   hearing, which would set back the filing of posthearing

11   briefs accordingly.

12            If I grant a motion to continue the entire

13   hearing, I'll let you know Monday morning.  But I'm not

14   going to give you a ruling on that today.

15            So let's move on to the original portions of

16   today's prehearing conference.

17            I appreciate the reaction time today to some of

18   the late-breaking filings.  So no critique imposed.

19            Much as it's still baseball season, you continue

20   to impress me with curve balls, all of you, and I'm going

21   to do my best to take my time before I swing at any of

22   these pitches.

23            So let's go back to the original things that

24   were on the agenda for today.  One of them was reviewing

25   the schedule, and I want to come back to Mr. Simon's
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 1   testimony.

 2            Given the discussion we've had today and what it

 3   may have an impact on Ms. McClain's cross-examination, I

 4   certainly want to take back anything I said in my

 5   late-breaking email two minutes before today's

 6   conference.

 7            We're not going to put Mr. Simon on Monday.

 8   Tuesday looks pretty full.  My suggestion is that we

 9   either bridge Tuesday into Wednesday or we run the

10   hearing an extra half hour to one hour on Wednesday,

11   August the 16th.

12            Mr. Aramburu, can you make Mr. Simon available

13   either late Tuesday and/or late Wednesday?

14            MR. MCMAHAN:  We've -- Mr. Simon has a long

15   scheduled trip to Alaska.

16            JUDGE TOREM:  That's not the issue.  That's not

17   the issue.  He's out for that week.

18            Can you make him available next Tuesday or next

19   Wednesday?

20            MR. MCMAHAN:  I can make him available by way of

21   email and phone conversations with him.  He can be

22   available at noon on Friday, August 25, which is when he

23   is currently scheduled.  He will be getting off -- he's

24   stepping off an airplane from Alaska, but he can be

25   available for cross-examination at that time.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Let's go with that as Plan B.  I

 2   don't trust airline schedules to deliver witnesses to a

 3   place where it's quiet.

 4            Can he be available next week, since he's

 5   apparently not in Alaska next week?

 6            MR. MCMAHAN:  My proposal would be Friday,

 7   August 25, which is on his return from Alaska.

 8            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Are you willing, if

 9   he's not available within 15 minutes of the scheduled

10   time, that he waives his right to testify?

11            MR. MCMAHAN:  I can't do that.  I just don't

12   know what the schedules are.  He is scheduled to get off

13   the airplane at 11:00 o'clock in the morning.  I can make

14   sure that he is by a phone at noon to be able to be

15   available for cross-examination.  But I cannot account

16   for the vagaries of travel for these witnesses.

17            JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  As I recall, Mr. Aramburu,

18   you had no control over the Blue Angles last Thursday,

19   and I'm not going to grant you any control over what I

20   presume is an Alaska Airlines flight from Anchorage.

21            If he is to be made available on Friday, that is

22   at TCC's peril.  I am offering you going once, going

23   twice, going three times today, an opportunity to have

24   him testify next week on either Tuesday, late in the day,

25   or Wednesday, before the council meeting.
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 1            Would you like those options, or would you like

 2   to gamble next Friday on the 25th?

 3            MR. MCMAHAN:  I would like to consult with him

 4   and get back to you by the end of the day.

 5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  If you'll send an

 6   email with your selection, it will be accommodated

 7   accordingly.

 8            So, again, his choices are, Tuesday -- let me

 9   roll back up to it -- August 15th at 4:00 o'clock;

10   Wednesday, August 16th at 11:30 -- I think there's a

11   typographical error there.  It should say a.m.  Or per

12   your suggestion, Friday, August 25th at noon.

13            Let me know your preference.  If it's next week,

14   we'll talk about it at the housekeeping session on

15   Monday.  If it's the following week on Friday, I'm

16   putting it on the record today:  If he's not available at

17   the designated time, we'll check the flight number.  And

18   at my discretion and the council's indulgence, we may

19   wait for him.

20            But if he's not available, I'm not going to have

21   however many people are on the line here today and the

22   entire council wait for that flight to come in on Friday.

23   That will be a gamble that TCC takes or not.  If he's not

24   present to adopt his testimony, it will be stricken.

25            Are we absolutely clear on that, Mr. Aramburu?
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 1            MR. MCMAHAN:  We disagree but we're clear.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  Perfect.

 3            All right.  Let's move on to the rest of the

 4   schedule.

 5            Is there anything else I need to know beyond

 6   what's obvious on the piece here?  And, again, the

 7   Wednesday, 11:30 a.m., we would fit Mr. Simon in with the

 8   swearing in of uncalled wildlife witnesses, which should

 9   take mere moments.  That's why that particular time looks

10   attractive to me.

11            From the applicant, anything else I need to know

12   that appears to be -- that the schedule might go

13   sideways, so I can anticipate any dates that were -- I

14   don't know, discussions that happened off line that

15   there's any worry about, the estimates from the

16   applicant's perspective?

17            MS. STAVITSKY:  No, Your Honor.  We believe that

18   list that was just circulated is still accurate, from our

19   perspective.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Harper, I know

21   that Ms. Foster was covering the last couple of

22   prehearings.

23            From your review of all of this, does the County

24   have any concerns?

25            MR. HARPER:  No, Your Honor.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, I know you've been

 2   out of internet for a piece of time due to the

 3   devastation in Maui.

 4            From what you've participated in and getting the

 5   schedule together, does counsel for the environment have

 6   any concerns?

 7            MS. REYNEVELD:  No, counsel for the environment

 8   does not have any concerns at this time.

 9            Thank you, Judge.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, were you

11   intending to have submitted a prehearing brief?  In my

12   accounting, I did not see one come in.  I may have missed

13   it.

14            MS. REYNEVELD:  Counsel for the environment was

15   not intending to submit a prehearing brief, but we will

16   be submitting a posthearing brief.

17            Thank you for --

18            JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.

19            MS. REYNEVELD:  Thank you for asking, though,

20   because I wouldn't have been able to submit it yesterday.

21            JUDGE TOREM:  Understood.  I wanted to see if

22   there was going to be any accommodation needed, but it

23   sounds like we'll wait for posthearing briefs from you.

24   And hopefully the internet situation and the general

25   situation is better.
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 1            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Thank you.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, anything else that

 3   I need to know about the schedule that Yakama Nation is

 4   still concerned with?

 5            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 6            I would like to better understand the plan for

 7   Mr. Kobus's recent -- or, excuse me, Stoel's recent

 8   motion to supplement Mr. Kobus's testimony before

 9   confirming our agreement.

10            With the schedule as emailed on August 9th, we

11   are in agreement with what was emailed and that we did

12   workshop collaboratively with Stoel, but I think there's

13   still a question that remains about Mr. Kobus's

14   testimony.  And so we would like to wait for that to be

15   resolved before we agree with the schedule in its

16   entirety.

17            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Voelckers, it's my

18   understanding that Mr. Kobus does not appear on the

19   witness list; is that correct?

20            MS. VOELCKERS:  Correct, Your Honor, because

21   this was developed before -- or, I mean, this has been a

22   work in progress, but the motion to supplement was just

23   so recently filed that it was not accounted for on this

24   list.  And, in fact, it was filed after we gave our final

25   feedback to the applicant on the list that you have in

0037

 1   front of you.

 2            And so seeing now that there is a proposal for

 3   him to sit for cross-examination, if Your Honor does

 4   allow that new supplemental testimony to come in, we

 5   would like to reserve the right to cross-examine him.

 6   And I don't know what his general availability is, but I

 7   think there's certainly time left at the end of the

 8   hearing for that.

 9            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me hear from Mr. McMahan or

10   someone else at the Stoel Rives office as to the

11   intention and timing, if that supplemental testimony is

12   admitted in conjunction with his discovery deposition.

13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, your Honor.  Tim

14   McMahan here.

15            We notified the parties at the last prehearing

16   conference that we were most likely to be submitting some

17   supplemental testimony to correct some understanding --

18   some misunderstandings about the battery energy storage

19   system, technology, and water safety around the BESS

20   systems.

21            We notified everyone last prehearing conference

22   that we felt that was going to be necessary.  We intended

23   to provide some supplementary testimony in order to

24   correct some information and to update some information.

25   So we have done that.

0038

 1            I recognize that Mr. Aramburu has strongly

 2   objected to that testimony.  Our view is that it would be

 3   inaccurate to submit to the citing council prior

 4   information, design information, prior information about

 5   the BESS facility -- battery energy storage system

 6   facility because that is just simply not as described in

 7   the original testimony.  It's just simply not the way

 8   it's going to be proposed to EFSEC.

 9            So we -- and I apologize that it took some days

10   to pull this together because, frankly, this was new

11   stuff for me to learn and figure out.  And it took a bit

12   to have sufficiency and technical information so that we

13   could provide helpful information to the citing council

14   to understand the safety issues around the BESS -- the

15   battery energy storage facility -- around the BESS

16   facility.

17            So that's what we did.  We felt that it was

18   just -- it was not productive or fruitful to give the

19   council something that was not accurate.  So we just

20   tried to provide accurate information with that

21   supplemental testimony.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  One more question, Mr. McMahan.

23   And, again, slow down a little bit for the court

24   reporter.

25            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  When would Mr. McMahan be --

 2   sorry.

 3            When would Mr. Kobus be available to testify?

 4   Would that also be on Friday, August 25th in the

 5   afternoon?

 6            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Mr. Kobus is along for

 7   the ride, and we will make him available if

 8   cross-examination is desired whenever it fits within the

 9   schedule.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  That's good to know.

11            Ms. Voelckers, once I have a chance to take a

12   look at that supplemental testimony, if it is admitted,

13   I'll let the parties know as soon as possible.  It may be

14   Monday morning at the housekeeping.  It may then be

15   something to renew the -- if it is admitted, renew the

16   motions or add to the motions a reason for the

17   continuance and/or the supplemental dates of hearing that

18   I mentioned earlier, that would be, without looking at

19   the council's schedule, possibly the week of

20   September 25th to 29th.

21            Those are dates that I think are 30 days after

22   the close of the hearing and responsive to the length of

23   continuance the parties were seeking.  So that's why I've

24   selected that week to determine your availabilities.

25            Mr. McMahan, if I do end up admitting the
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 1   testimony and I believe that it needs additional time for

 2   the parties, that would be when I would ask Mr. Kobus to

 3   make himself available for cross-exam.

 4            If I admit the testimony supplementally to go

 5   with what's in the deposition and I think it's not

 6   something the parties need 30 days, then we'll see if

 7   he's available at another place in the hearing.  But

 8   likely Friday, August 25th, with some of that afternoon

 9   time.  And we'll schedule it after the time that we might

10   have for Mr. Simon, if that's the choice that TCC makes

11   to present him, as opposed to the current scheduled time.

12   But we'll take that matter up later.

13            MR. MCMAHAN:  That's fine.  Thank you, Your

14   Honor.

15            MR. ARAMBURU:  Judge, may I be heard on these

16   matters briefly?

17            JUDGE TOREM:  Certainly.  Go ahead,

18   Mr. Aramburu.

19            MR. ARAMBURU:  First of all, with respect to

20   witness scheduling, we have been in contact with Lonnie

21   Click from the Benton Fire District.  And he is scheduled

22   for Wednesday, August 23, at 9:30.

23            It turns out he is not available on that day but

24   he is available on August 21 or 22.  So we would like the

25   parties to accommodate.  And he is -- there has not been
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 1   a request to cross-examine him nor was his testimony

 2   requested to be stricken.  So it would be simply an

 3   affirmation of testimony.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  I have no problem at all with

 5   that, Mr. Aramburu.  If you would let us know what day is

 6   most convenient for Lonnie Click to document testimony, I

 7   don't think the parties will object at all.  We'll just,

 8   in a housekeeping session, move that to whatever day he's

 9   going to adopt his testimony.

10            Is that acceptable with TCC?

11            MR. ARAMBURU:  That would be fine with us.

12            And I do want a clarification about our position

13   about -- regarding Mr. Kobus's testimony.

14            His supplement that he submitted to us involves

15   a lot of technical material analysis of National Fire

16   Protection Association standards and that kind of thing.

17            So our principal interest is not so much to

18   cross-examine him on those things, which he didn't seem

19   to know anything about during his deposition, but rather

20   to make sure that we have an opportunity to rebut that

21   information with information of our own, given the late

22   nature of what's been proposed here.

23            So we are not necessarily asking for

24   cross-examination, but we are asking for an opportunity

25   to provide rebuttal to that material.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And TCC may feel that

 2   way but the other parties may wish to cross-examine.

 3            I'll let the other parties clarify with me next

 4   week on Monday at the housekeeping session or as soon

 5   thereafter as possible, what their intent is.  If there's

 6   nobody wishing to cross-examine but simply more time to

 7   rebut and supplement the record, we can do that and give

 8   additional time for posthearing briefs.

 9            Again, the extension that the applicant has is

10   through January 31st of 2024.  It's my understanding that

11   we would have all of the materials in from the

12   adjudication late this fall and that the FEIS is on track

13   to be presented to the council shortly thereafter.  We'll

14   find out from the appropriate EFSEC staff when that

15   timing is.  And then the council will have its full

16   deliberations on the entire record.

17            So there's time, Mr. Aramburu, to get additional

18   information from the parties into the record on the

19   adjudication side.  And when the FEIS is completed, it

20   will also be before the council with sufficient time for

21   them to make their recommendation on the entire record

22   and the SEPA record up to the governor.

23            So I want to assure you that on my side of the

24   house, which is the adjudication, the entire record will

25   be considered before any findings of fact or conclusions
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 1   of law are drawn from the adjudication.

 2            And I am assured by the rest of EFSEC staff that

 3   the council will also have the FEIS in time for their

 4   deliberations that go in conjunctive nature with what

 5   we're doing in the adjudication, before any

 6   recommendation is made to Governor Inslee.

 7            All right.  We've taken care of the schedule

 8   concerns.

 9            We've got Lonnie Click that will be moved around

10   according to that schedule.

11            We've got Rick Simon to come on a different date

12   than August 23rd.

13            And we've got questions now about the

14   continuance request to handle all of the redesign issues

15   per 463-60-116 and anything else that might come out of

16   the Kobus deposition and the supplemental testimony.

17            So we're going to move on from Agenda Item 2 to

18   Agenda Item 3, which is the status update on the Yakama

19   Nation's discovery requests regarding water resources.

20            Ms. Voelckers.

21            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22            And I respect that you are moving on, but if I

23   could finish my thoughts on the schedule, I think we got

24   a little sidetracked with my comment on Mr. Kobus.  I did

25   have one more question for you --
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Please.

 2            MS. VOELCKERS:  -- on that.

 3            Okay.  So -- and then just to be clear, we will

 4   be asking to cross-examine Mr. Kobus, if that testimony

 5   is submitted.

 6            So on the 21st, when there is -- we'll be

 7   requesting the closed-record hearing, in meeting with my

 8   client this week, the question came up about viewing of

 9   the hearing for the council members, meaning the tribal

10   council members.

11            And so we can update our confidentiality

12   agreement to reflect additional council members, but I

13   wanted to make sure to understand if it would be okay to

14   have multiple folks just kind of in a room together

15   viewing the screen, or whether or not EFSEC would like a

16   record of who all is participating in these hearings by

17   being in the room for them.

18            I mean, it's being closed at the Yakama Nation's

19   request, so I hope that, you know, there's not concern

20   about the Nation's tribal council members joining.  But I

21   just want to make sure that we're doing it in a way

22   that's appropriate and also so people aren't accidentally

23   excluded from the room with the technology that's going

24   to be used.

25            So I don't know if this is a question for Your
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 1   Honor or for EFSEC staff, but I just wanted to bring that

 2   up while it was front of mind, to make sure that we're

 3   doing what we had to to avoid complications on your end.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that very much.

 5            Let's go over that Monday schedule with the

 6   cultural historic archaeological resource impacts and

 7   identify each session that needs to be a closed-record

 8   hearing.

 9            I think the first one would be starting at

10   10:45 a.m.; is that correct?

11            MS. VOELCKERS:  I'm sorry.  I'm having a little

12   bit of a technical issue.

13            Is that -- that's the beginning of Ms. Lally's

14   testimony, I believe?

15            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.  So the Lally testimony

16   is scheduled for 10:45 to 11:45 and again after lunch

17   from 12:45 to 1:45.

18            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes.  Okay.

19            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, apologies.  This is

20   Ariel Stavitsky for applicant.  And I would also ask --

21   I'm glad we're addressing this.

22            Ms. Ragsdale also had the question whether her

23   testimony would be held in the breakout room as private.

24   And her position is that it's going to be difficult, I

25   think for her as well, to determine in the moment what of
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 1   her testimony is subject to the protective order and what

 2   is not.

 3            So her preference would be that her testimony as

 4   well would be all held in the private breakout room.

 5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So it sounds as though

 6   the morning session starting at 9:00 all of the way

 7   through 1:45 --

 8            Let me go back to you, Ms. Voelckers.

 9            In looking at the rest of the day, is any of

10   that day not going to be a confidential breakout session?

11            MS. VOELCKERS:  Not -- my expectation, Your

12   Honor, is that full day would be a closed hearing.  I

13   know that there's discussion about having the fire chief

14   just adopt his testimony, but for the witnesses that are

15   listed there, we are asking that they all be heard in a

16   closed-record hearing.

17            So I would expect that, yes, that would be a

18   full day of a closed hearing.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Noted.

20            I don't see any problem with the Yakama Nation

21   who is forwarding this confidential information, having

22   as many people in any room that you would like or tribal

23   members that you and the rest of the elders determine are

24   entitled to hear this information.

25            If you would like to have them sign on, I think
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 1   that we should make that Ms. Grantham and Ms. Owens know

 2   who else to expect so they can add them to the list of

 3   people authorized to be in the hearing that day.

 4            It will also be something that we can make clear

 5   next week at the hearing and maybe send out a supplement

 6   to the notice that went out for the hearing, that the

 7   bulk of the day on Monday, August 21st, other than Lonnie

 8   Click adopting testimony, if that's the date that works,

 9   that the hearing will be a closed record because of the

10   sensitive and confidential nature of the testimony.  So

11   that's Monday the 21st.

12            Are there any other sessions throughout the

13   course of the hearing that are anticipated to be

14   confidential in a closed-record hearing?

15            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, from the Yakama

16   Nation's perspective, the other time where there might be

17   a request for a closed-record hearing would be on

18   testimony around the project's potential impacts to the

19   pronghorn population.  And it's hard to predict how much

20   of that, not knowing whether or not the council would

21   have questions for Yakama Nation's own expert on that

22   topic, Mr. Ganuelas, which is why we estimate half an

23   hour, even though I understand that he, you know, is not

24   appearing for cross-examination, just because we weren't

25   sure whether or not the council would have questions for
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 1   him.

 2            And so our understanding from last Friday from

 3   you was they should be prepared to answer questions from

 4   the council.  And so we built in that time.

 5            So it is possible that there would be time at

 6   the end of the day Tuesday during Mr. Rahmig's testimony

 7   and Wednesday, during the remainder of his testimony or

 8   the swearing in of Yakama Nation's wildlife biologist.

 9   That's the only other time that I see on the schedule

10   where we might be asking for that.  And it's a little

11   tricky to predict how long that would be right now.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I appreciate that.

13            So in summing that up, Tuesday afternoon at

14   2:50 p.m., depending on where the cross-exam goes and the

15   redirect for Mr. Rahmig and continuing on Wednesday

16   morning at 9:00 a.m. for that testimony and redirect,

17   those portions may have sessions that require us to go

18   into closed record.

19            You're also saying that when Mr. Ganuelas adopts

20   his testimony Wednesday, late morning, if there are

21   questions and he needs to comment on the pronghorn

22   issues, those may also require us to move into closed

23   session.

24            Did I get that right?

25            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.

0049

 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

 2            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, may I --

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  But I think it's help --

 4            MS. STAVITSKY:  I just wanted to add, the same

 5   will likely be true of -- there may be some need for

 6   confidential pronghorn testimony from our wildlife

 7   experts Erik Jansen and Troy Rahmig.

 8            And we were -- just to throw it out there as

 9   sort of a logistical solution, we were thinking it may

10   make sense to sort of have a pronghorn subject matter

11   time of day so that that could be held in the private

12   breakout room, but defer to you and Ms. Voelckers on how

13   you -- how best you think that would work out.

14            JUDGE TOREM:  And this was Ms. Stavitsky; right?

15            MS. STAVITSKY:  Yes.  Thanks, Your Honor.

16   Ms. Stavitsky for applicant.

17            JUDGE TOREM:  So, Ms. Stavitsky, you mentioned

18   Mr. Jansen and was it Mr. Cook as well?

19            MS. STAVITSKY:  Mr. Jansen and Mr. Rahmig.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And we already had

21   identified Mr. Rahmig as potentially having that

22   testimony.

23            So Jansen and Rahmig on Tuesday and Wednesday

24   this coming week and then the entire day on Monday, the

25   21st.
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 1            All right.  I'm going to make sure Ms. Grantham

 2   is taking notes on that.  And if not, to reach out to me

 3   later to qualify or clarify anything.  But we may be

 4   putting out an amended notice today or tomorrow that

 5   indicates that those sessions on Tuesday the 15th of

 6   August and Wednesday the 16th of August are anticipated

 7   to have closed-record hearings, and that essentially the

 8   full day after the hearing opens on August 21st will be

 9   anticipated to being a closed-record session.

10            Were there any other witnesses that any party

11   thinks will have confidential information that requires a

12   closed-record hearing?

13            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor --

14            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Hearing -- go ahead.

15            MS. STAVITSKY:  Apologies, Your Honor.  This is

16   Ariel Stavitsky, again, for applicant.

17            The only other thing we can possibly think may

18   require a closed hearing is depending on your ruling on

19   the pending motion to strike.

20            If some of that testimony is allowed, there is

21   certain trade secret information that may be required to

22   be disclosed in a closed-record hearing.  And so that

23   would be -- the witnesses likely affected by that, from

24   our perspective, would be Rich Simon and Greg Poulos.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Understood.
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 1            Parties, we've been going at this for over an

 2   hour.  I want to have some mercy for the court reporter

 3   and anybody who has late-afternoon coffee consumption.

 4            So it's now 3:02.  I propose we come back at

 5   3:15 and get back on the record at that time.  So we'll

 6   take a 12-minute break here and come back at 3:15 and

 7   we'll resume the agenda with Item No. 3, I believe it is

 8   on -- Ms. Voelckers, I'm going to turn to you at 3:15 on

 9   the status of that discovery request.

10            And I'll be prepared to give you a list of the

11   outstanding orders I believe I need to get out when we

12   get to Item No. 4, and then we'll go around again for

13   No. 5.  And hopefully by 4:15, we can be done today, but

14   I know we've scheduled it through 5:00 o'clock.

15             All right.  We'll take a recess now until 3:15.

16                        (Recess from 3:03 p.m. to 3:15 p.m.)

17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  It's now 3:15.  Let me

18   have a brief roll call to make sure everybody is back.

19            For the applicant?

20            MR. MCMAHAN:  We're here, Your Honor.

21            JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama Nation?

22            MS. VOELCKERS:  Present.

23            Thank you, Your Honor.

24            JUDGE TOREM:  Benton County?

25            MR. HARPER:  Present, Your Honor.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld?

 2            MS. REYNEVELD:  I'm here.

 3            Thank you, Judge.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And, Mr. Aramburu?

 5            MR. ARAMBURU:  Present for Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.

 6            Thank you, Your Honor.

 7            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's resume with Item

 8   No. 3 on the agenda, status update on the Yakama Nation's

 9   discovery request.

10            Ms. Voelckers.

11            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

12            We did receive a response to our discovery

13   requests.  So that has been solved.

14            I would like to note that we would likely have

15   more, once we have a chance to review the memo that was

16   submitted yesterday, and that's the subject of the motion

17   to continue.

18            JUDGE TOREM:  When you say that's the memo, is

19   it the same memo we've been discussing today?

20            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.

21            MR. ARAMBURU:  Your Honor, this is Rick Aramburu

22   speaking.

23            The subject of the well is found for your notes,

24   Your Honor, on Page 8 of the memo under Section 1.12.  It

25   has been made an issue for these proceedings.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  You said Page 8, Section 1.12?

 2            MR. ARAMBURU:  Correct.

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Aramburu,

 4   for that refinement.

 5            Ms. Voelckers, anything else I need to know

 6   about the discovery requests?

 7            MS. VOELCKERS:  Not at this time.

 8            Thank you, Your Honor.

 9            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Anybody from the

10   applicant want to confirm, is there anything else

11   outstanding you intend to be providing as continuing in

12   this discovery request?

13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Not that I'm aware of, Your Honor,

14   no.

15            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then moving onto

16   No. 4, the what does Judge Torem still have to do.

17            So you can cross out the "if any."

18            I understand that I still owe Mr. Aramburu and

19   the parties my order on which witnesses are formally

20   being moved from the TCC list that might be subject to

21   adopting testimony and allowed for council questions and

22   converting those to public comment.  So that's definitely

23   something outstanding.

24            There's some other motions to take out, I think

25   it's Mr. Simon's testimony that was stricken.
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 1            And tell me for sure, Mr. Aramburu, if there's

 2   other portions for Mr. Krupin?  It looked as though he

 3   was listed for potential cross-examination.

 4            So there's still a motion out for both of those;

 5   is that correct?

 6            MR. ARAMBURU:  Your Honor, as I see your list,

 7   if I can put it that way, there is still an outstanding

 8   decision on a motion for reconsideration of inclusion of

 9   the testimony for witnesses Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and

10   Simon -- part of Simon's testimony.

11            There is an outstanding motion by the applicant

12   to strike rebuttal testimony of those witnesses, which is

13   also opposed by TCC.

14            The third motion is our motion to compel certain

15   documents in our request for production.  We have filed

16   with you on Monday our response to that.

17            So as far as we know, those are the three items

18   that are outstanding that we are the most concerned with.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And I think by that

20   listing, there's four.  There's the public comment versus

21   prefile.  There's the motion for reconsideration you

22   detailed.  There's the motion to compel certain documents

23   and the Scout Clean Energy's opposition.

24            And then there's the applicant's motion to

25   strike rebuttal and your response that came in on this
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 1   first motion and your response this past week.

 2            I think I also have, Ms. Voelckers, a motion --

 3   I think it's really going to be the agreed order we

 4   talked about last week on the motion to supplement.  I

 5   think those came in on -- since our hearing last time or

 6   since our prehearing conference -- I can try to scroll

 7   through --

 8            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.

 9            JUDGE TOREM:  -- emails and find them.

10            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  Shona

11   Voelckers.

12            That should be in your inbox.  And it just -- it

13   took us a couple of days, given all of the other

14   briefing.

15            But we did circulate that and made sure that

16   that was okay with the applicant, the way that it was

17   phrased.  And also attached to my email is the deposition

18   transcript for Mr. Kobus.

19            The deposition transcripts and exhibits for

20   Yakama Nation's motion to supplement were already

21   provided.  And I know that Ms. Masengale was making sure

22   that those were all able to be put online as well so that

23   anyone could access those once the order is entered.

24            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So then by my count,

25   we're up to a fifth order, depending on 5A, 5B, however
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 1   many orders, taking into consideration those motions to

 2   supplement from Yakama Nation.

 3            Does the applicant see anything more outstanding

 4   than those five that we've talked about so far?

 5            MR. MCMAHAN:  I don't believe so, Your Honor.

 6            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper, was the County looking

 7   for anything else that I still owe the parties?

 8            MR. HARPER:  No, I don't believe so, Your Honor.

 9   Thank you.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  For counsel for the environment,

11   anything else that you are looking for that I still need

12   to get to?

13            MS. REYNEVELD:  No.  Thank you.

14            We do still plan on submitting supplemental

15   testimony, hopefully, today from our witness.  I was not

16   able to submit that previously because of lack of access

17   to internet.  So that's the only thing outstanding for

18   us.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And do you anticipate

20   that any of the parties will be objecting to that

21   supplemental testimony, Ms. Reyneveld?  I'm not sure what

22   discussions you may have had about that.

23            MS. REYNEVELD:  I do not anticipate that, no.

24            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, was the applicant

25   considering, if you know what's going to be supplemented,
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 1   any concerns with CFE's witness?

 2            MR. MCMAHAN:  You know, Your Honor, this is an

 3   awkward question to ask -- or answer because we don't

 4   know exactly what it would be.

 5            I would say that before Ms. Reyneveld went to

 6   Maui, we did talk about it briefly and it didn't seem

 7   like we would have an issue.  But I guess it's -- I would

 8   like to reserve the opportunity to object to it if

 9   there's reason to do so.  I guess if I could just leave

10   it at that.  I don't anticipate -- because we did --

11   Ms. --

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, and I'm not asking --

13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry.

14            JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not asking, Mr. McMahan, that

15   you waive any right once you've read it.  But I'm just

16   looking for, should I be anticipating any further

17   motions, whether in writing or verbally at one of our

18   housekeeping sessions?

19            MR. MCMAHAN:  I don't think so because I think I

20   have -- we had good conversation with the CFE and so

21   that's my answer.  I don't think so.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And, again, I don't expect

23   attorneys to be predicting with any better luck than I

24   had in front of military court-martial telling a judge

25   how long a witness would take.  So I get it.
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 1            On this side of the bench, it's a lot easier to

 2   ask for information than it might be to provide it with

 3   any fidelity.

 4            Let me go, then, to Mr. Aramburu.

 5            Any other items besides those five that -- other

 6   than the pending motion we talked about earlier under

 7   No. 2 in the agenda?

 8            MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  There's been the motion to

 9   supplement the Kobus deposition.  We've filed a response

10   to that just at 10:00 o'clock this morning.  So I think

11   that's on your list.

12            I do have one additional question, and it arises

13   from this memorandum that we received at 1:05 this

14   afternoon.

15            On Page 2, there is a discussion of the east

16   solar array size reduction.  And there's a paragraph that

17   begins, "Rationale for change."  And the second sentence

18   says, "In a settlement agreement, Scout Clean Energy is

19   committed to reduce solar generation from this location

20   by approximately 100 megawatts."

21            I am not -- I have not seen a settlement

22   agreement, and I think I would like the applicant to

23   explain what that settlement agreement is.  And if

24   it's -- and if one exists, that he make it available to

25   us.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan.

 2            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 3            Yeah, we have been -- I would say a settlement

 4   agreement probably ought to say "proposed settlement

 5   agreement."  We -- Ms. Reyneveld can step in here too.

 6            We had -- during the spring, in particular, we

 7   had some productive conversations with the counsel for

 8   the environment on a variety of issues to deal with.

 9   Some occurred, and Mr. McGyver's concerns regarding

10   habitat impacts any impacts on any of the species and the

11   like.

12            And in that discussion, we -- the applicant

13   agreed to modify the east solar array, to remove it.

14   Essentially remove it from a habitat that was of concern

15   to the CFE.

16            So that is what that is about.  And so that --

17   so we're documenting that we have minimized the impact of

18   that area.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  And so that's not an agreement

20   that's been signed or submitted to the council; is that

21   correct?

22            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct.  No agreement has

23   been signed or submitted.  And as I, and Ms. Reyneveld

24   can weigh in here, as I understand it, such a thing would

25   have to be approved by the attorney general's office
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 1   anyway.

 2            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, that's correct.  That's

 3   a --

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead, Ms. Reyneveld.  I want

 5   you to address also the timing of when that might be

 6   submitted.  And what, if any other -- from CFEs

 7   perspective, negotiations or inclusion of the other

 8   parties was done or is needed.

 9            So let me have you start again.

10            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  We had early settlement

11   discussions, and they did particularly involve litigation

12   to the east solar field.  So Mr. McMahan is correct.

13            We -- I mean, I don't think anything has been

14   decided other than I think those have been brought to our

15   office and up the chain.  We've considered them but have

16   not definitely arrived at any sort of settlement

17   agreement.  Those discussions are on hold currently.

18            And from my recollection, we did involve all of

19   the parties in those initial discussions.  And the

20   settlement proposal was shared with all of the parties,

21   the most recent settlement proposal.  So this should not

22   be a surprise pertaining to that discussion, if my

23   recollection is correct.

24            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

25            MR. ARAMBURU:  This is Rick Aramburu.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on a second, Mr. Aramburu.

 2            If it's a settlement between just counsel for

 3   the environment and the applicant, Mr. McMahan, that

 4   would not preclude the other parties from either

 5   commenting on, objecting to, or continuing their own

 6   positions, but simply reflects the settlement between the

 7   applicant and the counsel for the environment; true?

 8            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct, Your Honor.

 9            MS. REYNEVELD:  Correct.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Arauburu.

11            MS. REYNEVELD:  I just wanted to clarify my

12   statement, that I do believe we shared that proposal with

13   all of the parties.  So I think that they should have

14   received that.

15            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, they are free

16   to sign on to it as well but they don't have to; correct?

17            MS. REYNEVELD:  That's correct.  At this point,

18   no one has signed on to anything.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  If CFE and the

20   applicant enter such an agreement, you would welcome the

21   other parties to either sign on or indicate via the

22   adjudication at some point, that they don't concur with

23   whatever the stipulation might be.

24            Ms. Reyneveld; is that correct?

25            MS. REYNEVELD:  That's correct.  If and when we
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 1   do, yes.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Now, Mr. Aramburu.

 3            MR. ARAMBURU:  I am speaking for myself.  My

 4   inbox is filled with emails on this case, but I do not

 5   recall receiving any draft proposals or discussions of

 6   the settlement agreement from either the applicant or

 7   Ms. Reyneveld.  Perhaps I've missed one, but I have not

 8   seen such a document.

 9            MR. MCMAHAN:  (Multiple speakers.)

10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, given Ms. Reyneveld's

11   position and other things that should have her attention

12   when we hang up today, would you care to provide any of

13   that email traffic, forward it to Mr. Aramburu and copy

14   Ms. Reyneveld so she'll know what's been sent and, of

15   course, copy the other parties?

16            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry, Your Honor.  We spoke over

17   each other for a moment.

18            So that's a request of the applicant to forward

19   that to the other parties?

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.  And I don't need to see

21   it because it's not involving the council, but certainly

22   if it's something that staff has been involved in, then

23   copy the appropriate staff.  But I'm asking you to

24   relieve Ms. Reyneveld of the obligation today on Thursday

25   while she has other things to attend to.
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 1            MR. MCMAHAN:  I would be happy to do that, Your

 2   Honor.

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So, Mr. Aramburu,

 4   hopefully your inbox will get even fuller later today.

 5            MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes.  And thank you, Your Honor,

 6   for helping with that clarification.

 7            JUDGE TOREM:  No worries.

 8            On the agenda, then, I've got it looks like,

 9   five orders that I need to write and the motion today

10   regarding Mr. Kobus's supplemental testimony that I have

11   under advisement.  We may be able to deal with that on

12   the record next week.  So I've got some homework to do.

13            Let me go around the room, then we'll switch to

14   Item No. 5 and we'll see what other miscellaneous or

15   last-minute questions.

16            I think we've brought up the settlement

17   agreement and the other supplemental testimony that may

18   be coming in from counsel for the environment.

19            But let me ask the applicant, is there any other

20   last-minute questions or concerns before we convene

21   everything Monday morning at 8:30?

22            MR. MCMAHAN:  No, Your Honor, as far as I'm

23   aware of.

24            For Monday, I intend to get cross-examination

25   exhibits out to the parties for the land use section of
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 1   the hearing beginning Monday.  So they can expect to

 2   receive that from us tomorrow.

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  I'm sorry.  What was it you're

 4   going to circulate?

 5            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yeah.  Cross-examination exhibits

 6   for land use.

 7            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And if those are

 8   exhibits -- let me, again, since you mentioned that word,

 9   indicate to the parties.  I've consulted with

10   Ms. Masengale about the screen-sharing issues.  And I

11   know we had, in a technical shakeout on July 25th,

12   watched Mr. Aramburu share with success his screen.

13            I'm hoping that all of the parties will be able

14   to do that themselves.  And if they are planning to have

15   Ms. Masengale put anything up on the screen on their

16   behalf, that those exhibits be identified by number and

17   that she affirmatively respond to you that she will have

18   that ready to share on your behalf.

19            As it turns out, there have been some other

20   duties that are going to distract Ms. Masengale from

21   being on call during the hearing the entire dates.  So if

22   we're going to make use of EFSEC staff, I just want

23   parties to reach out in advance.  But otherwise, be

24   prepared to share your own screens so that council

25   members will be able to see things and will go on with
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 1   any of those exhibits.

 2            Mr. McMahan --

 3            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  -- does that work for the

 5   applicant?

 6            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

 7            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers.

 8            MS. VOELCKERS:  If I could ask in the interest

 9   of clarity and also making sure that we're kind of all

10   working off the same -- so I had planned to ask for

11   Ms. Masengale's assistance.  So it would be helpful to

12   know how far in advance she needs that information, with

13   the understanding that if we don't provide that to her,

14   we could still share the exhibits but we would need to do

15   it ourself.

16            Did she have a timing request on that?

17            JUDGE TOREM:  I don't think Ms. Masengale is on

18   the call today to speak for herself.  If she is, I'll ask

19   her to speak up now, but I think she's out today.

20            MS. GRANTHAM:  This is Andrea Grantham.  She is

21   out today and tomorrow as well.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So, Ms. Voelckers, what I

23   would suggest is that Monday morning at the housekeeping

24   session or if you would like to send an email prior, just

25   sometime early next week or depending on the date you're
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 1   going to ask for her assistance, that we identify which

 2   parts of the hearing session we might want to have her or

 3   another member of EFSEC staff assist.

 4            But certainly Yakama Nation will be permitted to

 5   display those exhibits that we need during

 6   cross-examination or for the supplemental testimony.  I

 7   believe it was a PowerPoint presentation to help walk

 8   through one of your witnesses' testimony.

 9            So we'll get it done one way or the other.  I

10   just wanted to make sure -- I had made some promises for

11   Ms. Masengale and overpromised what I think her schedule

12   is going to allow her to deliver.

13            If parties need assistance, we will find a way

14   to get those exhibits up on the screens and in front of

15   the council members so everybody can see them.  But I

16   just need to know those things in advance.  Probably by

17   at least 24 hours, but 48 would be preferred.  And that

18   would be the same for any other party seeking assistance

19   with displaying exhibits during the hearing.

20            It's just really a troubleshooting matter to

21   make sure we have it ready to go, so there's not any

22   delay, given the tightness of the schedule that we have.

23            Ms. Voelckers, does that address your concern?

24            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  We will

25   continue to do our best to get all of that in an orderly
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 1   fashion so we can share with Ms. Masengale.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And while I've got you

 3   talking, anything else that you wanted to bring up,

 4   outstanding issues before Monday morning?

 5            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, your Honor.

 6            If you could humor me.  I just want to make sure

 7   that people can see me on camera.  I've been trying to

 8   work with our technical IT support staff.

 9            So if you or anyone else -- I just turned my

10   camera on.  If you could let me know whether or not you

11   can see me, that would be great.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Grantham, I'm not on camera

13   today myself.  I'm calling in by phone.

14            Is Ms. Voelckers' camera working, as far as you

15   can tell?

16            MS. GRANTHAM:  Yes, I can see Ms. Voelckers.

17            MS. VOELCKERS:  Okay.  Thank you so much for

18   humoring that.

19            And I don't have anything else at this time.

20            Thank you, Your Honor.

21            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Harper, anything

22   from the County?

23            MR. HARPER:  No.

24            Thank you, Your Honor.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu?
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 1            MR. ARAMBURU:  I don't see anything further for

 2   the day.  It sounds as though our housekeeping, if we

 3   want to call it that session for Monday, setting half an

 4   hour for that meeting may not be enough.  Perhaps we want

 5   to start early.

 6            JUDGE TOREM:  Well, I think we have a question

 7   as far as people's availability.  We should be able to

 8   bleed into the 9:00 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. adoption of

 9   uncalled land use witnesses.

10            And what I might do, Mr. Aramburu, is let the

11   parties -- or the council members know that they don't

12   need to be on until 9:15 on Monday to take care of

13   Ms. Wadsworth and Mr. Wiley, but we'll see where they

14   are.  And if we need to go to 9:15 for housekeeping, we

15   will.

16            MR. ARAMBURU:  Thank you.

17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Reyneveld.

18            MS. REYNEVELD:  I guess my only question is, I

19   assume there's no objection to having expert witnesses

20   listen to the prior testimony of witnesses in their

21   subject matter.

22            But I wanted to ask the question as to what the

23   protocol was pertaining to expert witnesses

24   participating.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, my understanding is

0069

 1   that there's no need to have them excluded.  They have

 2   all had a chance to read each other's direct testimony.

 3   They have all submitted their testimony.  So I'm not

 4   worried, like a normal trial, where credibility or people

 5   sticking to somebody else's story might come up.  All of

 6   the evidence that parties expect to come in has been

 7   disclosed.

 8            So I would have no concerns, unless a party can

 9   make a very rational objection, why any other person or

10   expert testifying should be excluded from any other

11   witness's testimony.

12            So that's my initial take on things.  There may

13   be an exception to that, but I think it will be incumbent

14   upon a party to let the others know that they want

15   someone excluded.  And then during housekeeping on the

16   day of, not now, during housekeeping on the day of, let

17   me know if there's any such concerns with people that

18   should be excluded beyond the arrangements we've made for

19   the confidential closed-record portions of the hearing.

20            So, Ms. Reyneveld, I hope that addresses your

21   concern.  Your witness, certainly, I don't think would

22   have any -- they would be wanting to listen in to the

23   other wildlife testimony, I'm sure, so they can respond

24   to anything that they hear.  That would make sense to me.

25            Does that answer your question?
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 1            MS. REYNEVELD:  It does.  Thank you, Your Honor.

 2   And that's correct.

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  Does anybody want to voice a

 4   general concern now as opposed to the instruction I'm

 5   giving you to let me know the day of witnesses, if

 6   there's anyone to be excluded?

 7            Mr. McMahan.

 8            MR. MCMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.

 9            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu.

10            MR. ARAMBURU:  I don't have anything further,

11   Your Honor.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And, Ms. Voelckers, any

13   concerns with that?

14            MS. VOELCKERS:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.

15            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Mr. Harper.

16            MR. HARPER:  No concerns.

17            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I think we've gone around

18   the room.

19            Let me see if EFSEC staff has anything for me or

20   the parties regarding technology issues or scheduling

21   questions.

22            Ms. Grantham, are you aware of anything I need

23   to raise today that hasn't already been discussed?

24            MS. GRANTHAM:  Not as of right now.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  You'll let me know Monday
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 1   morning as needed.

 2            Mr. Thompson, it's your chance to participate.

 3            Anything?

 4            MR. THOMPSON:  No.  Thank you.

 5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then with that, it's

 6   3:39, almost 3:40 p.m.  We are adjourned.

 7                        (Prehearing adjourned at 3:39 p.m.)
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 1                     C E R T I F I C A T E

 2

 3             I, MICHELLE D. ELAM, Certified Court Reporter

     in the State of Washington, residing in Mayer, Arizona,

 4   reported;

 5             That the foregoing Prehearing Conference #5 was

     taken before me and completed on August 10, 2023, and

 6   thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

     Prehearing Conference #5 is a full, true and complete

 7   transcript;

 8

               That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or

 9   counsel of any party to this action or relative or

     employee of any such attorney or counsel and that I am

10   not financially interested in the said action or the

     outcome thereof;

11

               That I am herewith securely sealing the said

12   Prehearing Conference #5 and promptly delivering the same

     to EFSEC.

13

               IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

14   signature on the 24th day of August, 2023.

15

                                ____________________________

16                              Michelle D. Elam, RPR, CCR

                                Certified Court Reporter 3335
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		182						LN		7		20		false		          20   see where Mr. Simon might get rescheduled, if it really				false

		183						LN		7		21		false		          21   is only 45 to 50 minutes.				false

		184						LN		7		22		false		          22            MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, thank you, Judge Torem.				false

		185						LN		7		23		false		          23            I do want to present a preliminary issue related				false

		186						LN		7		24		false		          24   to the entirety of the hearing schedule.				false

		187						LN		7		25		false		          25            We received just yesterday a brief from the				false

		188						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		189						LN		8		1		false		           1   applicant.  And in that brief, it included some				false

		190						LN		8		2		false		           2   significant additional materials that were referenced for				false

		191						LN		8		3		false		           3   review by the council.				false

		192						LN		8		4		false		           4            These materials, though found in brief, were				false

		193						LN		8		5		false		           5   never provided -- were not provided to us with the brief.				false

		194						LN		8		6		false		           6   And it was only when Ms. Voelckers requested them that we				false

		195						LN		8		7		false		           7   received them.  Included in that is material from				false

		196						LN		8		8		false		           8   Mr. Kobus concerning the water issues.				false

		197						LN		8		9		false		           9            Mr. Examiner, these are significant new matters,				false

		198						LN		8		10		false		          10   material changes in the project, material changes in				false

		199						LN		8		11		false		          11   analysis that have been received literally an hour before				false

		200						LN		8		12		false		          12   our final prehearing conference.				false

		201						LN		8		13		false		          13            We think that's plainly violative of standards				false

		202						LN		8		14		false		          14   of ethics, violative of standards of due process that				false

		203						LN		8		15		false		          15   we -- that these -- we were treated to these surprises at				false

		204						LN		8		16		false		          16   the -- just before the hearing starts and also with no				false

		205						LN		8		17		false		          17   particular explanation of how this material is going to				false

		206						LN		8		18		false		          18   be given to the council itself.				false

		207						LN		8		19		false		          19            We also have outstanding, our objection to the				false

		208						LN		8		20		false		          20   substance of the supplement to the Kobus deposition.  We				false

		209						LN		8		21		false		          21   do not have rulings on witnesses as well.				false

		210						LN		8		22		false		          22            So we think that because of this significant				false

		211						LN		8		23		false		          23   late-filed material, without notice and without notice it				false

		212						LN		8		24		false		          24   was coming, that a continuance is in order for at least a				false

		213						LN		8		25		false		          25   month to allow us to review this new material that has				false

		214						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		215						LN		9		1		false		           1   just arrived today.				false

		216						LN		9		2		false		           2            To do other -- to proceed without this				false

		217						LN		9		3		false		           3   continuance is to essentially have a hearing by ambush,				false

		218						LN		9		4		false		           4   by which additional material is submitted by the				false

		219						LN		9		5		false		           5   applicant, who knows how often, keeping everybody				false

		220						LN		9		6		false		           6   off-balance and off-guard.				false

		221						LN		9		7		false		           7            The memo that we received this morning, which is				false

		222						LN		9		8		false		           8   referenced in the brief, which is particularly important				false

		223						LN		9		9		false		           9   for this and apparently is expected to be read by the				false

		224						LN		9		10		false		          10   council because it's a part of the brief, deals with				false

		225						LN		9		11		false		          11   multiple changes in locations of wind turbines, locations				false

		226						LN		9		12		false		          12   of projects shifting the battery operations from one side				false

		227						LN		9		13		false		          13   of the project to the other, making changes in a variety				false

		228						LN		9		14		false		          14   of things.				false

		229						LN		9		15		false		          15            So the totality of this suggests that a				false

		230						LN		9		16		false		          16   continuance of at least a month to allow review of this				false

		231						LN		9		17		false		          17   material is entirely appropriate.				false

		232						LN		9		18		false		          18            And I will point out that this material has all				false

		233						LN		9		19		false		          19   been kind of foisted on us by the applicant without				false

		234						LN		9		20		false		          20   notice, without indication that it was coming, and				false

		235						LN		9		21		false		          21   without indication of how it was going to be treated in				false

		236						LN		9		22		false		          22   an evidentiary manner in this prehearing conference.				false

		237						LN		9		23		false		          23            So we think that due process compliance would				false

		238						LN		9		24		false		          24   rule.  Attention to the public's participation in these				false

		239						LN		9		25		false		          25   proceedings indicates that a continuance of at least a				false

		240						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		241						LN		10		1		false		           1   month is necessary to review all of this new material.				false

		242						LN		10		2		false		           2            And that would indicate that the prehearing				false

		243						LN		10		3		false		           3   conference today should be canceled and a new one				false

		244						LN		10		4		false		           4   scheduled, based upon a new hearing schedule.				false

		245						LN		10		5		false		           5            So thank you for that.  I hope my motion is				false

		246						LN		10		6		false		           6   clear.				false

		247						LN		10		7		false		           7            JUDGE TOREM:  It's clear, and it's denied as far				false

		248						LN		10		8		false		           8   as the continuance.  That should be clear as well.				false

		249						LN		10		9		false		           9            Let me turn to the applicant and find out				false

		250						LN		10		10		false		          10   exactly what this material was that was shared at				false

		251						LN		10		11		false		          11   1:01 p.m. today, according to Ms. Stavitsky's email.				false

		252						LN		10		12		false		          12            Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, I'm not sure who				false

		253						LN		10		13		false		          13   wants to speak to it.				false

		254						LN		10		14		false		          14            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes.				false

		255						LN		10		15		false		          15            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, I would like to make				false

		256						LN		10		16		false		          16   sure -- the sound quality coming from the applicant's				false

		257						LN		10		17		false		          17   microphone has a little bit of an echo, so if you could				false

		258						LN		10		18		false		          18   take it a little slower, the court reporter can still get				false

		259						LN		10		19		false		          19   things down.  But I want to be kind to our court				false

		260						LN		10		20		false		          20   reporter.				false

		261						LN		10		21		false		          21            Go ahead, sir.				false

		262						LN		10		22		false		          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		263						LN		10		23		false		          23            Can you hear me okay?				false

		264						LN		10		24		false		          24            Can you hear me --				false

		265						LN		10		25		false		          25            JUDGE TOREM:  That's a little better.				false

		266						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		267						LN		11		1		false		           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  That's better.				false

		268						LN		11		2		false		           2            JUDGE TOREM:  I can.  That's a little better.				false

		269						LN		11		3		false		           3            MR. MCMAHAN:  I appreciate the time.  Gave me an				false

		270						LN		11		4		false		           4   opportunity to lower my blood pressure down a little bit				false

		271						LN		11		5		false		           5   in the last two minutes.				false

		272						LN		11		6		false		           6            So let me explain what happened here.				false

		273						LN		11		7		false		           7            We have been in a process with EFSEC for a very				false

		274						LN		11		8		false		           8   long time, where EFSEC asks us for data requests.  And we				false

		275						LN		11		9		false		           9   had indicated to EFSEC some time ago that we have				false

		276						LN		11		10		false		          10   continued to, as we go, modify the application to address				false

		277						LN		11		11		false		          11   things we learn; ways to minimize, mitigate impacts;				false

		278						LN		11		12		false		          12   additional information that EFSEC has asked specifically				false

		279						LN		11		13		false		          13   of us for their work as they prepared the Final				false

		280						LN		11		14		false		          14   Environmental Impact Statement.				false

		281						LN		11		15		false		          15            So we did, in fact, accumulate a number of				false

		282						LN		11		16		false		          16   issues that we were aware of that EFSEC had asked us for				false

		283						LN		11		17		false		          17   in Data Request No. 9.  So we did submit that this week				false

		284						LN		11		18		false		          18   in order to be responsive to EFSEC.				false

		285						LN		11		19		false		          19            We did cite, in passing -- if I had to again, I				false

		286						LN		11		20		false		          20   probably wouldn't have done it, but we did cite in				false

		287						LN		11		21		false		          21   passing, reference to the memorandum that we submitted to				false

		288						LN		11		22		false		          22   EFSEC.  And I believe there was also -- might have been a				false

		289						LN		11		23		false		          23   reference to -- I think it might have been a reference to				false

		290						LN		11		24		false		          24   a 2023 updated wildlife report, which also we provide				false

		291						LN		11		25		false		          25   regularly to EFSEC, as they ask us for additional				false

		292						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		293						LN		12		1		false		           1   information concerning the project.  So that's what we				false

		294						LN		12		2		false		           2   submitted.				false

		295						LN		12		3		false		           3            Now, I and our team here had certainly some				false

		296						LN		12		4		false		           4   sensitivity about doing that prior to moving along with				false

		297						LN		12		5		false		           5   the testimonial process.  Had I to do it again, I				false

		298						LN		12		6		false		           6   probably just wouldn't have put those references in the				false

		299						LN		12		7		false		           7   brief.  But we did it thinking this information will be				false

		300						LN		12		8		false		           8   posted on the EFSEC website and there will be access to				false

		301						LN		12		9		false		           9   it.				false

		302						LN		12		10		false		          10            The problem, of course, is that EFSEC takes a				false

		303						LN		12		11		false		          11   bit of time to get stuff posted on the website.  So this				false

		304						LN		12		12		false		          12   afternoon, we offered to the parties, and Ariel				false

		305						LN		12		13		false		          13   circulated to the parties, the memorandum, which was for				false

		306						LN		12		14		false		          14   Data Request No. 9 to be submitted to EFSEC staff.				false

		307						LN		12		15		false		          15            That's what we did.  It wasn't an ambush.  It				false

		308						LN		12		16		false		          16   was what we have done throughout these whole proceedings				false

		309						LN		12		17		false		          17   to respond to data requests that we've gotten from EFSEC				false

		310						LN		12		18		false		          18   staff.  And our stuff was developed over the years and a				false

		311						LN		12		19		false		          19   lot of stuff has developed over the last month.  And so				false

		312						LN		12		20		false		          20   EFSEC asked us to accumulate that change information.				false

		313						LN		12		21		false		          21            And we could have held off until the				false

		314						LN		12		22		false		          22   adjudication was done, which didn't make sense to me.  We				false

		315						LN		12		23		false		          23   could have -- and really, we just had the time over the				false

		316						LN		12		24		false		          24   last few days to finish it up, the team, the Scout team				false

		317						LN		12		25		false		          25   had time to finish it up.				false

		318						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		319						LN		13		1		false		           1            There is no untoward motive here.  It was all in				false

		320						LN		13		2		false		           2   an effort to be as transparent and open as possible to				false

		321						LN		13		3		false		           3   provide this information as requested by the council.				false

		322						LN		13		4		false		           4            Yes, it coincided with the starting of the				false

		323						LN		13		5		false		           5   adjudication.  We will, if you want, if you think it				false

		324						LN		13		6		false		           6   best, Judge Torem, we'll reissue the brief taking those				false

		325						LN		13		7		false		           7   citations out of the brief.  I'm happy to do that.  And				false

		326						LN		13		8		false		           8   if there's anything else we can do to address this issue,				false

		327						LN		13		9		false		           9   we're happy to do that.				false

		328						LN		13		10		false		          10            It is simply an effort to provide the best				false

		329						LN		13		11		false		          11   information at the time it was requested of us by EFSEC				false

		330						LN		13		12		false		          12   staff.  Nothing more.  Nothing more conspiratorial than				false

		331						LN		13		13		false		          13   that.				false

		332						LN		13		14		false		          14            JUDGE TOREM:  Well, Mr. McMahan I appreciate the				false

		333						LN		13		15		false		          15   explanation.				false

		334						LN		13		16		false		          16            I do see that there's essentially a one-page				false

		335						LN		13		17		false		          17   cover letter and a 79-page memo.  It is noted that it's				false

		336						LN		13		18		false		          18   responding to the Final Environmental Impact Statement				false

		337						LN		13		19		false		          19   that staff is working on and not directly related, other				false

		338						LN		13		20		false		          20   than the citations in the brief, to the adjudication.				false

		339						LN		13		21		false		          21            Aside from what you've stated and explained,				false

		340						LN		13		22		false		          22   Mr. McMahan, was there any attempt to make that evidence				false

		341						LN		13		23		false		          23   as part of the hearing?				false

		342						LN		13		24		false		          24            MR. MCMAHAN:  A little solemn here, but, no.  In				false

		343						LN		13		25		false		          25   fact, we said that; that this -- we did not intend to				false

		344						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		345						LN		14		1		false		           1   have this be part of the adjudication hearing.  We				false

		346						LN		14		2		false		           2   recognized that, you know, it's been challenging.				false

		347						LN		14		3		false		           3            So, no, that was not our intention.				false

		348						LN		14		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me suggest, then, as I				false

		349						LN		14		5		false		           5   haven't got my finger exactly on what page this material				false

		350						LN		14		6		false		           6   is cited to, is it only on one or two pages of the				false

		351						LN		14		7		false		           7   applicant's brief?				false

		352						LN		14		8		false		           8            MR. MCMAHAN:  It is.  Yes, Your Honor.  I think				false

		353						LN		14		9		false		           9   mostly footnotes.  No.  I'm sorry.				false

		354						LN		14		10		false		          10            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me have you --				false

		355						LN		14		11		false		          11            MR. MCMAHAN:  I'm sorry.				false

		356						LN		14		12		false		          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead.				false

		357						LN		14		13		false		          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  We're having a mute button				false

		358						LN		14		14		false		          14   problem.				false

		359						LN		14		15		false		          15            So, yes, aside from -- I think in a couple of				false

		360						LN		14		16		false		          16   footnotes in the brief, and we would be happy to take				false

		361						LN		14		17		false		          17   those out.				false

		362						LN		14		18		false		          18            JUDGE TOREM:  Why don't you do this:  As opposed				false

		363						LN		14		19		false		          19   to taking them out, so it's exactly clear to all parties				false

		364						LN		14		20		false		          20   on the line, go back in and use the strike-out feature of				false

		365						LN		14		21		false		          21   Word.				false

		366						LN		14		22		false		          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sure.				false

		367						LN		14		23		false		          23            JUDGE TOREM:  And if that's not helpful, I'm				false

		368						LN		14		24		false		          24   sure there's a Sharpie in your office.  Black out that				false

		369						LN		14		25		false		          25   material, if you have to do it manually, and resubmit by				false

		370						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		371						LN		15		1		false		           1   close of business today.  I'll make sure that staff				false

		372						LN		15		2		false		           2   that's on the phone here is able to let counsel know to				false

		373						LN		15		3		false		           3   use the Version 2 of your brief as opposed to the				false

		374						LN		15		4		false		           4   Version 1.				false

		375						LN		15		5		false		           5            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes.				false

		376						LN		15		6		false		           6            JUDGE TOREM:  And they can -- everybody will see				false

		377						LN		15		7		false		           7   that they are getting this.  It's been stricken.  And				false

		378						LN		15		8		false		           8   these attachments that you sent out today won't be part				false

		379						LN		15		9		false		           9   of the adjudication, but staff will continue to use the				false

		380						LN		15		10		false		          10   information supplied to them as part of your response to				false

		381						LN		15		11		false		          11   Data Request No. 9.				false

		382						LN		15		12		false		          12            So I think we've now taken care of that				false

		383						LN		15		13		false		          13   particular issue of any ambush.				false

		384						LN		15		14		false		          14            And, again, the continuance request, based on				false

		385						LN		15		15		false		          15   that, is denied.				false

		386						LN		15		16		false		          16            And now the evidentiary issue is taken care of				false

		387						LN		15		17		false		          17   as well.				false

		388						LN		15		18		false		          18            Is there anything else --				false

		389						LN		15		19		false		          19            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor?				false

		390						LN		15		20		false		          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, go ahead.				false

		391						LN		15		21		false		          21            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		392						LN		15		22		false		          22            Just -- before we move forward, Yakama Nation,				false

		393						LN		15		23		false		          23   if I could make my own verbal motion for the record,				false

		394						LN		15		24		false		          24   understanding what -- all I have heard.  We have our own				false

		395						LN		15		25		false		          25   motion to make, and I think that we should be able to				false

		396						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		397						LN		16		1		false		           1   make it on the record.  And I would like to do that				false

		398						LN		16		2		false		           2   before we move forward so that we're not coming back to				false

		399						LN		16		3		false		           3   the same issue.				false

		400						LN		16		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Is it in regard to what				false

		401						LN		16		5		false		           5   Mr. Aramburu raised or something different?				false

		402						LN		16		6		false		           6            MS. VOELCKERS:  In regard to what Mr. Aramburu				false

		403						LN		16		7		false		           7   raised.				false

		404						LN		16		8		false		           8            JUDGE TOREM:  I'll let you go ahead and make				false

		405						LN		16		9		false		           9   your motion and then we'll see if there's any additional				false

		406						LN		16		10		false		          10   rulings that need to be made.				false

		407						LN		16		11		false		          11            Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.				false

		408						LN		16		12		false		          12            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		409						LN		16		13		false		          13            The Yakama Nation has its own motion to continue				false

		410						LN		16		14		false		          14   the adjudication because of applicant's violation of				false

		411						LN		16		15		false		          15   WAC 463-60-116.				false

		412						LN		16		16		false		          16            Applicant cited materials in its prehearing				false

		413						LN		16		17		false		          17   brief that were not only unavailable to any other party				false

		414						LN		16		18		false		          18   but actually also include extremely untimely				false

		415						LN		16		19		false		          19   modifications to the project design that is the subject				false

		416						LN		16		20		false		          20   of this adjudication, multiple witnesses' testimony, and				false

		417						LN		16		21		false		          21   other parties' own prehearing briefs.				false

		418						LN		16		22		false		          22            I would respectfully ask that Your Honor review				false

		419						LN		16		23		false		          23   the memorandum itself before ruling on our motion because				false

		420						LN		16		24		false		          24   this is not simply an issue of striking footnotes.				false

		421						LN		16		25		false		          25            Applicant has provided absolutely no				false

		422						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		423						LN		17		1		false		           1   justification for its failure to disclose any of this				false

		424						LN		17		2		false		           2   information before this afternoon.  And this proposed				false

		425						LN		17		3		false		           3   project redesign does not fit within what is contemplated				false

		426						LN		17		4		false		           4   under WAC 463-60-116.				false

		427						LN		17		5		false		           5            As Mr. McMahan said, a lot of information has				false

		428						LN		17		6		false		           6   developed, but it's not clear that this information was				false

		429						LN		17		7		false		           7   not developed this week and it is directly relevant to				false

		430						LN		17		8		false		           8   this proceeding.				false

		431						LN		17		9		false		           9            Yakama Nation does not take its motion to				false

		432						LN		17		10		false		          10   continue lightly, as we ourselves have been working				false

		433						LN		17		11		false		          11   diligently and preparing in good faith.  But is truly				false

		434						LN		17		12		false		          12   unworkable to be responding to this level of gamesmanship				false

		435						LN		17		13		false		          13   in the midst of brief drafting, witness prep, and hearing				false

		436						LN		17		14		false		          14   prep.				false

		437						LN		17		15		false		          15            This new information provides a clear --				false

		438						LN		17		16		false		          16   presents a clear prejudice to our client, Yakama Nation.				false

		439						LN		17		17		false		          17   We have essentially prepared for a hearing on a project				false

		440						LN		17		18		false		          18   that is now apparently no longer before the council.				false

		441						LN		17		19		false		          19            It is not reasonable to ask the parties to				false

		442						LN		17		20		false		          20   prepare for this new project design over the weekend.  We				false

		443						LN		17		21		false		          21   haven't actually even been afforded the time to discuss				false

		444						LN		17		22		false		          22   this new information with our own client before today's				false

		445						LN		17		23		false		          23   conference.				false

		446						LN		17		24		false		          24            In order to ensure that all parties can cite to				false

		447						LN		17		25		false		          25   a fair record, the adjudication should be continued to				false

		448						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		449						LN		18		1		false		           1   allow sufficient response.				false

		450						LN		18		2		false		           2            The applicant has turned their proposal into a				false

		451						LN		18		3		false		           3   constantly evolving proposal, and Your Honor should draw				false

		452						LN		18		4		false		           4   a line and continue the hearing for the time necessary to				false

		453						LN		18		5		false		           5   ensure that all parties are talking about the same thing.				false

		454						LN		18		6		false		           6            It is clear that applicant is now talking about				false

		455						LN		18		7		false		           7   a different proposal than the one that we had presented				false

		456						LN		18		8		false		           8   our cases on -- prepared our cases on for the hearing set				false

		457						LN		18		9		false		           9   on Monday.				false

		458						LN		18		10		false		          10            Even if the applicant does withdraw its footnote				false

		459						LN		18		11		false		          11   citations, that does not cure the prejudice because there				false

		460						LN		18		12		false		          12   are clearly project redesign conversations happening				false

		461						LN		18		13		false		          13   outside the adjudicative process and outside of the				false

		462						LN		18		14		false		          14   information shared with the other parties.				false

		463						LN		18		15		false		          15            Thank you for considering our motion.				false

		464						LN		18		16		false		          16            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.				false

		465						LN		18		17		false		          17            MR. ARAMBURU:  Mr. Examiner, I would like to be				false

		466						LN		18		18		false		          18   heard as well, please.				false

		467						LN		18		19		false		          19            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		468						LN		18		20		false		          20            This is the Yakama Nation's motion.				false

		469						LN		18		21		false		          21            MR. ARAMBURU:  I understand.				false

		470						LN		18		22		false		          22            JUDGE TOREM:  I've heard you on your motion and				false

		471						LN		18		23		false		          23   I've issued my ruling.				false

		472						LN		18		24		false		          24            Let me have the applicant respond, and then				false

		473						LN		18		25		false		          25   we'll see if there's anything that TCC needs to respond				false

		474						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		475						LN		19		1		false		           1   to back.				false

		476						LN		19		2		false		           2            Mr. McMahan.				false

		477						LN		19		3		false		           3            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, this is Ariel				false

		478						LN		19		4		false		           4   Stavitsky.  I can respond to this one.				false

		479						LN		19		5		false		           5            You know, our reasoning here is the same as our				false

		480						LN		19		6		false		           6   response to TCC's similar motion.  I think this is really				false

		481						LN		19		7		false		           7   a product of these two parallel processes, this				false

		482						LN		19		8		false		           8   adjudication and the SEPA process, the DRA request				false

		483						LN		19		9		false		           9   process that are proceeding in tandem.				false

		484						LN		19		10		false		          10            And, Your Honor --				false

		485						LN		19		11		false		          11            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on a second.  Hold on a				false

		486						LN		19		12		false		          12   second, Ms. Stavitsky.				false

		487						LN		19		13		false		          13            I'm a little worried that you're speaking				false

		488						LN		19		14		false		          14   quickly, and I'm worried that the sound quality is				false

		489						LN		19		15		false		          15   deteriorating.  So whatever Mr. McMahan did to improve				false

		490						LN		19		16		false		          16   the auditory sound quality coming from your conference				false

		491						LN		19		17		false		          17   room, if you would do the same.  And just slow down for				false

		492						LN		19		18		false		          18   me and then we'll hear the rest of your explanation.				false

		493						LN		19		19		false		          19            MS. STAVITSKY:  My apologies.  I'll try to keep				false

		494						LN		19		20		false		          20   the court reporter in mind.				false

		495						LN		19		21		false		          21            I was stating that, you know, this issue is				false

		496						LN		19		22		false		          22   really a product of the fact that we have these two				false

		497						LN		19		23		false		          23   parallel processes proceeding in tandem:  The SEPA data				false

		498						LN		19		24		false		          24   request process and this adjudication.				false

		499						LN		19		25		false		          25            So as Mr. McMahan explained, you know, these are				false

		500						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		501						LN		20		1		false		           1   ongoing -- this is an iterative process and we are				false

		502						LN		20		2		false		           2   providing updated information to EFSEC in response to				false

		503						LN		20		3		false		           3   their data requests.				false

		504						LN		20		4		false		           4            And so this is our attempt to provide, you know,				false

		505						LN		20		5		false		           5   improved transparency, provide all parties with as much				false

		506						LN		20		6		false		           6   information as we possibly can, particularly given				false

		507						LN		20		7		false		           7   that -- well, I know that TCC and Yakama Nation have had				false

		508						LN		20		8		false		           8   concerns about the fact that, you know, information				false

		509						LN		20		9		false		           9   that's part of the EIS process is not making it into the				false

		510						LN		20		10		false		          10   adjudication.				false

		511						LN		20		11		false		          11            So this is not an attempt to ambush.  This is an				false

		512						LN		20		12		false		          12   attempt to provide as much information as we can.  But				false

		513						LN		20		13		false		          13   if, you know, based on the timing of this adjudication,				false

		514						LN		20		14		false		          14   if it's too much to be provided, this updated				false

		515						LN		20		15		false		          15   information, we can certainly, you know, stall the clock				false

		516						LN		20		16		false		          16   and base the adjudication on -- not on this updated				false

		517						LN		20		17		false		          17   information.				false

		518						LN		20		18		false		          18            So, you know, we're happy to respond however				false

		519						LN		20		19		false		          19   makes the most sense in terms of making sure that both of				false

		520						LN		20		20		false		          20   these processes can proceed uninterrupted.				false

		521						LN		20		21		false		          21            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Stavitsky.				false

		522						LN		20		22		false		          22            Mr. Aramburu, anything to add to what				false

		523						LN		20		23		false		          23   Ms. Voelckers said, in response to what Ms. Stavitsky				false

		524						LN		20		24		false		          24   said, either way?  I'll give you a few minutes.  Go				false

		525						LN		20		25		false		          25   ahead, sir.				false

		526						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		527						LN		21		1		false		           1            MR. ARAMBURU:  I mean, the general response here				false

		528						LN		21		2		false		           2   is, this is crazy.  They have sent us a memo, now, that				false

		529						LN		21		3		false		           3   says, for example, remove all solar array infrastructure				false

		530						LN		21		4		false		           4   west of I-82.				false

		531						LN		21		5		false		           5            Remove solar infrastructure within 1 mile of				false

		532						LN		21		6		false		           6   I-82.				false

		533						LN		21		7		false		           7            Remove four turbines near Benton City.				false

		534						LN		21		8		false		           8            So this -- it goes on with 11 pages of this.				false

		535						LN		21		9		false		           9            So the council has to understand what the				false

		536						LN		21		10		false		          10   project is before it.  And the project has been changed				false

		537						LN		21		11		false		          11   by the applicant.  It's not just a matter of deleting				false

		538						LN		21		12		false		          12   footnotes and other things.  The project has been				false

		539						LN		21		13		false		          13   changed.				false

		540						LN		21		14		false		          14            So we're going to go ahead with days and days of				false

		541						LN		21		15		false		          15   testimony on a project that's been changed.  That makes				false

		542						LN		21		16		false		          16   no sense of any kind.  Completely violative of due				false

		543						LN		21		17		false		          17   process.				false

		544						LN		21		18		false		          18            And I guess I would like to know what you're				false

		545						LN		21		19		false		          19   going to tell the council that the project is because				false

		546						LN		21		20		false		          20   you're going to have to tell them the project has been				false

		547						LN		21		21		false		          21   changed at 1:05 p.m. on August 10 by this memo from the				false

		548						LN		21		22		false		          22   applicant.				false

		549						LN		21		23		false		          23            This makes no sense at all and is going to				false

		550						LN		21		24		false		          24   confuse council members, and council members are going to				false

		551						LN		21		25		false		          25   question why they are reviewing a project that's been				false

		552						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		553						LN		22		1		false		           1   changed by the applicant.  It makes no sense of any kind.				false

		554						LN		22		2		false		           2            MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, this is Ken Harper.				false

		555						LN		22		3		false		           3   Can I be heard?				false

		556						LN		22		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Of course, Mr. Harper.  You're				false

		557						LN		22		5		false		           5   next.				false

		558						LN		22		6		false		           6            MR. HARPER:  I would just like to state for the				false

		559						LN		22		7		false		           7   record that the County joins in these motions.  It is				false

		560						LN		22		8		false		           8   going to be a significant impediment to				false

		561						LN		22		9		false		           9   cross-examination.				false

		562						LN		22		10		false		          10            I've been working on my cross-examination,				false

		563						LN		22		11		false		          11   particularly of Ms. McClain.  And now it is very				false

		564						LN		22		12		false		          12   difficult for me to understand how the cross-examination				false

		565						LN		22		13		false		          13   should be modified.				false

		566						LN		22		14		false		          14            Mr. McMahan's suggestion, or I guess his action				false

		567						LN		22		15		false		          15   of striking portions of the brief does not actually				false

		568						LN		22		16		false		          16   address Mr. Aramburu's point, which is that the project				false

		569						LN		22		17		false		          17   is in a state of transition.				false

		570						LN		22		18		false		          18            So the County joins in the motion, and the				false

		571						LN		22		19		false		          19   County renews its earlier motion that this entire matter				false

		572						LN		22		20		false		          20   should be stayed until there's an FEIS and we actually				false

		573						LN		22		21		false		          21   have a project that's a fit subject for adjudication.				false

		574						LN		22		22		false		          22            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		575						LN		22		23		false		          23            We all know that I've already denied				false

		576						LN		22		24		false		          24   continuances based on waiting for the FEIS.  There's not				false

		577						LN		22		25		false		          25   a basis in law to do so.				false

		578						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		579						LN		23		1		false		           1            That aside, I understand where the parties are				false

		580						LN		23		2		false		           2   coming from on a moving target.				false

		581						LN		23		3		false		           3            Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, Ms. Schimelpfenig,				false

		582						LN		23		4		false		           4   would you care to give an explanation of why the				false

		583						LN		23		5		false		           5   applicant continues to make minor and/or major changes to				false

		584						LN		23		6		false		           6   the original proposal that we first saw in the				false

		585						LN		23		7		false		           7   application for site certification filed on February 8th				false

		586						LN		23		8		false		           8   of 2021?				false

		587						LN		23		9		false		           9            And, Mr. McMahan, if you want to take into				false

		588						LN		23		10		false		          10   account the ongoing debates or discussion of the project				false

		589						LN		23		11		false		          11   with council staff and how a draft environmental impact				false

		590						LN		23		12		false		          12   statement is being responded to with various				false

		591						LN		23		13		false		          13   recommendations for mitigation that are not in dispute by				false

		592						LN		23		14		false		          14   the applicant and coming up with the update prior to the				false

		593						LN		23		15		false		          15   adjudicative hearing, as required by administrative code				false

		594						LN		23		16		false		          16   provisions adopted by EFSEC, and give the overview of				false

		595						LN		23		17		false		          17   what you think the council was expecting from the				false

		596						LN		23		18		false		          18   applicant and what the applicant has been trying to do by				false

		597						LN		23		19		false		          19   filing the changes, despite the frustration it might				false

		598						LN		23		20		false		          20   create for anybody trying to figure out what we're				false

		599						LN		23		21		false		          21   adjudicating here the rest of the month.				false

		600						LN		23		22		false		          22            So with all of that, as a compound question,				false

		601						LN		23		23		false		          23   please, enlighten everybody on the call what the				false

		602						LN		23		24		false		          24   applicant has been up to.				false

		603						LN		23		25		false		          25            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		604						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		605						LN		24		1		false		           1            And it's not just what the applicant has been up				false

		606						LN		24		2		false		           2   to, we have gone through nine data requests for the life				false

		607						LN		24		3		false		           3   of the project.  This is not -- this process is not one				false

		608						LN		24		4		false		           4   where you file an application and it sits there until the				false

		609						LN		24		5		false		           5   adjudication and then an approval is issued.				false

		610						LN		24		6		false		           6            This is, as Ms. Stavitsky indicated, it's a				false

		611						LN		24		7		false		           7   two-track process.  It's an iterative process that we've				false

		612						LN		24		8		false		           8   been dealing with for the life of the project.				false

		613						LN		24		9		false		           9            And the other irony here is what's actually				false

		614						LN		24		10		false		          10   proposed with this information is a net reduction of				false

		615						LN		24		11		false		          11   impact.  That's what we have been talking with EFSEC				false

		616						LN		24		12		false		          12   staff about in terms of the intent of these				false

		617						LN		24		13		false		          13   modifications.				false

		618						LN		24		14		false		          14            And, you know, it is part of a process that we				false

		619						LN		24		15		false		          15   have been on for a very long time.  We debated, should we				false

		620						LN		24		16		false		          16   just not move this forward right now.  We thought in the				false

		621						LN		24		17		false		          17   interest of transparency, that it was best to put it out				false

		622						LN		24		18		false		          18   there so that people understood.				false

		623						LN		24		19		false		          19            And, again, does not -- these are not				false

		624						LN		24		20		false		          20   modifications that are going to increase impacts or				false

		625						LN		24		21		false		          21   dramatically change the project.  They are fairly nuanced				false

		626						LN		24		22		false		          22   and they do, in fact, accomplish net reduction of impact.				false

		627						LN		24		23		false		          23            JUDGE TOREM:  And in your experience, which may				false

		628						LN		24		24		false		          24   differ from mine, has this been, for other clients that				false

		629						LN		24		25		false		          25   you represented before EFSEC, essentially a parallel of				false

		630						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		631						LN		25		1		false		           1   past practices reaching back to things done in Kittitas				false

		632						LN		25		2		false		           2   County, things done at the Tesoro matter, which I don't				false

		633						LN		25		3		false		           3   think you were on, or the Whistling Ridge project?				false

		634						LN		25		4		false		           4            Has this been the ongoing funneling down of				false

		635						LN		25		5		false		           5   impact prior to the council actually considering what's				false

		636						LN		25		6		false		           6   in front of them?				false

		637						LN		25		7		false		           7            MR. MCMAHAN:  It absolutely has.  In fact, the				false

		638						LN		25		8		false		           8   Whistling Bridge project, during the adjudication,				false

		639						LN		25		9		false		           9   literally live during the adjudication, modifications				false

		640						LN		25		10		false		          10   were made, you know, when the process was underway.				false

		641						LN		25		11		false		          11            So this is really -- in terms of the several				false

		642						LN		25		12		false		          12   projects I've been involved in, there's nothing different				false

		643						LN		25		13		false		          13   about this.  It has to do with the way the EFSEC process				false

		644						LN		25		14		false		          14   works.  And the idea is that as EFSEC gains greater				false

		645						LN		25		15		false		          15   knowledge through all of these proceedings and it tends				false

		646						LN		25		16		false		          16   to, you know, accelerate at this point in time,				false

		647						LN		25		17		false		          17   Judge Torem, because a lot of information is being				false

		648						LN		25		18		false		          18   developed as we learn more about each others' positions				false

		649						LN		25		19		false		          19   in the case.				false

		650						LN		25		20		false		          20            We are being responsive and we are being				false

		651						LN		25		21		false		          21   responsive in a way that we've been directed by EFSEC				false

		652						LN		25		22		false		          22   council staff to provide information as it evolves and as				false

		653						LN		25		23		false		          23   it develops.				false

		654						LN		25		24		false		          24            There's nothing different that has been handled				false

		655						LN		25		25		false		          25   in the other projects I've been involved in.				false

		656						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		657						LN		26		1		false		           1            And, no, I didn't represent Tesoro.				false

		658						LN		26		2		false		           2            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well, I've heard from				false

		659						LN		26		3		false		           3   the applicants in response and I've heard, Ms. Voelckers.				false

		660						LN		26		4		false		           4   I appreciate what you've raised, what Mr. Aramburu has				false

		661						LN		26		5		false		           5   supplemented, and what Mr. Harper has added as well.				false

		662						LN		26		6		false		           6            Ms. Reyneveld, anything you wanted to add on				false

		663						LN		26		7		false		           7   this?				false

		664						LN		26		8		false		           8            MS. REYNEVELD:  So I have been out of internet				false

		665						LN		26		9		false		           9   access for -- until earlier this morning and have not had				false

		666						LN		26		10		false		          10   an opportunity to review the prehearing briefs of any of				false

		667						LN		26		11		false		          11   the parties.  And so I do not have the benefit of having				false

		668						LN		26		12		false		          12   reviewed the updated information fully that the applicant				false

		669						LN		26		13		false		          13   provided.				false

		670						LN		26		14		false		          14            You know, I do think a continuance makes sense				false

		671						LN		26		15		false		          15   for us to be able to review the information, at least for				false

		672						LN		26		16		false		          16   counsel for the environment, if it is, indeed, correct,				false

		673						LN		26		17		false		          17   that there have been reductions or, you know, serious				false

		674						LN		26		18		false		          18   modifications or mitigative measures that have been				false

		675						LN		26		19		false		          19   proposed.  In response to the new information, I know				false

		676						LN		26		20		false		          20   that I would like a little bit more time to review it				false

		677						LN		26		21		false		          21   with my witness.				false

		678						LN		26		22		false		          22            With that said, I have not had the benefit of				false

		679						LN		26		23		false		          23   the other parties of reviewing the information because				false

		680						LN		26		24		false		          24   I'm just not getting internet access, but would certainly				false

		681						LN		26		25		false		          25   benefit from a brief continuance to review the				false

		682						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		683						LN		27		1		false		           1   information, just so that we are all on the same page in				false

		684						LN		27		2		false		           2   terms of the actual project proposal that we're				false

		685						LN		27		3		false		           3   litigating.				false

		686						LN		27		4		false		           4            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan here.				false

		687						LN		27		5		false		           5            I want to ground this in a very specific actual				false

		688						LN		27		6		false		           6   thing that happened in the Kittitas Valley case, and I				false

		689						LN		27		7		false		           7   know that you were there at the time.				false

		690						LN		27		8		false		           8            During the adjudication and close to the time				false

		691						LN		27		9		false		           9   the case was depleted, the applicant in that case put on				false

		692						LN		27		10		false		          10   the table, and the citing council was happy to see it, a				false

		693						LN		27		11		false		          11   standard of four times to remind setback that would deal				false

		694						LN		27		12		false		          12   with a lot of issues raised by residential landowners.				false

		695						LN		27		13		false		          13   And that happened as we were in the closing days or				false

		696						LN		27		14		false		          14   moments of the adjudication of Kittitas Valley.				false

		697						LN		27		15		false		          15            And I don't remember, frankly, you know,				false

		698						LN		27		16		false		          16   whether -- if there was controversy around that, but it				false

		699						LN		27		17		false		          17   was an issue of some importance to the cite council; that				false

		700						LN		27		18		false		          18   we were able to resolve prior to the close of the				false

		701						LN		27		19		false		          19   adjudication.				false

		702						LN		27		20		false		          20            I could probably come up with other examples,				false

		703						LN		27		21		false		          21   but that's the one that really sticks out to me, Your				false

		704						LN		27		22		false		          22   Honor.				false

		705						LN		27		23		false		          23            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, if I could respond				false

		706						LN		27		24		false		          24   to a couple of things that Mr. McMahan had said, I would				false

		707						LN		27		25		false		          25   appreciate the opportunity.				false

		708						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		709						LN		28		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.				false

		710						LN		28		2		false		           2            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		711						LN		28		3		false		           3            I just want to clarify that our motion, while we				false

		712						LN		28		4		false		           4   certainly do stand by the original motion continuance				false

		713						LN		28		5		false		           5   around the lack of FEIS, is not out of -- our motion				false

		714						LN		28		6		false		           6   today is not out of any confusion about what is happening				false

		715						LN		28		7		false		           7   between the applicant and EFSEC on the SEPA side.				false

		716						LN		28		8		false		           8            It is about the need for substantive project				false

		717						LN		28		9		false		           9   modifications to be shared in a timely way.  And I think				false

		718						LN		28		10		false		          10   that that is clearly supported by the WAC, which allows				false

		719						LN		28		11		false		          11   the applicant to provide this information up to 30 days				false

		720						LN		28		12		false		          12   before the hearing.  But it's not supported to do it now.				false

		721						LN		28		13		false		          13            And while Mr. McMahan concedes that there's a				false

		722						LN		28		14		false		          14   net reduction in environmental impacts, respectfully,				false

		723						LN		28		15		false		          15   none of the lawyers are the ones that can really testify				false

		724						LN		28		16		false		          16   to that.  Like, we need time for our experts and their				false

		725						LN		28		17		false		          17   experts to be able to speak about that.				false

		726						LN		28		18		false		          18            And so I just wanted to emphasize that we're not				false

		727						LN		28		19		false		          19   saying that the applicant and EFSEC cannot talk through				false

		728						LN		28		20		false		          20   these information exchanges and requests for further				false

		729						LN		28		21		false		          21   information.  But when it is a project design				false

		730						LN		28		22		false		          22   modification, that is a substantive change.  And this				false

		731						LN		28		23		false		          23   last -- you know, last night or today, however you want				false

		732						LN		28		24		false		          24   to count this new information, it's not compliant with				false

		733						LN		28		25		false		          25   any rule.  And we need some sort of line here that allows				false

		734						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		735						LN		29		1		false		           1   us to be talking about the same thing on Monday.				false

		736						LN		29		2		false		           2            So that's really what we're asking for here.				false

		737						LN		29		3		false		           3   And there might be certain positives that come out of				false

		738						LN		29		4		false		           4   certain modifications, but no one has had a chance to				false

		739						LN		29		5		false		           5   review this memo besides the applicant.				false

		740						LN		29		6		false		           6            And so we really need the opportunity for the				false

		741						LN		29		7		false		           7   folks that we've called to testify over the next two				false

		742						LN		29		8		false		           8   weeks to be able to make that analysis, not the lawyers				false

		743						LN		29		9		false		           9   today.				false

		744						LN		29		10		false		          10            So thank you for your consideration.				false

		745						LN		29		11		false		          11            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.				false

		746						LN		29		12		false		          12            Mr. McMahan, this memo that's being referred to,				false

		747						LN		29		13		false		          13   that's the one that was circulated an hour before we				false

		748						LN		29		14		false		          14   started today; is that correct?				false

		749						LN		29		15		false		          15            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct.				false

		750						LN		29		16		false		          16            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Voelckers, I'm				false

		751						LN		29		17		false		          17   going to take that under advisement until Monday morning.				false

		752						LN		29		18		false		          18   At 8:30, we'll take it up again and you can summarize the				false

		753						LN		29		19		false		          19   motion on behalf of the other parties as well because I				false

		754						LN		29		20		false		          20   don't want to take an extended amount of time at 8:30				false

		755						LN		29		21		false		          21   Monday morning.  But I'll consider it.  I'll take a look				false

		756						LN		29		22		false		          22   at the memo in the days ahead.				false

		757						LN		29		23		false		          23            My thought is that all of the parties are going				false

		758						LN		29		24		false		          24   to bring Monday morning with them, their availability or				false

		759						LN		29		25		false		          25   not, for the week of September 25th through the 29th for				false

		760						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		761						LN		30		1		false		           1   one to two days of additional supplemental adjudicative				false

		762						LN		30		2		false		           2   hearing, if I decide to grant the motion in part.  So I				false

		763						LN		30		3		false		           3   want that material by the end of the day on Monday the				false

		764						LN		30		4		false		           4   14th of August.  Everybody will have their availability				false

		765						LN		30		5		false		           5   for that week of September 25th to 29th.				false

		766						LN		30		6		false		           6            I may want an additional four to eight hours of				false

		767						LN		30		7		false		           7   hearing time split over one or two days, depending on				false

		768						LN		30		8		false		           8   whether this raises, truly, any new issues that I think				false

		769						LN		30		9		false		           9   need to be talked about 30 days after the close of the				false

		770						LN		30		10		false		          10   hearing, which would set back the filing of posthearing				false

		771						LN		30		11		false		          11   briefs accordingly.				false

		772						LN		30		12		false		          12            If I grant a motion to continue the entire				false

		773						LN		30		13		false		          13   hearing, I'll let you know Monday morning.  But I'm not				false

		774						LN		30		14		false		          14   going to give you a ruling on that today.				false

		775						LN		30		15		false		          15            So let's move on to the original portions of				false

		776						LN		30		16		false		          16   today's prehearing conference.				false

		777						LN		30		17		false		          17            I appreciate the reaction time today to some of				false

		778						LN		30		18		false		          18   the late-breaking filings.  So no critique imposed.				false

		779						LN		30		19		false		          19            Much as it's still baseball season, you continue				false

		780						LN		30		20		false		          20   to impress me with curve balls, all of you, and I'm going				false

		781						LN		30		21		false		          21   to do my best to take my time before I swing at any of				false

		782						LN		30		22		false		          22   these pitches.				false

		783						LN		30		23		false		          23            So let's go back to the original things that				false

		784						LN		30		24		false		          24   were on the agenda for today.  One of them was reviewing				false

		785						LN		30		25		false		          25   the schedule, and I want to come back to Mr. Simon's				false

		786						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		787						LN		31		1		false		           1   testimony.				false

		788						LN		31		2		false		           2            Given the discussion we've had today and what it				false

		789						LN		31		3		false		           3   may have an impact on Ms. McClain's cross-examination, I				false

		790						LN		31		4		false		           4   certainly want to take back anything I said in my				false

		791						LN		31		5		false		           5   late-breaking email two minutes before today's				false

		792						LN		31		6		false		           6   conference.				false

		793						LN		31		7		false		           7            We're not going to put Mr. Simon on Monday.				false

		794						LN		31		8		false		           8   Tuesday looks pretty full.  My suggestion is that we				false

		795						LN		31		9		false		           9   either bridge Tuesday into Wednesday or we run the				false

		796						LN		31		10		false		          10   hearing an extra half hour to one hour on Wednesday,				false

		797						LN		31		11		false		          11   August the 16th.				false

		798						LN		31		12		false		          12            Mr. Aramburu, can you make Mr. Simon available				false

		799						LN		31		13		false		          13   either late Tuesday and/or late Wednesday?				false

		800						LN		31		14		false		          14            MR. MCMAHAN:  We've -- Mr. Simon has a long				false

		801						LN		31		15		false		          15   scheduled trip to Alaska.				false

		802						LN		31		16		false		          16            JUDGE TOREM:  That's not the issue.  That's not				false

		803						LN		31		17		false		          17   the issue.  He's out for that week.				false

		804						LN		31		18		false		          18            Can you make him available next Tuesday or next				false

		805						LN		31		19		false		          19   Wednesday?				false

		806						LN		31		20		false		          20            MR. MCMAHAN:  I can make him available by way of				false

		807						LN		31		21		false		          21   email and phone conversations with him.  He can be				false

		808						LN		31		22		false		          22   available at noon on Friday, August 25, which is when he				false

		809						LN		31		23		false		          23   is currently scheduled.  He will be getting off -- he's				false

		810						LN		31		24		false		          24   stepping off an airplane from Alaska, but he can be				false

		811						LN		31		25		false		          25   available for cross-examination at that time.				false

		812						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		813						LN		32		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Let's go with that as Plan B.  I				false

		814						LN		32		2		false		           2   don't trust airline schedules to deliver witnesses to a				false

		815						LN		32		3		false		           3   place where it's quiet.				false

		816						LN		32		4		false		           4            Can he be available next week, since he's				false

		817						LN		32		5		false		           5   apparently not in Alaska next week?				false

		818						LN		32		6		false		           6            MR. MCMAHAN:  My proposal would be Friday,				false

		819						LN		32		7		false		           7   August 25, which is on his return from Alaska.				false

		820						LN		32		8		false		           8            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Are you willing, if				false

		821						LN		32		9		false		           9   he's not available within 15 minutes of the scheduled				false

		822						LN		32		10		false		          10   time, that he waives his right to testify?				false

		823						LN		32		11		false		          11            MR. MCMAHAN:  I can't do that.  I just don't				false

		824						LN		32		12		false		          12   know what the schedules are.  He is scheduled to get off				false

		825						LN		32		13		false		          13   the airplane at 11:00 o'clock in the morning.  I can make				false

		826						LN		32		14		false		          14   sure that he is by a phone at noon to be able to be				false

		827						LN		32		15		false		          15   available for cross-examination.  But I cannot account				false

		828						LN		32		16		false		          16   for the vagaries of travel for these witnesses.				false

		829						LN		32		17		false		          17            JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  As I recall, Mr. Aramburu,				false

		830						LN		32		18		false		          18   you had no control over the Blue Angles last Thursday,				false

		831						LN		32		19		false		          19   and I'm not going to grant you any control over what I				false

		832						LN		32		20		false		          20   presume is an Alaska Airlines flight from Anchorage.				false

		833						LN		32		21		false		          21            If he is to be made available on Friday, that is				false

		834						LN		32		22		false		          22   at TCC's peril.  I am offering you going once, going				false

		835						LN		32		23		false		          23   twice, going three times today, an opportunity to have				false

		836						LN		32		24		false		          24   him testify next week on either Tuesday, late in the day,				false

		837						LN		32		25		false		          25   or Wednesday, before the council meeting.				false

		838						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		839						LN		33		1		false		           1            Would you like those options, or would you like				false

		840						LN		33		2		false		           2   to gamble next Friday on the 25th?				false

		841						LN		33		3		false		           3            MR. MCMAHAN:  I would like to consult with him				false

		842						LN		33		4		false		           4   and get back to you by the end of the day.				false

		843						LN		33		5		false		           5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  If you'll send an				false

		844						LN		33		6		false		           6   email with your selection, it will be accommodated				false

		845						LN		33		7		false		           7   accordingly.				false

		846						LN		33		8		false		           8            So, again, his choices are, Tuesday -- let me				false

		847						LN		33		9		false		           9   roll back up to it -- August 15th at 4:00 o'clock;				false

		848						LN		33		10		false		          10   Wednesday, August 16th at 11:30 -- I think there's a				false

		849						LN		33		11		false		          11   typographical error there.  It should say a.m.  Or per				false

		850						LN		33		12		false		          12   your suggestion, Friday, August 25th at noon.				false

		851						LN		33		13		false		          13            Let me know your preference.  If it's next week,				false

		852						LN		33		14		false		          14   we'll talk about it at the housekeeping session on				false

		853						LN		33		15		false		          15   Monday.  If it's the following week on Friday, I'm				false

		854						LN		33		16		false		          16   putting it on the record today:  If he's not available at				false

		855						LN		33		17		false		          17   the designated time, we'll check the flight number.  And				false

		856						LN		33		18		false		          18   at my discretion and the council's indulgence, we may				false

		857						LN		33		19		false		          19   wait for him.				false

		858						LN		33		20		false		          20            But if he's not available, I'm not going to have				false

		859						LN		33		21		false		          21   however many people are on the line here today and the				false

		860						LN		33		22		false		          22   entire council wait for that flight to come in on Friday.				false

		861						LN		33		23		false		          23   That will be a gamble that TCC takes or not.  If he's not				false

		862						LN		33		24		false		          24   present to adopt his testimony, it will be stricken.				false

		863						LN		33		25		false		          25            Are we absolutely clear on that, Mr. Aramburu?				false

		864						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		865						LN		34		1		false		           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  We disagree but we're clear.				false

		866						LN		34		2		false		           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Perfect.				false

		867						LN		34		3		false		           3            All right.  Let's move on to the rest of the				false

		868						LN		34		4		false		           4   schedule.				false

		869						LN		34		5		false		           5            Is there anything else I need to know beyond				false

		870						LN		34		6		false		           6   what's obvious on the piece here?  And, again, the				false

		871						LN		34		7		false		           7   Wednesday, 11:30 a.m., we would fit Mr. Simon in with the				false

		872						LN		34		8		false		           8   swearing in of uncalled wildlife witnesses, which should				false

		873						LN		34		9		false		           9   take mere moments.  That's why that particular time looks				false

		874						LN		34		10		false		          10   attractive to me.				false

		875						LN		34		11		false		          11            From the applicant, anything else I need to know				false

		876						LN		34		12		false		          12   that appears to be -- that the schedule might go				false

		877						LN		34		13		false		          13   sideways, so I can anticipate any dates that were -- I				false

		878						LN		34		14		false		          14   don't know, discussions that happened off line that				false

		879						LN		34		15		false		          15   there's any worry about, the estimates from the				false

		880						LN		34		16		false		          16   applicant's perspective?				false

		881						LN		34		17		false		          17            MS. STAVITSKY:  No, Your Honor.  We believe that				false

		882						LN		34		18		false		          18   list that was just circulated is still accurate, from our				false

		883						LN		34		19		false		          19   perspective.				false

		884						LN		34		20		false		          20            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Harper, I know				false

		885						LN		34		21		false		          21   that Ms. Foster was covering the last couple of				false

		886						LN		34		22		false		          22   prehearings.				false

		887						LN		34		23		false		          23            From your review of all of this, does the County				false

		888						LN		34		24		false		          24   have any concerns?				false

		889						LN		34		25		false		          25            MR. HARPER:  No, Your Honor.				false

		890						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		891						LN		35		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, I know you've been				false

		892						LN		35		2		false		           2   out of internet for a piece of time due to the				false

		893						LN		35		3		false		           3   devastation in Maui.				false

		894						LN		35		4		false		           4            From what you've participated in and getting the				false

		895						LN		35		5		false		           5   schedule together, does counsel for the environment have				false

		896						LN		35		6		false		           6   any concerns?				false

		897						LN		35		7		false		           7            MS. REYNEVELD:  No, counsel for the environment				false

		898						LN		35		8		false		           8   does not have any concerns at this time.				false

		899						LN		35		9		false		           9            Thank you, Judge.				false

		900						LN		35		10		false		          10            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, were you				false

		901						LN		35		11		false		          11   intending to have submitted a prehearing brief?  In my				false

		902						LN		35		12		false		          12   accounting, I did not see one come in.  I may have missed				false

		903						LN		35		13		false		          13   it.				false

		904						LN		35		14		false		          14            MS. REYNEVELD:  Counsel for the environment was				false

		905						LN		35		15		false		          15   not intending to submit a prehearing brief, but we will				false

		906						LN		35		16		false		          16   be submitting a posthearing brief.				false

		907						LN		35		17		false		          17            Thank you for --				false

		908						LN		35		18		false		          18            JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.				false

		909						LN		35		19		false		          19            MS. REYNEVELD:  Thank you for asking, though,				false

		910						LN		35		20		false		          20   because I wouldn't have been able to submit it yesterday.				false

		911						LN		35		21		false		          21            JUDGE TOREM:  Understood.  I wanted to see if				false

		912						LN		35		22		false		          22   there was going to be any accommodation needed, but it				false

		913						LN		35		23		false		          23   sounds like we'll wait for posthearing briefs from you.				false

		914						LN		35		24		false		          24   And hopefully the internet situation and the general				false

		915						LN		35		25		false		          25   situation is better.				false

		916						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		917						LN		36		1		false		           1            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		918						LN		36		2		false		           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, anything else that				false

		919						LN		36		3		false		           3   I need to know about the schedule that Yakama Nation is				false

		920						LN		36		4		false		           4   still concerned with?				false

		921						LN		36		5		false		           5            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		922						LN		36		6		false		           6            I would like to better understand the plan for				false

		923						LN		36		7		false		           7   Mr. Kobus's recent -- or, excuse me, Stoel's recent				false

		924						LN		36		8		false		           8   motion to supplement Mr. Kobus's testimony before				false

		925						LN		36		9		false		           9   confirming our agreement.				false

		926						LN		36		10		false		          10            With the schedule as emailed on August 9th, we				false

		927						LN		36		11		false		          11   are in agreement with what was emailed and that we did				false

		928						LN		36		12		false		          12   workshop collaboratively with Stoel, but I think there's				false

		929						LN		36		13		false		          13   still a question that remains about Mr. Kobus's				false

		930						LN		36		14		false		          14   testimony.  And so we would like to wait for that to be				false

		931						LN		36		15		false		          15   resolved before we agree with the schedule in its				false

		932						LN		36		16		false		          16   entirety.				false

		933						LN		36		17		false		          17            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Voelckers, it's my				false

		934						LN		36		18		false		          18   understanding that Mr. Kobus does not appear on the				false

		935						LN		36		19		false		          19   witness list; is that correct?				false

		936						LN		36		20		false		          20            MS. VOELCKERS:  Correct, Your Honor, because				false

		937						LN		36		21		false		          21   this was developed before -- or, I mean, this has been a				false

		938						LN		36		22		false		          22   work in progress, but the motion to supplement was just				false

		939						LN		36		23		false		          23   so recently filed that it was not accounted for on this				false

		940						LN		36		24		false		          24   list.  And, in fact, it was filed after we gave our final				false

		941						LN		36		25		false		          25   feedback to the applicant on the list that you have in				false
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		943						LN		37		1		false		           1   front of you.				false

		944						LN		37		2		false		           2            And so seeing now that there is a proposal for				false

		945						LN		37		3		false		           3   him to sit for cross-examination, if Your Honor does				false

		946						LN		37		4		false		           4   allow that new supplemental testimony to come in, we				false

		947						LN		37		5		false		           5   would like to reserve the right to cross-examine him.				false

		948						LN		37		6		false		           6   And I don't know what his general availability is, but I				false

		949						LN		37		7		false		           7   think there's certainly time left at the end of the				false

		950						LN		37		8		false		           8   hearing for that.				false

		951						LN		37		9		false		           9            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me hear from Mr. McMahan or				false

		952						LN		37		10		false		          10   someone else at the Stoel Rives office as to the				false

		953						LN		37		11		false		          11   intention and timing, if that supplemental testimony is				false

		954						LN		37		12		false		          12   admitted in conjunction with his discovery deposition.				false

		955						LN		37		13		false		          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, your Honor.  Tim				false

		956						LN		37		14		false		          14   McMahan here.				false

		957						LN		37		15		false		          15            We notified the parties at the last prehearing				false

		958						LN		37		16		false		          16   conference that we were most likely to be submitting some				false

		959						LN		37		17		false		          17   supplemental testimony to correct some understanding --				false

		960						LN		37		18		false		          18   some misunderstandings about the battery energy storage				false

		961						LN		37		19		false		          19   system, technology, and water safety around the BESS				false

		962						LN		37		20		false		          20   systems.				false

		963						LN		37		21		false		          21            We notified everyone last prehearing conference				false

		964						LN		37		22		false		          22   that we felt that was going to be necessary.  We intended				false

		965						LN		37		23		false		          23   to provide some supplementary testimony in order to				false

		966						LN		37		24		false		          24   correct some information and to update some information.				false

		967						LN		37		25		false		          25   So we have done that.				false
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		969						LN		38		1		false		           1            I recognize that Mr. Aramburu has strongly				false

		970						LN		38		2		false		           2   objected to that testimony.  Our view is that it would be				false

		971						LN		38		3		false		           3   inaccurate to submit to the citing council prior				false

		972						LN		38		4		false		           4   information, design information, prior information about				false

		973						LN		38		5		false		           5   the BESS facility -- battery energy storage system				false

		974						LN		38		6		false		           6   facility because that is just simply not as described in				false

		975						LN		38		7		false		           7   the original testimony.  It's just simply not the way				false

		976						LN		38		8		false		           8   it's going to be proposed to EFSEC.				false

		977						LN		38		9		false		           9            So we -- and I apologize that it took some days				false

		978						LN		38		10		false		          10   to pull this together because, frankly, this was new				false

		979						LN		38		11		false		          11   stuff for me to learn and figure out.  And it took a bit				false

		980						LN		38		12		false		          12   to have sufficiency and technical information so that we				false

		981						LN		38		13		false		          13   could provide helpful information to the citing council				false

		982						LN		38		14		false		          14   to understand the safety issues around the BESS -- the				false

		983						LN		38		15		false		          15   battery energy storage facility -- around the BESS				false

		984						LN		38		16		false		          16   facility.				false

		985						LN		38		17		false		          17            So that's what we did.  We felt that it was				false

		986						LN		38		18		false		          18   just -- it was not productive or fruitful to give the				false

		987						LN		38		19		false		          19   council something that was not accurate.  So we just				false

		988						LN		38		20		false		          20   tried to provide accurate information with that				false

		989						LN		38		21		false		          21   supplemental testimony.				false

		990						LN		38		22		false		          22            JUDGE TOREM:  One more question, Mr. McMahan.				false

		991						LN		38		23		false		          23   And, again, slow down a little bit for the court				false

		992						LN		38		24		false		          24   reporter.				false

		993						LN		38		25		false		          25            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry.				false

		994						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		995						LN		39		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  When would Mr. McMahan be --				false

		996						LN		39		2		false		           2   sorry.				false

		997						LN		39		3		false		           3            When would Mr. Kobus be available to testify?				false

		998						LN		39		4		false		           4   Would that also be on Friday, August 25th in the				false

		999						LN		39		5		false		           5   afternoon?				false

		1000						LN		39		6		false		           6            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Mr. Kobus is along for				false

		1001						LN		39		7		false		           7   the ride, and we will make him available if				false

		1002						LN		39		8		false		           8   cross-examination is desired whenever it fits within the				false

		1003						LN		39		9		false		           9   schedule.				false

		1004						LN		39		10		false		          10            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  That's good to know.				false

		1005						LN		39		11		false		          11            Ms. Voelckers, once I have a chance to take a				false

		1006						LN		39		12		false		          12   look at that supplemental testimony, if it is admitted,				false

		1007						LN		39		13		false		          13   I'll let the parties know as soon as possible.  It may be				false

		1008						LN		39		14		false		          14   Monday morning at the housekeeping.  It may then be				false

		1009						LN		39		15		false		          15   something to renew the -- if it is admitted, renew the				false

		1010						LN		39		16		false		          16   motions or add to the motions a reason for the				false

		1011						LN		39		17		false		          17   continuance and/or the supplemental dates of hearing that				false

		1012						LN		39		18		false		          18   I mentioned earlier, that would be, without looking at				false

		1013						LN		39		19		false		          19   the council's schedule, possibly the week of				false

		1014						LN		39		20		false		          20   September 25th to 29th.				false

		1015						LN		39		21		false		          21            Those are dates that I think are 30 days after				false

		1016						LN		39		22		false		          22   the close of the hearing and responsive to the length of				false

		1017						LN		39		23		false		          23   continuance the parties were seeking.  So that's why I've				false

		1018						LN		39		24		false		          24   selected that week to determine your availabilities.				false

		1019						LN		39		25		false		          25            Mr. McMahan, if I do end up admitting the				false
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		1021						LN		40		1		false		           1   testimony and I believe that it needs additional time for				false

		1022						LN		40		2		false		           2   the parties, that would be when I would ask Mr. Kobus to				false

		1023						LN		40		3		false		           3   make himself available for cross-exam.				false

		1024						LN		40		4		false		           4            If I admit the testimony supplementally to go				false

		1025						LN		40		5		false		           5   with what's in the deposition and I think it's not				false

		1026						LN		40		6		false		           6   something the parties need 30 days, then we'll see if				false

		1027						LN		40		7		false		           7   he's available at another place in the hearing.  But				false

		1028						LN		40		8		false		           8   likely Friday, August 25th, with some of that afternoon				false

		1029						LN		40		9		false		           9   time.  And we'll schedule it after the time that we might				false

		1030						LN		40		10		false		          10   have for Mr. Simon, if that's the choice that TCC makes				false

		1031						LN		40		11		false		          11   to present him, as opposed to the current scheduled time.				false

		1032						LN		40		12		false		          12   But we'll take that matter up later.				false

		1033						LN		40		13		false		          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  That's fine.  Thank you, Your				false

		1034						LN		40		14		false		          14   Honor.				false

		1035						LN		40		15		false		          15            MR. ARAMBURU:  Judge, may I be heard on these				false

		1036						LN		40		16		false		          16   matters briefly?				false

		1037						LN		40		17		false		          17            JUDGE TOREM:  Certainly.  Go ahead,				false

		1038						LN		40		18		false		          18   Mr. Aramburu.				false

		1039						LN		40		19		false		          19            MR. ARAMBURU:  First of all, with respect to				false

		1040						LN		40		20		false		          20   witness scheduling, we have been in contact with Lonnie				false

		1041						LN		40		21		false		          21   Click from the Benton Fire District.  And he is scheduled				false

		1042						LN		40		22		false		          22   for Wednesday, August 23, at 9:30.				false

		1043						LN		40		23		false		          23            It turns out he is not available on that day but				false

		1044						LN		40		24		false		          24   he is available on August 21 or 22.  So we would like the				false

		1045						LN		40		25		false		          25   parties to accommodate.  And he is -- there has not been				false
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		1047						LN		41		1		false		           1   a request to cross-examine him nor was his testimony				false

		1048						LN		41		2		false		           2   requested to be stricken.  So it would be simply an				false

		1049						LN		41		3		false		           3   affirmation of testimony.				false

		1050						LN		41		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  I have no problem at all with				false

		1051						LN		41		5		false		           5   that, Mr. Aramburu.  If you would let us know what day is				false

		1052						LN		41		6		false		           6   most convenient for Lonnie Click to document testimony, I				false

		1053						LN		41		7		false		           7   don't think the parties will object at all.  We'll just,				false

		1054						LN		41		8		false		           8   in a housekeeping session, move that to whatever day he's				false

		1055						LN		41		9		false		           9   going to adopt his testimony.				false

		1056						LN		41		10		false		          10            Is that acceptable with TCC?				false

		1057						LN		41		11		false		          11            MR. ARAMBURU:  That would be fine with us.				false

		1058						LN		41		12		false		          12            And I do want a clarification about our position				false

		1059						LN		41		13		false		          13   about -- regarding Mr. Kobus's testimony.				false

		1060						LN		41		14		false		          14            His supplement that he submitted to us involves				false

		1061						LN		41		15		false		          15   a lot of technical material analysis of National Fire				false

		1062						LN		41		16		false		          16   Protection Association standards and that kind of thing.				false

		1063						LN		41		17		false		          17            So our principal interest is not so much to				false

		1064						LN		41		18		false		          18   cross-examine him on those things, which he didn't seem				false

		1065						LN		41		19		false		          19   to know anything about during his deposition, but rather				false

		1066						LN		41		20		false		          20   to make sure that we have an opportunity to rebut that				false

		1067						LN		41		21		false		          21   information with information of our own, given the late				false

		1068						LN		41		22		false		          22   nature of what's been proposed here.				false

		1069						LN		41		23		false		          23            So we are not necessarily asking for				false

		1070						LN		41		24		false		          24   cross-examination, but we are asking for an opportunity				false

		1071						LN		41		25		false		          25   to provide rebuttal to that material.				false
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		1073						LN		42		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And TCC may feel that				false

		1074						LN		42		2		false		           2   way but the other parties may wish to cross-examine.				false

		1075						LN		42		3		false		           3            I'll let the other parties clarify with me next				false

		1076						LN		42		4		false		           4   week on Monday at the housekeeping session or as soon				false

		1077						LN		42		5		false		           5   thereafter as possible, what their intent is.  If there's				false

		1078						LN		42		6		false		           6   nobody wishing to cross-examine but simply more time to				false

		1079						LN		42		7		false		           7   rebut and supplement the record, we can do that and give				false

		1080						LN		42		8		false		           8   additional time for posthearing briefs.				false

		1081						LN		42		9		false		           9            Again, the extension that the applicant has is				false

		1082						LN		42		10		false		          10   through January 31st of 2024.  It's my understanding that				false

		1083						LN		42		11		false		          11   we would have all of the materials in from the				false

		1084						LN		42		12		false		          12   adjudication late this fall and that the FEIS is on track				false

		1085						LN		42		13		false		          13   to be presented to the council shortly thereafter.  We'll				false

		1086						LN		42		14		false		          14   find out from the appropriate EFSEC staff when that				false

		1087						LN		42		15		false		          15   timing is.  And then the council will have its full				false

		1088						LN		42		16		false		          16   deliberations on the entire record.				false

		1089						LN		42		17		false		          17            So there's time, Mr. Aramburu, to get additional				false

		1090						LN		42		18		false		          18   information from the parties into the record on the				false

		1091						LN		42		19		false		          19   adjudication side.  And when the FEIS is completed, it				false

		1092						LN		42		20		false		          20   will also be before the council with sufficient time for				false

		1093						LN		42		21		false		          21   them to make their recommendation on the entire record				false

		1094						LN		42		22		false		          22   and the SEPA record up to the governor.				false

		1095						LN		42		23		false		          23            So I want to assure you that on my side of the				false

		1096						LN		42		24		false		          24   house, which is the adjudication, the entire record will				false

		1097						LN		42		25		false		          25   be considered before any findings of fact or conclusions				false

		1098						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1099						LN		43		1		false		           1   of law are drawn from the adjudication.				false

		1100						LN		43		2		false		           2            And I am assured by the rest of EFSEC staff that				false

		1101						LN		43		3		false		           3   the council will also have the FEIS in time for their				false

		1102						LN		43		4		false		           4   deliberations that go in conjunctive nature with what				false

		1103						LN		43		5		false		           5   we're doing in the adjudication, before any				false

		1104						LN		43		6		false		           6   recommendation is made to Governor Inslee.				false

		1105						LN		43		7		false		           7            All right.  We've taken care of the schedule				false

		1106						LN		43		8		false		           8   concerns.				false

		1107						LN		43		9		false		           9            We've got Lonnie Click that will be moved around				false

		1108						LN		43		10		false		          10   according to that schedule.				false

		1109						LN		43		11		false		          11            We've got Rick Simon to come on a different date				false

		1110						LN		43		12		false		          12   than August 23rd.				false

		1111						LN		43		13		false		          13            And we've got questions now about the				false

		1112						LN		43		14		false		          14   continuance request to handle all of the redesign issues				false

		1113						LN		43		15		false		          15   per 463-60-116 and anything else that might come out of				false

		1114						LN		43		16		false		          16   the Kobus deposition and the supplemental testimony.				false

		1115						LN		43		17		false		          17            So we're going to move on from Agenda Item 2 to				false

		1116						LN		43		18		false		          18   Agenda Item 3, which is the status update on the Yakama				false

		1117						LN		43		19		false		          19   Nation's discovery requests regarding water resources.				false

		1118						LN		43		20		false		          20            Ms. Voelckers.				false

		1119						LN		43		21		false		          21            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1120						LN		43		22		false		          22            And I respect that you are moving on, but if I				false

		1121						LN		43		23		false		          23   could finish my thoughts on the schedule, I think we got				false

		1122						LN		43		24		false		          24   a little sidetracked with my comment on Mr. Kobus.  I did				false

		1123						LN		43		25		false		          25   have one more question for you --				false

		1124						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1125						LN		44		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Please.				false

		1126						LN		44		2		false		           2            MS. VOELCKERS:  -- on that.				false

		1127						LN		44		3		false		           3            Okay.  So -- and then just to be clear, we will				false

		1128						LN		44		4		false		           4   be asking to cross-examine Mr. Kobus, if that testimony				false

		1129						LN		44		5		false		           5   is submitted.				false

		1130						LN		44		6		false		           6            So on the 21st, when there is -- we'll be				false

		1131						LN		44		7		false		           7   requesting the closed-record hearing, in meeting with my				false

		1132						LN		44		8		false		           8   client this week, the question came up about viewing of				false

		1133						LN		44		9		false		           9   the hearing for the council members, meaning the tribal				false

		1134						LN		44		10		false		          10   council members.				false

		1135						LN		44		11		false		          11            And so we can update our confidentiality				false

		1136						LN		44		12		false		          12   agreement to reflect additional council members, but I				false

		1137						LN		44		13		false		          13   wanted to make sure to understand if it would be okay to				false

		1138						LN		44		14		false		          14   have multiple folks just kind of in a room together				false

		1139						LN		44		15		false		          15   viewing the screen, or whether or not EFSEC would like a				false

		1140						LN		44		16		false		          16   record of who all is participating in these hearings by				false

		1141						LN		44		17		false		          17   being in the room for them.				false

		1142						LN		44		18		false		          18            I mean, it's being closed at the Yakama Nation's				false

		1143						LN		44		19		false		          19   request, so I hope that, you know, there's not concern				false

		1144						LN		44		20		false		          20   about the Nation's tribal council members joining.  But I				false

		1145						LN		44		21		false		          21   just want to make sure that we're doing it in a way				false

		1146						LN		44		22		false		          22   that's appropriate and also so people aren't accidentally				false

		1147						LN		44		23		false		          23   excluded from the room with the technology that's going				false

		1148						LN		44		24		false		          24   to be used.				false

		1149						LN		44		25		false		          25            So I don't know if this is a question for Your				false
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		1151						LN		45		1		false		           1   Honor or for EFSEC staff, but I just wanted to bring that				false

		1152						LN		45		2		false		           2   up while it was front of mind, to make sure that we're				false

		1153						LN		45		3		false		           3   doing what we had to to avoid complications on your end.				false

		1154						LN		45		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that very much.				false

		1155						LN		45		5		false		           5            Let's go over that Monday schedule with the				false

		1156						LN		45		6		false		           6   cultural historic archaeological resource impacts and				false

		1157						LN		45		7		false		           7   identify each session that needs to be a closed-record				false

		1158						LN		45		8		false		           8   hearing.				false

		1159						LN		45		9		false		           9            I think the first one would be starting at				false

		1160						LN		45		10		false		          10   10:45 a.m.; is that correct?				false

		1161						LN		45		11		false		          11            MS. VOELCKERS:  I'm sorry.  I'm having a little				false

		1162						LN		45		12		false		          12   bit of a technical issue.				false

		1163						LN		45		13		false		          13            Is that -- that's the beginning of Ms. Lally's				false

		1164						LN		45		14		false		          14   testimony, I believe?				false

		1165						LN		45		15		false		          15            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.  So the Lally testimony				false

		1166						LN		45		16		false		          16   is scheduled for 10:45 to 11:45 and again after lunch				false

		1167						LN		45		17		false		          17   from 12:45 to 1:45.				false

		1168						LN		45		18		false		          18            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes.  Okay.				false

		1169						LN		45		19		false		          19            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, apologies.  This is				false

		1170						LN		45		20		false		          20   Ariel Stavitsky for applicant.  And I would also ask --				false

		1171						LN		45		21		false		          21   I'm glad we're addressing this.				false

		1172						LN		45		22		false		          22            Ms. Ragsdale also had the question whether her				false

		1173						LN		45		23		false		          23   testimony would be held in the breakout room as private.				false

		1174						LN		45		24		false		          24   And her position is that it's going to be difficult, I				false

		1175						LN		45		25		false		          25   think for her as well, to determine in the moment what of				false

		1176						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1177						LN		46		1		false		           1   her testimony is subject to the protective order and what				false

		1178						LN		46		2		false		           2   is not.				false

		1179						LN		46		3		false		           3            So her preference would be that her testimony as				false

		1180						LN		46		4		false		           4   well would be all held in the private breakout room.				false

		1181						LN		46		5		false		           5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So it sounds as though				false

		1182						LN		46		6		false		           6   the morning session starting at 9:00 all of the way				false

		1183						LN		46		7		false		           7   through 1:45 --				false

		1184						LN		46		8		false		           8            Let me go back to you, Ms. Voelckers.				false

		1185						LN		46		9		false		           9            In looking at the rest of the day, is any of				false

		1186						LN		46		10		false		          10   that day not going to be a confidential breakout session?				false

		1187						LN		46		11		false		          11            MS. VOELCKERS:  Not -- my expectation, Your				false

		1188						LN		46		12		false		          12   Honor, is that full day would be a closed hearing.  I				false

		1189						LN		46		13		false		          13   know that there's discussion about having the fire chief				false

		1190						LN		46		14		false		          14   just adopt his testimony, but for the witnesses that are				false

		1191						LN		46		15		false		          15   listed there, we are asking that they all be heard in a				false

		1192						LN		46		16		false		          16   closed-record hearing.				false

		1193						LN		46		17		false		          17            So I would expect that, yes, that would be a				false

		1194						LN		46		18		false		          18   full day of a closed hearing.				false

		1195						LN		46		19		false		          19            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Noted.				false

		1196						LN		46		20		false		          20            I don't see any problem with the Yakama Nation				false

		1197						LN		46		21		false		          21   who is forwarding this confidential information, having				false

		1198						LN		46		22		false		          22   as many people in any room that you would like or tribal				false

		1199						LN		46		23		false		          23   members that you and the rest of the elders determine are				false

		1200						LN		46		24		false		          24   entitled to hear this information.				false

		1201						LN		46		25		false		          25            If you would like to have them sign on, I think				false

		1202						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1203						LN		47		1		false		           1   that we should make that Ms. Grantham and Ms. Owens know				false

		1204						LN		47		2		false		           2   who else to expect so they can add them to the list of				false

		1205						LN		47		3		false		           3   people authorized to be in the hearing that day.				false

		1206						LN		47		4		false		           4            It will also be something that we can make clear				false

		1207						LN		47		5		false		           5   next week at the hearing and maybe send out a supplement				false

		1208						LN		47		6		false		           6   to the notice that went out for the hearing, that the				false

		1209						LN		47		7		false		           7   bulk of the day on Monday, August 21st, other than Lonnie				false

		1210						LN		47		8		false		           8   Click adopting testimony, if that's the date that works,				false

		1211						LN		47		9		false		           9   that the hearing will be a closed record because of the				false

		1212						LN		47		10		false		          10   sensitive and confidential nature of the testimony.  So				false

		1213						LN		47		11		false		          11   that's Monday the 21st.				false

		1214						LN		47		12		false		          12            Are there any other sessions throughout the				false

		1215						LN		47		13		false		          13   course of the hearing that are anticipated to be				false

		1216						LN		47		14		false		          14   confidential in a closed-record hearing?				false

		1217						LN		47		15		false		          15            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, from the Yakama				false

		1218						LN		47		16		false		          16   Nation's perspective, the other time where there might be				false

		1219						LN		47		17		false		          17   a request for a closed-record hearing would be on				false

		1220						LN		47		18		false		          18   testimony around the project's potential impacts to the				false

		1221						LN		47		19		false		          19   pronghorn population.  And it's hard to predict how much				false

		1222						LN		47		20		false		          20   of that, not knowing whether or not the council would				false

		1223						LN		47		21		false		          21   have questions for Yakama Nation's own expert on that				false

		1224						LN		47		22		false		          22   topic, Mr. Ganuelas, which is why we estimate half an				false

		1225						LN		47		23		false		          23   hour, even though I understand that he, you know, is not				false

		1226						LN		47		24		false		          24   appearing for cross-examination, just because we weren't				false

		1227						LN		47		25		false		          25   sure whether or not the council would have questions for				false

		1228						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1229						LN		48		1		false		           1   him.				false

		1230						LN		48		2		false		           2            And so our understanding from last Friday from				false

		1231						LN		48		3		false		           3   you was they should be prepared to answer questions from				false

		1232						LN		48		4		false		           4   the council.  And so we built in that time.				false

		1233						LN		48		5		false		           5            So it is possible that there would be time at				false

		1234						LN		48		6		false		           6   the end of the day Tuesday during Mr. Rahmig's testimony				false

		1235						LN		48		7		false		           7   and Wednesday, during the remainder of his testimony or				false

		1236						LN		48		8		false		           8   the swearing in of Yakama Nation's wildlife biologist.				false

		1237						LN		48		9		false		           9   That's the only other time that I see on the schedule				false

		1238						LN		48		10		false		          10   where we might be asking for that.  And it's a little				false

		1239						LN		48		11		false		          11   tricky to predict how long that would be right now.				false

		1240						LN		48		12		false		          12            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I appreciate that.				false

		1241						LN		48		13		false		          13            So in summing that up, Tuesday afternoon at				false

		1242						LN		48		14		false		          14   2:50 p.m., depending on where the cross-exam goes and the				false

		1243						LN		48		15		false		          15   redirect for Mr. Rahmig and continuing on Wednesday				false

		1244						LN		48		16		false		          16   morning at 9:00 a.m. for that testimony and redirect,				false

		1245						LN		48		17		false		          17   those portions may have sessions that require us to go				false

		1246						LN		48		18		false		          18   into closed record.				false

		1247						LN		48		19		false		          19            You're also saying that when Mr. Ganuelas adopts				false

		1248						LN		48		20		false		          20   his testimony Wednesday, late morning, if there are				false

		1249						LN		48		21		false		          21   questions and he needs to comment on the pronghorn				false

		1250						LN		48		22		false		          22   issues, those may also require us to move into closed				false

		1251						LN		48		23		false		          23   session.				false

		1252						LN		48		24		false		          24            Did I get that right?				false

		1253						LN		48		25		false		          25            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.				false

		1254						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1255						LN		49		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.				false

		1256						LN		49		2		false		           2            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, may I --				false

		1257						LN		49		3		false		           3            JUDGE TOREM:  But I think it's help --				false

		1258						LN		49		4		false		           4            MS. STAVITSKY:  I just wanted to add, the same				false

		1259						LN		49		5		false		           5   will likely be true of -- there may be some need for				false

		1260						LN		49		6		false		           6   confidential pronghorn testimony from our wildlife				false

		1261						LN		49		7		false		           7   experts Erik Jansen and Troy Rahmig.				false

		1262						LN		49		8		false		           8            And we were -- just to throw it out there as				false

		1263						LN		49		9		false		           9   sort of a logistical solution, we were thinking it may				false

		1264						LN		49		10		false		          10   make sense to sort of have a pronghorn subject matter				false

		1265						LN		49		11		false		          11   time of day so that that could be held in the private				false

		1266						LN		49		12		false		          12   breakout room, but defer to you and Ms. Voelckers on how				false

		1267						LN		49		13		false		          13   you -- how best you think that would work out.				false

		1268						LN		49		14		false		          14            JUDGE TOREM:  And this was Ms. Stavitsky; right?				false

		1269						LN		49		15		false		          15            MS. STAVITSKY:  Yes.  Thanks, Your Honor.				false

		1270						LN		49		16		false		          16   Ms. Stavitsky for applicant.				false

		1271						LN		49		17		false		          17            JUDGE TOREM:  So, Ms. Stavitsky, you mentioned				false

		1272						LN		49		18		false		          18   Mr. Jansen and was it Mr. Cook as well?				false

		1273						LN		49		19		false		          19            MS. STAVITSKY:  Mr. Jansen and Mr. Rahmig.				false

		1274						LN		49		20		false		          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And we already had				false

		1275						LN		49		21		false		          21   identified Mr. Rahmig as potentially having that				false

		1276						LN		49		22		false		          22   testimony.				false

		1277						LN		49		23		false		          23            So Jansen and Rahmig on Tuesday and Wednesday				false

		1278						LN		49		24		false		          24   this coming week and then the entire day on Monday, the				false

		1279						LN		49		25		false		          25   21st.				false

		1280						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1281						LN		50		1		false		           1            All right.  I'm going to make sure Ms. Grantham				false

		1282						LN		50		2		false		           2   is taking notes on that.  And if not, to reach out to me				false

		1283						LN		50		3		false		           3   later to qualify or clarify anything.  But we may be				false

		1284						LN		50		4		false		           4   putting out an amended notice today or tomorrow that				false

		1285						LN		50		5		false		           5   indicates that those sessions on Tuesday the 15th of				false

		1286						LN		50		6		false		           6   August and Wednesday the 16th of August are anticipated				false

		1287						LN		50		7		false		           7   to have closed-record hearings, and that essentially the				false

		1288						LN		50		8		false		           8   full day after the hearing opens on August 21st will be				false

		1289						LN		50		9		false		           9   anticipated to being a closed-record session.				false

		1290						LN		50		10		false		          10            Were there any other witnesses that any party				false

		1291						LN		50		11		false		          11   thinks will have confidential information that requires a				false

		1292						LN		50		12		false		          12   closed-record hearing?				false

		1293						LN		50		13		false		          13            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor --				false

		1294						LN		50		14		false		          14            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Hearing -- go ahead.				false

		1295						LN		50		15		false		          15            MS. STAVITSKY:  Apologies, Your Honor.  This is				false

		1296						LN		50		16		false		          16   Ariel Stavitsky, again, for applicant.				false

		1297						LN		50		17		false		          17            The only other thing we can possibly think may				false

		1298						LN		50		18		false		          18   require a closed hearing is depending on your ruling on				false

		1299						LN		50		19		false		          19   the pending motion to strike.				false

		1300						LN		50		20		false		          20            If some of that testimony is allowed, there is				false

		1301						LN		50		21		false		          21   certain trade secret information that may be required to				false

		1302						LN		50		22		false		          22   be disclosed in a closed-record hearing.  And so that				false

		1303						LN		50		23		false		          23   would be -- the witnesses likely affected by that, from				false

		1304						LN		50		24		false		          24   our perspective, would be Rich Simon and Greg Poulos.				false

		1305						LN		50		25		false		          25            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Understood.				false
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		1307						LN		51		1		false		           1            Parties, we've been going at this for over an				false

		1308						LN		51		2		false		           2   hour.  I want to have some mercy for the court reporter				false

		1309						LN		51		3		false		           3   and anybody who has late-afternoon coffee consumption.				false

		1310						LN		51		4		false		           4            So it's now 3:02.  I propose we come back at				false

		1311						LN		51		5		false		           5   3:15 and get back on the record at that time.  So we'll				false

		1312						LN		51		6		false		           6   take a 12-minute break here and come back at 3:15 and				false

		1313						LN		51		7		false		           7   we'll resume the agenda with Item No. 3, I believe it is				false

		1314						LN		51		8		false		           8   on -- Ms. Voelckers, I'm going to turn to you at 3:15 on				false

		1315						LN		51		9		false		           9   the status of that discovery request.				false

		1316						LN		51		10		false		          10            And I'll be prepared to give you a list of the				false

		1317						LN		51		11		false		          11   outstanding orders I believe I need to get out when we				false

		1318						LN		51		12		false		          12   get to Item No. 4, and then we'll go around again for				false

		1319						LN		51		13		false		          13   No. 5.  And hopefully by 4:15, we can be done today, but				false

		1320						LN		51		14		false		          14   I know we've scheduled it through 5:00 o'clock.				false

		1321						LN		51		15		false		          15             All right.  We'll take a recess now until 3:15.				false

		1322						LN		51		16		false		          16                        (Recess from 3:03 p.m. to 3:15 p.m.)				false

		1323						LN		51		17		false		          17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  It's now 3:15.  Let me				false

		1324						LN		51		18		false		          18   have a brief roll call to make sure everybody is back.				false

		1325						LN		51		19		false		          19            For the applicant?				false

		1326						LN		51		20		false		          20            MR. MCMAHAN:  We're here, Your Honor.				false

		1327						LN		51		21		false		          21            JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama Nation?				false

		1328						LN		51		22		false		          22            MS. VOELCKERS:  Present.				false

		1329						LN		51		23		false		          23            Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1330						LN		51		24		false		          24            JUDGE TOREM:  Benton County?				false

		1331						LN		51		25		false		          25            MR. HARPER:  Present, Your Honor.				false
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		1333						LN		52		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld?				false

		1334						LN		52		2		false		           2            MS. REYNEVELD:  I'm here.				false

		1335						LN		52		3		false		           3            Thank you, Judge.				false

		1336						LN		52		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And, Mr. Aramburu?				false

		1337						LN		52		5		false		           5            MR. ARAMBURU:  Present for Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.				false

		1338						LN		52		6		false		           6            Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1339						LN		52		7		false		           7            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's resume with Item				false

		1340						LN		52		8		false		           8   No. 3 on the agenda, status update on the Yakama Nation's				false

		1341						LN		52		9		false		           9   discovery request.				false

		1342						LN		52		10		false		          10            Ms. Voelckers.				false

		1343						LN		52		11		false		          11            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1344						LN		52		12		false		          12            We did receive a response to our discovery				false

		1345						LN		52		13		false		          13   requests.  So that has been solved.				false

		1346						LN		52		14		false		          14            I would like to note that we would likely have				false

		1347						LN		52		15		false		          15   more, once we have a chance to review the memo that was				false

		1348						LN		52		16		false		          16   submitted yesterday, and that's the subject of the motion				false

		1349						LN		52		17		false		          17   to continue.				false

		1350						LN		52		18		false		          18            JUDGE TOREM:  When you say that's the memo, is				false

		1351						LN		52		19		false		          19   it the same memo we've been discussing today?				false

		1352						LN		52		20		false		          20            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.				false

		1353						LN		52		21		false		          21            MR. ARAMBURU:  Your Honor, this is Rick Aramburu				false

		1354						LN		52		22		false		          22   speaking.				false

		1355						LN		52		23		false		          23            The subject of the well is found for your notes,				false

		1356						LN		52		24		false		          24   Your Honor, on Page 8 of the memo under Section 1.12.  It				false

		1357						LN		52		25		false		          25   has been made an issue for these proceedings.				false
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		1359						LN		53		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  You said Page 8, Section 1.12?				false

		1360						LN		53		2		false		           2            MR. ARAMBURU:  Correct.				false

		1361						LN		53		3		false		           3            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Aramburu,				false

		1362						LN		53		4		false		           4   for that refinement.				false

		1363						LN		53		5		false		           5            Ms. Voelckers, anything else I need to know				false

		1364						LN		53		6		false		           6   about the discovery requests?				false

		1365						LN		53		7		false		           7            MS. VOELCKERS:  Not at this time.				false

		1366						LN		53		8		false		           8            Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1367						LN		53		9		false		           9            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Anybody from the				false

		1368						LN		53		10		false		          10   applicant want to confirm, is there anything else				false

		1369						LN		53		11		false		          11   outstanding you intend to be providing as continuing in				false

		1370						LN		53		12		false		          12   this discovery request?				false

		1371						LN		53		13		false		          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Not that I'm aware of, Your Honor,				false

		1372						LN		53		14		false		          14   no.				false

		1373						LN		53		15		false		          15            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then moving onto				false

		1374						LN		53		16		false		          16   No. 4, the what does Judge Torem still have to do.				false

		1375						LN		53		17		false		          17            So you can cross out the "if any."				false

		1376						LN		53		18		false		          18            I understand that I still owe Mr. Aramburu and				false

		1377						LN		53		19		false		          19   the parties my order on which witnesses are formally				false

		1378						LN		53		20		false		          20   being moved from the TCC list that might be subject to				false

		1379						LN		53		21		false		          21   adopting testimony and allowed for council questions and				false

		1380						LN		53		22		false		          22   converting those to public comment.  So that's definitely				false

		1381						LN		53		23		false		          23   something outstanding.				false

		1382						LN		53		24		false		          24            There's some other motions to take out, I think				false

		1383						LN		53		25		false		          25   it's Mr. Simon's testimony that was stricken.				false

		1384						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1385						LN		54		1		false		           1            And tell me for sure, Mr. Aramburu, if there's				false

		1386						LN		54		2		false		           2   other portions for Mr. Krupin?  It looked as though he				false

		1387						LN		54		3		false		           3   was listed for potential cross-examination.				false

		1388						LN		54		4		false		           4            So there's still a motion out for both of those;				false

		1389						LN		54		5		false		           5   is that correct?				false

		1390						LN		54		6		false		           6            MR. ARAMBURU:  Your Honor, as I see your list,				false

		1391						LN		54		7		false		           7   if I can put it that way, there is still an outstanding				false

		1392						LN		54		8		false		           8   decision on a motion for reconsideration of inclusion of				false

		1393						LN		54		9		false		           9   the testimony for witnesses Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and				false

		1394						LN		54		10		false		          10   Simon -- part of Simon's testimony.				false

		1395						LN		54		11		false		          11            There is an outstanding motion by the applicant				false

		1396						LN		54		12		false		          12   to strike rebuttal testimony of those witnesses, which is				false

		1397						LN		54		13		false		          13   also opposed by TCC.				false

		1398						LN		54		14		false		          14            The third motion is our motion to compel certain				false

		1399						LN		54		15		false		          15   documents in our request for production.  We have filed				false

		1400						LN		54		16		false		          16   with you on Monday our response to that.				false

		1401						LN		54		17		false		          17            So as far as we know, those are the three items				false

		1402						LN		54		18		false		          18   that are outstanding that we are the most concerned with.				false

		1403						LN		54		19		false		          19            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And I think by that				false

		1404						LN		54		20		false		          20   listing, there's four.  There's the public comment versus				false

		1405						LN		54		21		false		          21   prefile.  There's the motion for reconsideration you				false

		1406						LN		54		22		false		          22   detailed.  There's the motion to compel certain documents				false

		1407						LN		54		23		false		          23   and the Scout Clean Energy's opposition.				false

		1408						LN		54		24		false		          24            And then there's the applicant's motion to				false

		1409						LN		54		25		false		          25   strike rebuttal and your response that came in on this				false

		1410						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1411						LN		55		1		false		           1   first motion and your response this past week.				false

		1412						LN		55		2		false		           2            I think I also have, Ms. Voelckers, a motion --				false

		1413						LN		55		3		false		           3   I think it's really going to be the agreed order we				false

		1414						LN		55		4		false		           4   talked about last week on the motion to supplement.  I				false

		1415						LN		55		5		false		           5   think those came in on -- since our hearing last time or				false

		1416						LN		55		6		false		           6   since our prehearing conference -- I can try to scroll				false

		1417						LN		55		7		false		           7   through --				false

		1418						LN		55		8		false		           8            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.				false

		1419						LN		55		9		false		           9            JUDGE TOREM:  -- emails and find them.				false

		1420						LN		55		10		false		          10            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  Shona				false

		1421						LN		55		11		false		          11   Voelckers.				false

		1422						LN		55		12		false		          12            That should be in your inbox.  And it just -- it				false

		1423						LN		55		13		false		          13   took us a couple of days, given all of the other				false

		1424						LN		55		14		false		          14   briefing.				false

		1425						LN		55		15		false		          15            But we did circulate that and made sure that				false

		1426						LN		55		16		false		          16   that was okay with the applicant, the way that it was				false

		1427						LN		55		17		false		          17   phrased.  And also attached to my email is the deposition				false

		1428						LN		55		18		false		          18   transcript for Mr. Kobus.				false

		1429						LN		55		19		false		          19            The deposition transcripts and exhibits for				false

		1430						LN		55		20		false		          20   Yakama Nation's motion to supplement were already				false

		1431						LN		55		21		false		          21   provided.  And I know that Ms. Masengale was making sure				false

		1432						LN		55		22		false		          22   that those were all able to be put online as well so that				false

		1433						LN		55		23		false		          23   anyone could access those once the order is entered.				false

		1434						LN		55		24		false		          24            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So then by my count,				false

		1435						LN		55		25		false		          25   we're up to a fifth order, depending on 5A, 5B, however				false

		1436						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1437						LN		56		1		false		           1   many orders, taking into consideration those motions to				false

		1438						LN		56		2		false		           2   supplement from Yakama Nation.				false

		1439						LN		56		3		false		           3            Does the applicant see anything more outstanding				false

		1440						LN		56		4		false		           4   than those five that we've talked about so far?				false

		1441						LN		56		5		false		           5            MR. MCMAHAN:  I don't believe so, Your Honor.				false

		1442						LN		56		6		false		           6            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper, was the County looking				false

		1443						LN		56		7		false		           7   for anything else that I still owe the parties?				false

		1444						LN		56		8		false		           8            MR. HARPER:  No, I don't believe so, Your Honor.				false

		1445						LN		56		9		false		           9   Thank you.				false

		1446						LN		56		10		false		          10            JUDGE TOREM:  For counsel for the environment,				false

		1447						LN		56		11		false		          11   anything else that you are looking for that I still need				false

		1448						LN		56		12		false		          12   to get to?				false

		1449						LN		56		13		false		          13            MS. REYNEVELD:  No.  Thank you.				false

		1450						LN		56		14		false		          14            We do still plan on submitting supplemental				false

		1451						LN		56		15		false		          15   testimony, hopefully, today from our witness.  I was not				false

		1452						LN		56		16		false		          16   able to submit that previously because of lack of access				false

		1453						LN		56		17		false		          17   to internet.  So that's the only thing outstanding for				false

		1454						LN		56		18		false		          18   us.				false

		1455						LN		56		19		false		          19            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And do you anticipate				false

		1456						LN		56		20		false		          20   that any of the parties will be objecting to that				false

		1457						LN		56		21		false		          21   supplemental testimony, Ms. Reyneveld?  I'm not sure what				false

		1458						LN		56		22		false		          22   discussions you may have had about that.				false

		1459						LN		56		23		false		          23            MS. REYNEVELD:  I do not anticipate that, no.				false

		1460						LN		56		24		false		          24            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, was the applicant				false

		1461						LN		56		25		false		          25   considering, if you know what's going to be supplemented,				false

		1462						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1463						LN		57		1		false		           1   any concerns with CFE's witness?				false

		1464						LN		57		2		false		           2            MR. MCMAHAN:  You know, Your Honor, this is an				false

		1465						LN		57		3		false		           3   awkward question to ask -- or answer because we don't				false

		1466						LN		57		4		false		           4   know exactly what it would be.				false

		1467						LN		57		5		false		           5            I would say that before Ms. Reyneveld went to				false

		1468						LN		57		6		false		           6   Maui, we did talk about it briefly and it didn't seem				false

		1469						LN		57		7		false		           7   like we would have an issue.  But I guess it's -- I would				false

		1470						LN		57		8		false		           8   like to reserve the opportunity to object to it if				false

		1471						LN		57		9		false		           9   there's reason to do so.  I guess if I could just leave				false

		1472						LN		57		10		false		          10   it at that.  I don't anticipate -- because we did --				false

		1473						LN		57		11		false		          11   Ms. --				false

		1474						LN		57		12		false		          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, and I'm not asking --				false

		1475						LN		57		13		false		          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry.				false

		1476						LN		57		14		false		          14            JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not asking, Mr. McMahan, that				false

		1477						LN		57		15		false		          15   you waive any right once you've read it.  But I'm just				false

		1478						LN		57		16		false		          16   looking for, should I be anticipating any further				false

		1479						LN		57		17		false		          17   motions, whether in writing or verbally at one of our				false

		1480						LN		57		18		false		          18   housekeeping sessions?				false

		1481						LN		57		19		false		          19            MR. MCMAHAN:  I don't think so because I think I				false

		1482						LN		57		20		false		          20   have -- we had good conversation with the CFE and so				false

		1483						LN		57		21		false		          21   that's my answer.  I don't think so.				false

		1484						LN		57		22		false		          22            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And, again, I don't expect				false

		1485						LN		57		23		false		          23   attorneys to be predicting with any better luck than I				false

		1486						LN		57		24		false		          24   had in front of military court-martial telling a judge				false

		1487						LN		57		25		false		          25   how long a witness would take.  So I get it.				false

		1488						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1489						LN		58		1		false		           1            On this side of the bench, it's a lot easier to				false

		1490						LN		58		2		false		           2   ask for information than it might be to provide it with				false

		1491						LN		58		3		false		           3   any fidelity.				false

		1492						LN		58		4		false		           4            Let me go, then, to Mr. Aramburu.				false

		1493						LN		58		5		false		           5            Any other items besides those five that -- other				false

		1494						LN		58		6		false		           6   than the pending motion we talked about earlier under				false

		1495						LN		58		7		false		           7   No. 2 in the agenda?				false

		1496						LN		58		8		false		           8            MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  There's been the motion to				false

		1497						LN		58		9		false		           9   supplement the Kobus deposition.  We've filed a response				false

		1498						LN		58		10		false		          10   to that just at 10:00 o'clock this morning.  So I think				false

		1499						LN		58		11		false		          11   that's on your list.				false

		1500						LN		58		12		false		          12            I do have one additional question, and it arises				false

		1501						LN		58		13		false		          13   from this memorandum that we received at 1:05 this				false

		1502						LN		58		14		false		          14   afternoon.				false

		1503						LN		58		15		false		          15            On Page 2, there is a discussion of the east				false

		1504						LN		58		16		false		          16   solar array size reduction.  And there's a paragraph that				false

		1505						LN		58		17		false		          17   begins, "Rationale for change."  And the second sentence				false

		1506						LN		58		18		false		          18   says, "In a settlement agreement, Scout Clean Energy is				false

		1507						LN		58		19		false		          19   committed to reduce solar generation from this location				false

		1508						LN		58		20		false		          20   by approximately 100 megawatts."				false

		1509						LN		58		21		false		          21            I am not -- I have not seen a settlement				false

		1510						LN		58		22		false		          22   agreement, and I think I would like the applicant to				false

		1511						LN		58		23		false		          23   explain what that settlement agreement is.  And if				false

		1512						LN		58		24		false		          24   it's -- and if one exists, that he make it available to				false

		1513						LN		58		25		false		          25   us.				false

		1514						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1515						LN		59		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan.				false

		1516						LN		59		2		false		           2            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1517						LN		59		3		false		           3            Yeah, we have been -- I would say a settlement				false

		1518						LN		59		4		false		           4   agreement probably ought to say "proposed settlement				false

		1519						LN		59		5		false		           5   agreement."  We -- Ms. Reyneveld can step in here too.				false

		1520						LN		59		6		false		           6            We had -- during the spring, in particular, we				false

		1521						LN		59		7		false		           7   had some productive conversations with the counsel for				false

		1522						LN		59		8		false		           8   the environment on a variety of issues to deal with.				false

		1523						LN		59		9		false		           9   Some occurred, and Mr. McGyver's concerns regarding				false

		1524						LN		59		10		false		          10   habitat impacts any impacts on any of the species and the				false

		1525						LN		59		11		false		          11   like.				false

		1526						LN		59		12		false		          12            And in that discussion, we -- the applicant				false

		1527						LN		59		13		false		          13   agreed to modify the east solar array, to remove it.				false

		1528						LN		59		14		false		          14   Essentially remove it from a habitat that was of concern				false

		1529						LN		59		15		false		          15   to the CFE.				false

		1530						LN		59		16		false		          16            So that is what that is about.  And so that --				false

		1531						LN		59		17		false		          17   so we're documenting that we have minimized the impact of				false

		1532						LN		59		18		false		          18   that area.				false

		1533						LN		59		19		false		          19            JUDGE TOREM:  And so that's not an agreement				false

		1534						LN		59		20		false		          20   that's been signed or submitted to the council; is that				false

		1535						LN		59		21		false		          21   correct?				false

		1536						LN		59		22		false		          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct.  No agreement has				false

		1537						LN		59		23		false		          23   been signed or submitted.  And as I, and Ms. Reyneveld				false

		1538						LN		59		24		false		          24   can weigh in here, as I understand it, such a thing would				false

		1539						LN		59		25		false		          25   have to be approved by the attorney general's office				false

		1540						PG		60		0		false		page 60				false

		1541						LN		60		1		false		           1   anyway.				false

		1542						LN		60		2		false		           2            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, that's correct.  That's				false

		1543						LN		60		3		false		           3   a --				false

		1544						LN		60		4		false		           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead, Ms. Reyneveld.  I want				false

		1545						LN		60		5		false		           5   you to address also the timing of when that might be				false

		1546						LN		60		6		false		           6   submitted.  And what, if any other -- from CFEs				false

		1547						LN		60		7		false		           7   perspective, negotiations or inclusion of the other				false

		1548						LN		60		8		false		           8   parties was done or is needed.				false

		1549						LN		60		9		false		           9            So let me have you start again.				false

		1550						LN		60		10		false		          10            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  We had early settlement				false

		1551						LN		60		11		false		          11   discussions, and they did particularly involve litigation				false

		1552						LN		60		12		false		          12   to the east solar field.  So Mr. McMahan is correct.				false

		1553						LN		60		13		false		          13            We -- I mean, I don't think anything has been				false

		1554						LN		60		14		false		          14   decided other than I think those have been brought to our				false

		1555						LN		60		15		false		          15   office and up the chain.  We've considered them but have				false

		1556						LN		60		16		false		          16   not definitely arrived at any sort of settlement				false

		1557						LN		60		17		false		          17   agreement.  Those discussions are on hold currently.				false

		1558						LN		60		18		false		          18            And from my recollection, we did involve all of				false

		1559						LN		60		19		false		          19   the parties in those initial discussions.  And the				false

		1560						LN		60		20		false		          20   settlement proposal was shared with all of the parties,				false

		1561						LN		60		21		false		          21   the most recent settlement proposal.  So this should not				false

		1562						LN		60		22		false		          22   be a surprise pertaining to that discussion, if my				false

		1563						LN		60		23		false		          23   recollection is correct.				false

		1564						LN		60		24		false		          24            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		1565						LN		60		25		false		          25            MR. ARAMBURU:  This is Rick Aramburu.				false

		1566						PG		61		0		false		page 61				false

		1567						LN		61		1		false		           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on a second, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		1568						LN		61		2		false		           2            If it's a settlement between just counsel for				false

		1569						LN		61		3		false		           3   the environment and the applicant, Mr. McMahan, that				false

		1570						LN		61		4		false		           4   would not preclude the other parties from either				false

		1571						LN		61		5		false		           5   commenting on, objecting to, or continuing their own				false

		1572						LN		61		6		false		           6   positions, but simply reflects the settlement between the				false

		1573						LN		61		7		false		           7   applicant and the counsel for the environment; true?				false

		1574						LN		61		8		false		           8            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct, Your Honor.				false

		1575						LN		61		9		false		           9            MS. REYNEVELD:  Correct.				false

		1576						LN		61		10		false		          10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Arauburu.				false

		1577						LN		61		11		false		          11            MS. REYNEVELD:  I just wanted to clarify my				false

		1578						LN		61		12		false		          12   statement, that I do believe we shared that proposal with				false

		1579						LN		61		13		false		          13   all of the parties.  So I think that they should have				false

		1580						LN		61		14		false		          14   received that.				false

		1581						LN		61		15		false		          15            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, they are free				false

		1582						LN		61		16		false		          16   to sign on to it as well but they don't have to; correct?				false

		1583						LN		61		17		false		          17            MS. REYNEVELD:  That's correct.  At this point,				false

		1584						LN		61		18		false		          18   no one has signed on to anything.				false

		1585						LN		61		19		false		          19            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  If CFE and the				false

		1586						LN		61		20		false		          20   applicant enter such an agreement, you would welcome the				false

		1587						LN		61		21		false		          21   other parties to either sign on or indicate via the				false

		1588						LN		61		22		false		          22   adjudication at some point, that they don't concur with				false

		1589						LN		61		23		false		          23   whatever the stipulation might be.				false

		1590						LN		61		24		false		          24            Ms. Reyneveld; is that correct?				false

		1591						LN		61		25		false		          25            MS. REYNEVELD:  That's correct.  If and when we				false

		1592						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1593						LN		62		1		false		           1   do, yes.				false

		1594						LN		62		2		false		           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Now, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		1595						LN		62		3		false		           3            MR. ARAMBURU:  I am speaking for myself.  My				false

		1596						LN		62		4		false		           4   inbox is filled with emails on this case, but I do not				false

		1597						LN		62		5		false		           5   recall receiving any draft proposals or discussions of				false

		1598						LN		62		6		false		           6   the settlement agreement from either the applicant or				false

		1599						LN		62		7		false		           7   Ms. Reyneveld.  Perhaps I've missed one, but I have not				false

		1600						LN		62		8		false		           8   seen such a document.				false

		1601						LN		62		9		false		           9            MR. MCMAHAN:  (Multiple speakers.)				false

		1602						LN		62		10		false		          10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, given Ms. Reyneveld's				false

		1603						LN		62		11		false		          11   position and other things that should have her attention				false

		1604						LN		62		12		false		          12   when we hang up today, would you care to provide any of				false

		1605						LN		62		13		false		          13   that email traffic, forward it to Mr. Aramburu and copy				false

		1606						LN		62		14		false		          14   Ms. Reyneveld so she'll know what's been sent and, of				false

		1607						LN		62		15		false		          15   course, copy the other parties?				false

		1608						LN		62		16		false		          16            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry, Your Honor.  We spoke over				false

		1609						LN		62		17		false		          17   each other for a moment.				false

		1610						LN		62		18		false		          18            So that's a request of the applicant to forward				false

		1611						LN		62		19		false		          19   that to the other parties?				false

		1612						LN		62		20		false		          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.  And I don't need to see				false

		1613						LN		62		21		false		          21   it because it's not involving the council, but certainly				false

		1614						LN		62		22		false		          22   if it's something that staff has been involved in, then				false

		1615						LN		62		23		false		          23   copy the appropriate staff.  But I'm asking you to				false

		1616						LN		62		24		false		          24   relieve Ms. Reyneveld of the obligation today on Thursday				false

		1617						LN		62		25		false		          25   while she has other things to attend to.				false

		1618						PG		63		0		false		page 63				false

		1619						LN		63		1		false		           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  I would be happy to do that, Your				false
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           1             BE IT REMEMBERED that on Thursday, August 10,



           2   2023, at 2:01 p.m., before Michelle D. Elam, Certified



           3   Court Reporter, RPR, the following Prehearing



           4   Conference #5, was held, to wit:



           5



           6                         <<<<<< >>>>>>



           7



           8            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  Good afternoon,



           9   everyone.  This is Judge Torem for the Final Prehearing



          10   Conference No. 5 in the Scout Clean Energy application



          11   for the Horse Heaven Wind Farm.



          12            Let me take a look first if we have someone from



          13   the applicant today.



          14            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan here,



          15   along with Ariel Stavitsky and Emily Schimelpfenig.



          16            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you,



          17   Mr. McMahan.



          18            For Benton County today?



          19            MR. HARPER:  Ken Harper, Your Honor.



          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Good afternoon, Mr. Harper.



          21            Counsel for the environment joining us today?



          22            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Sarah Reyneveld is here.



          23            JUDGE TOREM:  I hope everything is safe where



          24   you are, Ms. Reyneveld.



          25            MS. REYNEVELD:  We are just --
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama --



           2            MS. REYNEVELD:  So thank you.  Yeah, we just now



           3   have food and electricity.  It's been pretty devastating



           4   over here.



           5            JUDGE TOREM:  I understand that Maui is not a



           6   fun place right now.  So stay safe.  Thank you very, very



           7   much for making time to join us today.



           8            For the Yakama Nation?



           9            MS. VOELCKERS:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.



          10   Shona Voelckers for the Yakama Nation.  And I believe my



          11   colleagues Mr. Jones and Ms. Houston are on as well.



          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  Thank you,



          13   Ms. Voelckers.



          14            And, Mr. Aramburu, are you there for Tri-Cities



          15   C.A.R.E.S?



          16            MR. ARAMBURU:  I am.



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



          18            Any other EFSEC staff want to identify or need



          19   to participate today?



          20            I know we have Ms. Grantham and our court



          21   reporter today.



          22            Mr. Thompson, are you on?



          23            MR. THOMPSON:  I am on, yes.  I don't need to



          24   participate.



          25            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.
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           1            I hope not.



           2            All right.  Let's move on to the agenda items,



           3   and I think we'll talk about further refinements and the



           4   adjudicative hearing schedule that the applicant's center



           5   around today.



           6            Mr. Aramburu, I did get your note, and I just



           7   sent some suggestions about Mr. Simon.



           8            So it looks like we have our land use topics all



           9   down to one-plus days.



          10            Mr. Aramburu?



          11            MR. ARAMBURU:  When you're ready to talk about



          12   Mr. Simon, let me know.



          13            JUDGE TOREM:  I will.



          14            Let me see what the first day's schedule truly



          15   looks like here.



          16            We've got our housekeeping built into every day



          17   in the morning.  There will be some days we don't need



          18   it, so that may also affect, particularly Wednesday,



          19   depending what we think about Mr. Simon's availability.



          20            I'm taking a look at where we are on the land



          21   use schedule there, and I think when we had talked last



          22   time, there was a question of Ms. McClain being recalled



          23   for other topics.



          24            Mr. McMahan, did we sort that out or was it



          25   Ms. Ragsdale?
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           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  (Inaudible) -- discussion about



           2   Ms. Ragsdale, but as to Ms. McClain, the issue there was



           3   the question of site retirement and that hadn't been



           4   something that we had originally thought about within the



           5   first day land use.  But I think we can pick that up, to



           6   the extent she has knowledge about the site restoration



           7   issues.  I think we can pick that up on Monday.



           8            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So it looks like we built



           9   in time for her before and after lunch.



          10            The estimates look doable.  And I'm wondering if



          11   anybody thinks there's any squeak time on Monday late



          12   afternoon that we might fit in Mr. Simon, or my



          13   preference, as I sent in the email just a moment ago,



          14   some point on Wednesday, whether that's during our



          15   housekeeping session or if we actually do end at 11:30,



          16   the meeting for the afternoon is not scheduled until



          17   1:30.  So we might be able to fill in a half an hour at



          18   that point.



          19            Mr. Aramburu, let me turn to you right now to



          20   see where Mr. Simon might get rescheduled, if it really



          21   is only 45 to 50 minutes.



          22            MR. ARAMBURU:  Well, thank you, Judge Torem.



          23            I do want to present a preliminary issue related



          24   to the entirety of the hearing schedule.



          25            We received just yesterday a brief from the
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           1   applicant.  And in that brief, it included some



           2   significant additional materials that were referenced for



           3   review by the council.



           4            These materials, though found in brief, were



           5   never provided -- were not provided to us with the brief.



           6   And it was only when Ms. Voelckers requested them that we



           7   received them.  Included in that is material from



           8   Mr. Kobus concerning the water issues.



           9            Mr. Examiner, these are significant new matters,



          10   material changes in the project, material changes in



          11   analysis that have been received literally an hour before



          12   our final prehearing conference.



          13            We think that's plainly violative of standards



          14   of ethics, violative of standards of due process that



          15   we -- that these -- we were treated to these surprises at



          16   the -- just before the hearing starts and also with no



          17   particular explanation of how this material is going to



          18   be given to the council itself.



          19            We also have outstanding, our objection to the



          20   substance of the supplement to the Kobus deposition.  We



          21   do not have rulings on witnesses as well.



          22            So we think that because of this significant



          23   late-filed material, without notice and without notice it



          24   was coming, that a continuance is in order for at least a



          25   month to allow us to review this new material that has
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           1   just arrived today.



           2            To do other -- to proceed without this



           3   continuance is to essentially have a hearing by ambush,



           4   by which additional material is submitted by the



           5   applicant, who knows how often, keeping everybody



           6   off-balance and off-guard.



           7            The memo that we received this morning, which is



           8   referenced in the brief, which is particularly important



           9   for this and apparently is expected to be read by the



          10   council because it's a part of the brief, deals with



          11   multiple changes in locations of wind turbines, locations



          12   of projects shifting the battery operations from one side



          13   of the project to the other, making changes in a variety



          14   of things.



          15            So the totality of this suggests that a



          16   continuance of at least a month to allow review of this



          17   material is entirely appropriate.



          18            And I will point out that this material has all



          19   been kind of foisted on us by the applicant without



          20   notice, without indication that it was coming, and



          21   without indication of how it was going to be treated in



          22   an evidentiary manner in this prehearing conference.



          23            So we think that due process compliance would



          24   rule.  Attention to the public's participation in these



          25   proceedings indicates that a continuance of at least a
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           1   month is necessary to review all of this new material.



           2            And that would indicate that the prehearing



           3   conference today should be canceled and a new one



           4   scheduled, based upon a new hearing schedule.



           5            So thank you for that.  I hope my motion is



           6   clear.



           7            JUDGE TOREM:  It's clear, and it's denied as far



           8   as the continuance.  That should be clear as well.



           9            Let me turn to the applicant and find out



          10   exactly what this material was that was shared at



          11   1:01 p.m. today, according to Ms. Stavitsky's email.



          12            Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, I'm not sure who



          13   wants to speak to it.



          14            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes.



          15            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, I would like to make



          16   sure -- the sound quality coming from the applicant's



          17   microphone has a little bit of an echo, so if you could



          18   take it a little slower, the court reporter can still get



          19   things down.  But I want to be kind to our court



          20   reporter.



          21            Go ahead, sir.



          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.



          23            Can you hear me okay?



          24            Can you hear me --



          25            JUDGE TOREM:  That's a little better.
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           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  That's better.



           2            JUDGE TOREM:  I can.  That's a little better.



           3            MR. MCMAHAN:  I appreciate the time.  Gave me an



           4   opportunity to lower my blood pressure down a little bit



           5   in the last two minutes.



           6            So let me explain what happened here.



           7            We have been in a process with EFSEC for a very



           8   long time, where EFSEC asks us for data requests.  And we



           9   had indicated to EFSEC some time ago that we have



          10   continued to, as we go, modify the application to address



          11   things we learn; ways to minimize, mitigate impacts;



          12   additional information that EFSEC has asked specifically



          13   of us for their work as they prepared the Final



          14   Environmental Impact Statement.



          15            So we did, in fact, accumulate a number of



          16   issues that we were aware of that EFSEC had asked us for



          17   in Data Request No. 9.  So we did submit that this week



          18   in order to be responsive to EFSEC.



          19            We did cite, in passing -- if I had to again, I



          20   probably wouldn't have done it, but we did cite in



          21   passing, reference to the memorandum that we submitted to



          22   EFSEC.  And I believe there was also -- might have been a



          23   reference to -- I think it might have been a reference to



          24   a 2023 updated wildlife report, which also we provide



          25   regularly to EFSEC, as they ask us for additional
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           1   information concerning the project.  So that's what we



           2   submitted.



           3            Now, I and our team here had certainly some



           4   sensitivity about doing that prior to moving along with



           5   the testimonial process.  Had I to do it again, I



           6   probably just wouldn't have put those references in the



           7   brief.  But we did it thinking this information will be



           8   posted on the EFSEC website and there will be access to



           9   it.



          10            The problem, of course, is that EFSEC takes a



          11   bit of time to get stuff posted on the website.  So this



          12   afternoon, we offered to the parties, and Ariel



          13   circulated to the parties, the memorandum, which was for



          14   Data Request No. 9 to be submitted to EFSEC staff.



          15            That's what we did.  It wasn't an ambush.  It



          16   was what we have done throughout these whole proceedings



          17   to respond to data requests that we've gotten from EFSEC



          18   staff.  And our stuff was developed over the years and a



          19   lot of stuff has developed over the last month.  And so



          20   EFSEC asked us to accumulate that change information.



          21            And we could have held off until the



          22   adjudication was done, which didn't make sense to me.  We



          23   could have -- and really, we just had the time over the



          24   last few days to finish it up, the team, the Scout team



          25   had time to finish it up.
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           1            There is no untoward motive here.  It was all in



           2   an effort to be as transparent and open as possible to



           3   provide this information as requested by the council.



           4            Yes, it coincided with the starting of the



           5   adjudication.  We will, if you want, if you think it



           6   best, Judge Torem, we'll reissue the brief taking those



           7   citations out of the brief.  I'm happy to do that.  And



           8   if there's anything else we can do to address this issue,



           9   we're happy to do that.



          10            It is simply an effort to provide the best



          11   information at the time it was requested of us by EFSEC



          12   staff.  Nothing more.  Nothing more conspiratorial than



          13   that.



          14            JUDGE TOREM:  Well, Mr. McMahan I appreciate the



          15   explanation.



          16            I do see that there's essentially a one-page



          17   cover letter and a 79-page memo.  It is noted that it's



          18   responding to the Final Environmental Impact Statement



          19   that staff is working on and not directly related, other



          20   than the citations in the brief, to the adjudication.



          21            Aside from what you've stated and explained,



          22   Mr. McMahan, was there any attempt to make that evidence



          23   as part of the hearing?



          24            MR. MCMAHAN:  A little solemn here, but, no.  In



          25   fact, we said that; that this -- we did not intend to
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           1   have this be part of the adjudication hearing.  We



           2   recognized that, you know, it's been challenging.



           3            So, no, that was not our intention.



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me suggest, then, as I



           5   haven't got my finger exactly on what page this material



           6   is cited to, is it only on one or two pages of the



           7   applicant's brief?



           8            MR. MCMAHAN:  It is.  Yes, Your Honor.  I think



           9   mostly footnotes.  No.  I'm sorry.



          10            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me have you --



          11            MR. MCMAHAN:  I'm sorry.



          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead.



          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  We're having a mute button



          14   problem.



          15            So, yes, aside from -- I think in a couple of



          16   footnotes in the brief, and we would be happy to take



          17   those out.



          18            JUDGE TOREM:  Why don't you do this:  As opposed



          19   to taking them out, so it's exactly clear to all parties



          20   on the line, go back in and use the strike-out feature of



          21   Word.



          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sure.



          23            JUDGE TOREM:  And if that's not helpful, I'm



          24   sure there's a Sharpie in your office.  Black out that



          25   material, if you have to do it manually, and resubmit by
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           1   close of business today.  I'll make sure that staff



           2   that's on the phone here is able to let counsel know to



           3   use the Version 2 of your brief as opposed to the



           4   Version 1.



           5            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes.



           6            JUDGE TOREM:  And they can -- everybody will see



           7   that they are getting this.  It's been stricken.  And



           8   these attachments that you sent out today won't be part



           9   of the adjudication, but staff will continue to use the



          10   information supplied to them as part of your response to



          11   Data Request No. 9.



          12            So I think we've now taken care of that



          13   particular issue of any ambush.



          14            And, again, the continuance request, based on



          15   that, is denied.



          16            And now the evidentiary issue is taken care of



          17   as well.



          18            Is there anything else --



          19            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor?



          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, go ahead.



          21            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



          22            Just -- before we move forward, Yakama Nation,



          23   if I could make my own verbal motion for the record,



          24   understanding what -- all I have heard.  We have our own



          25   motion to make, and I think that we should be able to
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           1   make it on the record.  And I would like to do that



           2   before we move forward so that we're not coming back to



           3   the same issue.



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Is it in regard to what



           5   Mr. Aramburu raised or something different?



           6            MS. VOELCKERS:  In regard to what Mr. Aramburu



           7   raised.



           8            JUDGE TOREM:  I'll let you go ahead and make



           9   your motion and then we'll see if there's any additional



          10   rulings that need to be made.



          11            Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.



          12            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



          13            The Yakama Nation has its own motion to continue



          14   the adjudication because of applicant's violation of



          15   WAC 463-60-116.



          16            Applicant cited materials in its prehearing



          17   brief that were not only unavailable to any other party



          18   but actually also include extremely untimely



          19   modifications to the project design that is the subject



          20   of this adjudication, multiple witnesses' testimony, and



          21   other parties' own prehearing briefs.



          22            I would respectfully ask that Your Honor review



          23   the memorandum itself before ruling on our motion because



          24   this is not simply an issue of striking footnotes.



          25            Applicant has provided absolutely no
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           1   justification for its failure to disclose any of this



           2   information before this afternoon.  And this proposed



           3   project redesign does not fit within what is contemplated



           4   under WAC 463-60-116.



           5            As Mr. McMahan said, a lot of information has



           6   developed, but it's not clear that this information was



           7   not developed this week and it is directly relevant to



           8   this proceeding.



           9            Yakama Nation does not take its motion to



          10   continue lightly, as we ourselves have been working



          11   diligently and preparing in good faith.  But is truly



          12   unworkable to be responding to this level of gamesmanship



          13   in the midst of brief drafting, witness prep, and hearing



          14   prep.



          15            This new information provides a clear --



          16   presents a clear prejudice to our client, Yakama Nation.



          17   We have essentially prepared for a hearing on a project



          18   that is now apparently no longer before the council.



          19            It is not reasonable to ask the parties to



          20   prepare for this new project design over the weekend.  We



          21   haven't actually even been afforded the time to discuss



          22   this new information with our own client before today's



          23   conference.



          24            In order to ensure that all parties can cite to



          25   a fair record, the adjudication should be continued to
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           1   allow sufficient response.



           2            The applicant has turned their proposal into a



           3   constantly evolving proposal, and Your Honor should draw



           4   a line and continue the hearing for the time necessary to



           5   ensure that all parties are talking about the same thing.



           6            It is clear that applicant is now talking about



           7   a different proposal than the one that we had presented



           8   our cases on -- prepared our cases on for the hearing set



           9   on Monday.



          10            Even if the applicant does withdraw its footnote



          11   citations, that does not cure the prejudice because there



          12   are clearly project redesign conversations happening



          13   outside the adjudicative process and outside of the



          14   information shared with the other parties.



          15            Thank you for considering our motion.



          16            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.



          17            MR. ARAMBURU:  Mr. Examiner, I would like to be



          18   heard as well, please.



          19            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on, Mr. Aramburu.



          20            This is the Yakama Nation's motion.



          21            MR. ARAMBURU:  I understand.



          22            JUDGE TOREM:  I've heard you on your motion and



          23   I've issued my ruling.



          24            Let me have the applicant respond, and then



          25   we'll see if there's anything that TCC needs to respond
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           1   to back.



           2            Mr. McMahan.



           3            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, this is Ariel



           4   Stavitsky.  I can respond to this one.



           5            You know, our reasoning here is the same as our



           6   response to TCC's similar motion.  I think this is really



           7   a product of these two parallel processes, this



           8   adjudication and the SEPA process, the DRA request



           9   process that are proceeding in tandem.



          10            And, Your Honor --



          11            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on a second.  Hold on a



          12   second, Ms. Stavitsky.



          13            I'm a little worried that you're speaking



          14   quickly, and I'm worried that the sound quality is



          15   deteriorating.  So whatever Mr. McMahan did to improve



          16   the auditory sound quality coming from your conference



          17   room, if you would do the same.  And just slow down for



          18   me and then we'll hear the rest of your explanation.



          19            MS. STAVITSKY:  My apologies.  I'll try to keep



          20   the court reporter in mind.



          21            I was stating that, you know, this issue is



          22   really a product of the fact that we have these two



          23   parallel processes proceeding in tandem:  The SEPA data



          24   request process and this adjudication.



          25            So as Mr. McMahan explained, you know, these are
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           1   ongoing -- this is an iterative process and we are



           2   providing updated information to EFSEC in response to



           3   their data requests.



           4            And so this is our attempt to provide, you know,



           5   improved transparency, provide all parties with as much



           6   information as we possibly can, particularly given



           7   that -- well, I know that TCC and Yakama Nation have had



           8   concerns about the fact that, you know, information



           9   that's part of the EIS process is not making it into the



          10   adjudication.



          11            So this is not an attempt to ambush.  This is an



          12   attempt to provide as much information as we can.  But



          13   if, you know, based on the timing of this adjudication,



          14   if it's too much to be provided, this updated



          15   information, we can certainly, you know, stall the clock



          16   and base the adjudication on -- not on this updated



          17   information.



          18            So, you know, we're happy to respond however



          19   makes the most sense in terms of making sure that both of



          20   these processes can proceed uninterrupted.



          21            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Stavitsky.



          22            Mr. Aramburu, anything to add to what



          23   Ms. Voelckers said, in response to what Ms. Stavitsky



          24   said, either way?  I'll give you a few minutes.  Go



          25   ahead, sir.
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           1            MR. ARAMBURU:  I mean, the general response here



           2   is, this is crazy.  They have sent us a memo, now, that



           3   says, for example, remove all solar array infrastructure



           4   west of I-82.



           5            Remove solar infrastructure within 1 mile of



           6   I-82.



           7            Remove four turbines near Benton City.



           8            So this -- it goes on with 11 pages of this.



           9            So the council has to understand what the



          10   project is before it.  And the project has been changed



          11   by the applicant.  It's not just a matter of deleting



          12   footnotes and other things.  The project has been



          13   changed.



          14            So we're going to go ahead with days and days of



          15   testimony on a project that's been changed.  That makes



          16   no sense of any kind.  Completely violative of due



          17   process.



          18            And I guess I would like to know what you're



          19   going to tell the council that the project is because



          20   you're going to have to tell them the project has been



          21   changed at 1:05 p.m. on August 10 by this memo from the



          22   applicant.



          23            This makes no sense at all and is going to



          24   confuse council members, and council members are going to



          25   question why they are reviewing a project that's been
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           1   changed by the applicant.  It makes no sense of any kind.



           2            MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, this is Ken Harper.



           3   Can I be heard?



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Of course, Mr. Harper.  You're



           5   next.



           6            MR. HARPER:  I would just like to state for the



           7   record that the County joins in these motions.  It is



           8   going to be a significant impediment to



           9   cross-examination.



          10            I've been working on my cross-examination,



          11   particularly of Ms. McClain.  And now it is very



          12   difficult for me to understand how the cross-examination



          13   should be modified.



          14            Mr. McMahan's suggestion, or I guess his action



          15   of striking portions of the brief does not actually



          16   address Mr. Aramburu's point, which is that the project



          17   is in a state of transition.



          18            So the County joins in the motion, and the



          19   County renews its earlier motion that this entire matter



          20   should be stayed until there's an FEIS and we actually



          21   have a project that's a fit subject for adjudication.



          22            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



          23            We all know that I've already denied



          24   continuances based on waiting for the FEIS.  There's not



          25   a basis in law to do so.
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           1            That aside, I understand where the parties are



           2   coming from on a moving target.



           3            Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, Ms. Schimelpfenig,



           4   would you care to give an explanation of why the



           5   applicant continues to make minor and/or major changes to



           6   the original proposal that we first saw in the



           7   application for site certification filed on February 8th



           8   of 2021?



           9            And, Mr. McMahan, if you want to take into



          10   account the ongoing debates or discussion of the project



          11   with council staff and how a draft environmental impact



          12   statement is being responded to with various



          13   recommendations for mitigation that are not in dispute by



          14   the applicant and coming up with the update prior to the



          15   adjudicative hearing, as required by administrative code



          16   provisions adopted by EFSEC, and give the overview of



          17   what you think the council was expecting from the



          18   applicant and what the applicant has been trying to do by



          19   filing the changes, despite the frustration it might



          20   create for anybody trying to figure out what we're



          21   adjudicating here the rest of the month.



          22            So with all of that, as a compound question,



          23   please, enlighten everybody on the call what the



          24   applicant has been up to.



          25            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.
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           1            And it's not just what the applicant has been up



           2   to, we have gone through nine data requests for the life



           3   of the project.  This is not -- this process is not one



           4   where you file an application and it sits there until the



           5   adjudication and then an approval is issued.



           6            This is, as Ms. Stavitsky indicated, it's a



           7   two-track process.  It's an iterative process that we've



           8   been dealing with for the life of the project.



           9            And the other irony here is what's actually



          10   proposed with this information is a net reduction of



          11   impact.  That's what we have been talking with EFSEC



          12   staff about in terms of the intent of these



          13   modifications.



          14            And, you know, it is part of a process that we



          15   have been on for a very long time.  We debated, should we



          16   just not move this forward right now.  We thought in the



          17   interest of transparency, that it was best to put it out



          18   there so that people understood.



          19            And, again, does not -- these are not



          20   modifications that are going to increase impacts or



          21   dramatically change the project.  They are fairly nuanced



          22   and they do, in fact, accomplish net reduction of impact.



          23            JUDGE TOREM:  And in your experience, which may



          24   differ from mine, has this been, for other clients that



          25   you represented before EFSEC, essentially a parallel of
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           1   past practices reaching back to things done in Kittitas



           2   County, things done at the Tesoro matter, which I don't



           3   think you were on, or the Whistling Ridge project?



           4            Has this been the ongoing funneling down of



           5   impact prior to the council actually considering what's



           6   in front of them?



           7            MR. MCMAHAN:  It absolutely has.  In fact, the



           8   Whistling Bridge project, during the adjudication,



           9   literally live during the adjudication, modifications



          10   were made, you know, when the process was underway.



          11            So this is really -- in terms of the several



          12   projects I've been involved in, there's nothing different



          13   about this.  It has to do with the way the EFSEC process



          14   works.  And the idea is that as EFSEC gains greater



          15   knowledge through all of these proceedings and it tends



          16   to, you know, accelerate at this point in time,



          17   Judge Torem, because a lot of information is being



          18   developed as we learn more about each others' positions



          19   in the case.



          20            We are being responsive and we are being



          21   responsive in a way that we've been directed by EFSEC



          22   council staff to provide information as it evolves and as



          23   it develops.



          24            There's nothing different that has been handled



          25   in the other projects I've been involved in.
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           1            And, no, I didn't represent Tesoro.



           2            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Well, I've heard from



           3   the applicants in response and I've heard, Ms. Voelckers.



           4   I appreciate what you've raised, what Mr. Aramburu has



           5   supplemented, and what Mr. Harper has added as well.



           6            Ms. Reyneveld, anything you wanted to add on



           7   this?



           8            MS. REYNEVELD:  So I have been out of internet



           9   access for -- until earlier this morning and have not had



          10   an opportunity to review the prehearing briefs of any of



          11   the parties.  And so I do not have the benefit of having



          12   reviewed the updated information fully that the applicant



          13   provided.



          14            You know, I do think a continuance makes sense



          15   for us to be able to review the information, at least for



          16   counsel for the environment, if it is, indeed, correct,



          17   that there have been reductions or, you know, serious



          18   modifications or mitigative measures that have been



          19   proposed.  In response to the new information, I know



          20   that I would like a little bit more time to review it



          21   with my witness.



          22            With that said, I have not had the benefit of



          23   the other parties of reviewing the information because



          24   I'm just not getting internet access, but would certainly



          25   benefit from a brief continuance to review the
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           1   information, just so that we are all on the same page in



           2   terms of the actual project proposal that we're



           3   litigating.



           4            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Tim McMahan here.



           5            I want to ground this in a very specific actual



           6   thing that happened in the Kittitas Valley case, and I



           7   know that you were there at the time.



           8            During the adjudication and close to the time



           9   the case was depleted, the applicant in that case put on



          10   the table, and the citing council was happy to see it, a



          11   standard of four times to remind setback that would deal



          12   with a lot of issues raised by residential landowners.



          13   And that happened as we were in the closing days or



          14   moments of the adjudication of Kittitas Valley.



          15            And I don't remember, frankly, you know,



          16   whether -- if there was controversy around that, but it



          17   was an issue of some importance to the cite council; that



          18   we were able to resolve prior to the close of the



          19   adjudication.



          20            I could probably come up with other examples,



          21   but that's the one that really sticks out to me, Your



          22   Honor.



          23            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, if I could respond



          24   to a couple of things that Mr. McMahan had said, I would



          25   appreciate the opportunity.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead, Ms. Voelckers.



           2            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           3            I just want to clarify that our motion, while we



           4   certainly do stand by the original motion continuance



           5   around the lack of FEIS, is not out of -- our motion



           6   today is not out of any confusion about what is happening



           7   between the applicant and EFSEC on the SEPA side.



           8            It is about the need for substantive project



           9   modifications to be shared in a timely way.  And I think



          10   that that is clearly supported by the WAC, which allows



          11   the applicant to provide this information up to 30 days



          12   before the hearing.  But it's not supported to do it now.



          13            And while Mr. McMahan concedes that there's a



          14   net reduction in environmental impacts, respectfully,



          15   none of the lawyers are the ones that can really testify



          16   to that.  Like, we need time for our experts and their



          17   experts to be able to speak about that.



          18            And so I just wanted to emphasize that we're not



          19   saying that the applicant and EFSEC cannot talk through



          20   these information exchanges and requests for further



          21   information.  But when it is a project design



          22   modification, that is a substantive change.  And this



          23   last -- you know, last night or today, however you want



          24   to count this new information, it's not compliant with



          25   any rule.  And we need some sort of line here that allows
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           1   us to be talking about the same thing on Monday.



           2            So that's really what we're asking for here.



           3   And there might be certain positives that come out of



           4   certain modifications, but no one has had a chance to



           5   review this memo besides the applicant.



           6            And so we really need the opportunity for the



           7   folks that we've called to testify over the next two



           8   weeks to be able to make that analysis, not the lawyers



           9   today.



          10            So thank you for your consideration.



          11            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Ms. Voelckers.



          12            Mr. McMahan, this memo that's being referred to,



          13   that's the one that was circulated an hour before we



          14   started today; is that correct?



          15            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct.



          16            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Voelckers, I'm



          17   going to take that under advisement until Monday morning.



          18   At 8:30, we'll take it up again and you can summarize the



          19   motion on behalf of the other parties as well because I



          20   don't want to take an extended amount of time at 8:30



          21   Monday morning.  But I'll consider it.  I'll take a look



          22   at the memo in the days ahead.



          23            My thought is that all of the parties are going



          24   to bring Monday morning with them, their availability or



          25   not, for the week of September 25th through the 29th for
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           1   one to two days of additional supplemental adjudicative



           2   hearing, if I decide to grant the motion in part.  So I



           3   want that material by the end of the day on Monday the



           4   14th of August.  Everybody will have their availability



           5   for that week of September 25th to 29th.



           6            I may want an additional four to eight hours of



           7   hearing time split over one or two days, depending on



           8   whether this raises, truly, any new issues that I think



           9   need to be talked about 30 days after the close of the



          10   hearing, which would set back the filing of posthearing



          11   briefs accordingly.



          12            If I grant a motion to continue the entire



          13   hearing, I'll let you know Monday morning.  But I'm not



          14   going to give you a ruling on that today.



          15            So let's move on to the original portions of



          16   today's prehearing conference.



          17            I appreciate the reaction time today to some of



          18   the late-breaking filings.  So no critique imposed.



          19            Much as it's still baseball season, you continue



          20   to impress me with curve balls, all of you, and I'm going



          21   to do my best to take my time before I swing at any of



          22   these pitches.



          23            So let's go back to the original things that



          24   were on the agenda for today.  One of them was reviewing



          25   the schedule, and I want to come back to Mr. Simon's
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           1   testimony.



           2            Given the discussion we've had today and what it



           3   may have an impact on Ms. McClain's cross-examination, I



           4   certainly want to take back anything I said in my



           5   late-breaking email two minutes before today's



           6   conference.



           7            We're not going to put Mr. Simon on Monday.



           8   Tuesday looks pretty full.  My suggestion is that we



           9   either bridge Tuesday into Wednesday or we run the



          10   hearing an extra half hour to one hour on Wednesday,



          11   August the 16th.



          12            Mr. Aramburu, can you make Mr. Simon available



          13   either late Tuesday and/or late Wednesday?



          14            MR. MCMAHAN:  We've -- Mr. Simon has a long



          15   scheduled trip to Alaska.



          16            JUDGE TOREM:  That's not the issue.  That's not



          17   the issue.  He's out for that week.



          18            Can you make him available next Tuesday or next



          19   Wednesday?



          20            MR. MCMAHAN:  I can make him available by way of



          21   email and phone conversations with him.  He can be



          22   available at noon on Friday, August 25, which is when he



          23   is currently scheduled.  He will be getting off -- he's



          24   stepping off an airplane from Alaska, but he can be



          25   available for cross-examination at that time.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Let's go with that as Plan B.  I



           2   don't trust airline schedules to deliver witnesses to a



           3   place where it's quiet.



           4            Can he be available next week, since he's



           5   apparently not in Alaska next week?



           6            MR. MCMAHAN:  My proposal would be Friday,



           7   August 25, which is on his return from Alaska.



           8            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Are you willing, if



           9   he's not available within 15 minutes of the scheduled



          10   time, that he waives his right to testify?



          11            MR. MCMAHAN:  I can't do that.  I just don't



          12   know what the schedules are.  He is scheduled to get off



          13   the airplane at 11:00 o'clock in the morning.  I can make



          14   sure that he is by a phone at noon to be able to be



          15   available for cross-examination.  But I cannot account



          16   for the vagaries of travel for these witnesses.



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  As I recall, Mr. Aramburu,



          18   you had no control over the Blue Angles last Thursday,



          19   and I'm not going to grant you any control over what I



          20   presume is an Alaska Airlines flight from Anchorage.



          21            If he is to be made available on Friday, that is



          22   at TCC's peril.  I am offering you going once, going



          23   twice, going three times today, an opportunity to have



          24   him testify next week on either Tuesday, late in the day,



          25   or Wednesday, before the council meeting.
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           1            Would you like those options, or would you like



           2   to gamble next Friday on the 25th?



           3            MR. MCMAHAN:  I would like to consult with him



           4   and get back to you by the end of the day.



           5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  If you'll send an



           6   email with your selection, it will be accommodated



           7   accordingly.



           8            So, again, his choices are, Tuesday -- let me



           9   roll back up to it -- August 15th at 4:00 o'clock;



          10   Wednesday, August 16th at 11:30 -- I think there's a



          11   typographical error there.  It should say a.m.  Or per



          12   your suggestion, Friday, August 25th at noon.



          13            Let me know your preference.  If it's next week,



          14   we'll talk about it at the housekeeping session on



          15   Monday.  If it's the following week on Friday, I'm



          16   putting it on the record today:  If he's not available at



          17   the designated time, we'll check the flight number.  And



          18   at my discretion and the council's indulgence, we may



          19   wait for him.



          20            But if he's not available, I'm not going to have



          21   however many people are on the line here today and the



          22   entire council wait for that flight to come in on Friday.



          23   That will be a gamble that TCC takes or not.  If he's not



          24   present to adopt his testimony, it will be stricken.



          25            Are we absolutely clear on that, Mr. Aramburu?
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           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  We disagree but we're clear.



           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Perfect.



           3            All right.  Let's move on to the rest of the



           4   schedule.



           5            Is there anything else I need to know beyond



           6   what's obvious on the piece here?  And, again, the



           7   Wednesday, 11:30 a.m., we would fit Mr. Simon in with the



           8   swearing in of uncalled wildlife witnesses, which should



           9   take mere moments.  That's why that particular time looks



          10   attractive to me.



          11            From the applicant, anything else I need to know



          12   that appears to be -- that the schedule might go



          13   sideways, so I can anticipate any dates that were -- I



          14   don't know, discussions that happened off line that



          15   there's any worry about, the estimates from the



          16   applicant's perspective?



          17            MS. STAVITSKY:  No, Your Honor.  We believe that



          18   list that was just circulated is still accurate, from our



          19   perspective.



          20            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Harper, I know



          21   that Ms. Foster was covering the last couple of



          22   prehearings.



          23            From your review of all of this, does the County



          24   have any concerns?



          25            MR. HARPER:  No, Your Honor.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, I know you've been



           2   out of internet for a piece of time due to the



           3   devastation in Maui.



           4            From what you've participated in and getting the



           5   schedule together, does counsel for the environment have



           6   any concerns?



           7            MS. REYNEVELD:  No, counsel for the environment



           8   does not have any concerns at this time.



           9            Thank you, Judge.



          10            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, were you



          11   intending to have submitted a prehearing brief?  In my



          12   accounting, I did not see one come in.  I may have missed



          13   it.



          14            MS. REYNEVELD:  Counsel for the environment was



          15   not intending to submit a prehearing brief, but we will



          16   be submitting a posthearing brief.



          17            Thank you for --



          18            JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.



          19            MS. REYNEVELD:  Thank you for asking, though,



          20   because I wouldn't have been able to submit it yesterday.



          21            JUDGE TOREM:  Understood.  I wanted to see if



          22   there was going to be any accommodation needed, but it



          23   sounds like we'll wait for posthearing briefs from you.



          24   And hopefully the internet situation and the general



          25   situation is better.
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           1            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Thank you.



           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, anything else that



           3   I need to know about the schedule that Yakama Nation is



           4   still concerned with?



           5            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           6            I would like to better understand the plan for



           7   Mr. Kobus's recent -- or, excuse me, Stoel's recent



           8   motion to supplement Mr. Kobus's testimony before



           9   confirming our agreement.



          10            With the schedule as emailed on August 9th, we



          11   are in agreement with what was emailed and that we did



          12   workshop collaboratively with Stoel, but I think there's



          13   still a question that remains about Mr. Kobus's



          14   testimony.  And so we would like to wait for that to be



          15   resolved before we agree with the schedule in its



          16   entirety.



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Voelckers, it's my



          18   understanding that Mr. Kobus does not appear on the



          19   witness list; is that correct?



          20            MS. VOELCKERS:  Correct, Your Honor, because



          21   this was developed before -- or, I mean, this has been a



          22   work in progress, but the motion to supplement was just



          23   so recently filed that it was not accounted for on this



          24   list.  And, in fact, it was filed after we gave our final



          25   feedback to the applicant on the list that you have in
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           1   front of you.



           2            And so seeing now that there is a proposal for



           3   him to sit for cross-examination, if Your Honor does



           4   allow that new supplemental testimony to come in, we



           5   would like to reserve the right to cross-examine him.



           6   And I don't know what his general availability is, but I



           7   think there's certainly time left at the end of the



           8   hearing for that.



           9            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me hear from Mr. McMahan or



          10   someone else at the Stoel Rives office as to the



          11   intention and timing, if that supplemental testimony is



          12   admitted in conjunction with his discovery deposition.



          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, your Honor.  Tim



          14   McMahan here.



          15            We notified the parties at the last prehearing



          16   conference that we were most likely to be submitting some



          17   supplemental testimony to correct some understanding --



          18   some misunderstandings about the battery energy storage



          19   system, technology, and water safety around the BESS



          20   systems.



          21            We notified everyone last prehearing conference



          22   that we felt that was going to be necessary.  We intended



          23   to provide some supplementary testimony in order to



          24   correct some information and to update some information.



          25   So we have done that.
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           1            I recognize that Mr. Aramburu has strongly



           2   objected to that testimony.  Our view is that it would be



           3   inaccurate to submit to the citing council prior



           4   information, design information, prior information about



           5   the BESS facility -- battery energy storage system



           6   facility because that is just simply not as described in



           7   the original testimony.  It's just simply not the way



           8   it's going to be proposed to EFSEC.



           9            So we -- and I apologize that it took some days



          10   to pull this together because, frankly, this was new



          11   stuff for me to learn and figure out.  And it took a bit



          12   to have sufficiency and technical information so that we



          13   could provide helpful information to the citing council



          14   to understand the safety issues around the BESS -- the



          15   battery energy storage facility -- around the BESS



          16   facility.



          17            So that's what we did.  We felt that it was



          18   just -- it was not productive or fruitful to give the



          19   council something that was not accurate.  So we just



          20   tried to provide accurate information with that



          21   supplemental testimony.



          22            JUDGE TOREM:  One more question, Mr. McMahan.



          23   And, again, slow down a little bit for the court



          24   reporter.



          25            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  When would Mr. McMahan be --



           2   sorry.



           3            When would Mr. Kobus be available to testify?



           4   Would that also be on Friday, August 25th in the



           5   afternoon?



           6            MR. MCMAHAN:  Your Honor, Mr. Kobus is along for



           7   the ride, and we will make him available if



           8   cross-examination is desired whenever it fits within the



           9   schedule.



          10            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  That's good to know.



          11            Ms. Voelckers, once I have a chance to take a



          12   look at that supplemental testimony, if it is admitted,



          13   I'll let the parties know as soon as possible.  It may be



          14   Monday morning at the housekeeping.  It may then be



          15   something to renew the -- if it is admitted, renew the



          16   motions or add to the motions a reason for the



          17   continuance and/or the supplemental dates of hearing that



          18   I mentioned earlier, that would be, without looking at



          19   the council's schedule, possibly the week of



          20   September 25th to 29th.



          21            Those are dates that I think are 30 days after



          22   the close of the hearing and responsive to the length of



          23   continuance the parties were seeking.  So that's why I've



          24   selected that week to determine your availabilities.



          25            Mr. McMahan, if I do end up admitting the
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           1   testimony and I believe that it needs additional time for



           2   the parties, that would be when I would ask Mr. Kobus to



           3   make himself available for cross-exam.



           4            If I admit the testimony supplementally to go



           5   with what's in the deposition and I think it's not



           6   something the parties need 30 days, then we'll see if



           7   he's available at another place in the hearing.  But



           8   likely Friday, August 25th, with some of that afternoon



           9   time.  And we'll schedule it after the time that we might



          10   have for Mr. Simon, if that's the choice that TCC makes



          11   to present him, as opposed to the current scheduled time.



          12   But we'll take that matter up later.



          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  That's fine.  Thank you, Your



          14   Honor.



          15            MR. ARAMBURU:  Judge, may I be heard on these



          16   matters briefly?



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  Certainly.  Go ahead,



          18   Mr. Aramburu.



          19            MR. ARAMBURU:  First of all, with respect to



          20   witness scheduling, we have been in contact with Lonnie



          21   Click from the Benton Fire District.  And he is scheduled



          22   for Wednesday, August 23, at 9:30.



          23            It turns out he is not available on that day but



          24   he is available on August 21 or 22.  So we would like the



          25   parties to accommodate.  And he is -- there has not been
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           1   a request to cross-examine him nor was his testimony



           2   requested to be stricken.  So it would be simply an



           3   affirmation of testimony.



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  I have no problem at all with



           5   that, Mr. Aramburu.  If you would let us know what day is



           6   most convenient for Lonnie Click to document testimony, I



           7   don't think the parties will object at all.  We'll just,



           8   in a housekeeping session, move that to whatever day he's



           9   going to adopt his testimony.



          10            Is that acceptable with TCC?



          11            MR. ARAMBURU:  That would be fine with us.



          12            And I do want a clarification about our position



          13   about -- regarding Mr. Kobus's testimony.



          14            His supplement that he submitted to us involves



          15   a lot of technical material analysis of National Fire



          16   Protection Association standards and that kind of thing.



          17            So our principal interest is not so much to



          18   cross-examine him on those things, which he didn't seem



          19   to know anything about during his deposition, but rather



          20   to make sure that we have an opportunity to rebut that



          21   information with information of our own, given the late



          22   nature of what's been proposed here.



          23            So we are not necessarily asking for



          24   cross-examination, but we are asking for an opportunity



          25   to provide rebuttal to that material.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And TCC may feel that



           2   way but the other parties may wish to cross-examine.



           3            I'll let the other parties clarify with me next



           4   week on Monday at the housekeeping session or as soon



           5   thereafter as possible, what their intent is.  If there's



           6   nobody wishing to cross-examine but simply more time to



           7   rebut and supplement the record, we can do that and give



           8   additional time for posthearing briefs.



           9            Again, the extension that the applicant has is



          10   through January 31st of 2024.  It's my understanding that



          11   we would have all of the materials in from the



          12   adjudication late this fall and that the FEIS is on track



          13   to be presented to the council shortly thereafter.  We'll



          14   find out from the appropriate EFSEC staff when that



          15   timing is.  And then the council will have its full



          16   deliberations on the entire record.



          17            So there's time, Mr. Aramburu, to get additional



          18   information from the parties into the record on the



          19   adjudication side.  And when the FEIS is completed, it



          20   will also be before the council with sufficient time for



          21   them to make their recommendation on the entire record



          22   and the SEPA record up to the governor.



          23            So I want to assure you that on my side of the



          24   house, which is the adjudication, the entire record will



          25   be considered before any findings of fact or conclusions
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           1   of law are drawn from the adjudication.



           2            And I am assured by the rest of EFSEC staff that



           3   the council will also have the FEIS in time for their



           4   deliberations that go in conjunctive nature with what



           5   we're doing in the adjudication, before any



           6   recommendation is made to Governor Inslee.



           7            All right.  We've taken care of the schedule



           8   concerns.



           9            We've got Lonnie Click that will be moved around



          10   according to that schedule.



          11            We've got Rick Simon to come on a different date



          12   than August 23rd.



          13            And we've got questions now about the



          14   continuance request to handle all of the redesign issues



          15   per 463-60-116 and anything else that might come out of



          16   the Kobus deposition and the supplemental testimony.



          17            So we're going to move on from Agenda Item 2 to



          18   Agenda Item 3, which is the status update on the Yakama



          19   Nation's discovery requests regarding water resources.



          20            Ms. Voelckers.



          21            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



          22            And I respect that you are moving on, but if I



          23   could finish my thoughts on the schedule, I think we got



          24   a little sidetracked with my comment on Mr. Kobus.  I did



          25   have one more question for you --
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Please.



           2            MS. VOELCKERS:  -- on that.



           3            Okay.  So -- and then just to be clear, we will



           4   be asking to cross-examine Mr. Kobus, if that testimony



           5   is submitted.



           6            So on the 21st, when there is -- we'll be



           7   requesting the closed-record hearing, in meeting with my



           8   client this week, the question came up about viewing of



           9   the hearing for the council members, meaning the tribal



          10   council members.



          11            And so we can update our confidentiality



          12   agreement to reflect additional council members, but I



          13   wanted to make sure to understand if it would be okay to



          14   have multiple folks just kind of in a room together



          15   viewing the screen, or whether or not EFSEC would like a



          16   record of who all is participating in these hearings by



          17   being in the room for them.



          18            I mean, it's being closed at the Yakama Nation's



          19   request, so I hope that, you know, there's not concern



          20   about the Nation's tribal council members joining.  But I



          21   just want to make sure that we're doing it in a way



          22   that's appropriate and also so people aren't accidentally



          23   excluded from the room with the technology that's going



          24   to be used.



          25            So I don't know if this is a question for Your
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           1   Honor or for EFSEC staff, but I just wanted to bring that



           2   up while it was front of mind, to make sure that we're



           3   doing what we had to to avoid complications on your end.



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that very much.



           5            Let's go over that Monday schedule with the



           6   cultural historic archaeological resource impacts and



           7   identify each session that needs to be a closed-record



           8   hearing.



           9            I think the first one would be starting at



          10   10:45 a.m.; is that correct?



          11            MS. VOELCKERS:  I'm sorry.  I'm having a little



          12   bit of a technical issue.



          13            Is that -- that's the beginning of Ms. Lally's



          14   testimony, I believe?



          15            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.  So the Lally testimony



          16   is scheduled for 10:45 to 11:45 and again after lunch



          17   from 12:45 to 1:45.



          18            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes.  Okay.



          19            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, apologies.  This is



          20   Ariel Stavitsky for applicant.  And I would also ask --



          21   I'm glad we're addressing this.



          22            Ms. Ragsdale also had the question whether her



          23   testimony would be held in the breakout room as private.



          24   And her position is that it's going to be difficult, I



          25   think for her as well, to determine in the moment what of

�                                                                       46



           1   her testimony is subject to the protective order and what



           2   is not.



           3            So her preference would be that her testimony as



           4   well would be all held in the private breakout room.



           5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So it sounds as though



           6   the morning session starting at 9:00 all of the way



           7   through 1:45 --



           8            Let me go back to you, Ms. Voelckers.



           9            In looking at the rest of the day, is any of



          10   that day not going to be a confidential breakout session?



          11            MS. VOELCKERS:  Not -- my expectation, Your



          12   Honor, is that full day would be a closed hearing.  I



          13   know that there's discussion about having the fire chief



          14   just adopt his testimony, but for the witnesses that are



          15   listed there, we are asking that they all be heard in a



          16   closed-record hearing.



          17            So I would expect that, yes, that would be a



          18   full day of a closed hearing.



          19            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Noted.



          20            I don't see any problem with the Yakama Nation



          21   who is forwarding this confidential information, having



          22   as many people in any room that you would like or tribal



          23   members that you and the rest of the elders determine are



          24   entitled to hear this information.



          25            If you would like to have them sign on, I think
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           1   that we should make that Ms. Grantham and Ms. Owens know



           2   who else to expect so they can add them to the list of



           3   people authorized to be in the hearing that day.



           4            It will also be something that we can make clear



           5   next week at the hearing and maybe send out a supplement



           6   to the notice that went out for the hearing, that the



           7   bulk of the day on Monday, August 21st, other than Lonnie



           8   Click adopting testimony, if that's the date that works,



           9   that the hearing will be a closed record because of the



          10   sensitive and confidential nature of the testimony.  So



          11   that's Monday the 21st.



          12            Are there any other sessions throughout the



          13   course of the hearing that are anticipated to be



          14   confidential in a closed-record hearing?



          15            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, from the Yakama



          16   Nation's perspective, the other time where there might be



          17   a request for a closed-record hearing would be on



          18   testimony around the project's potential impacts to the



          19   pronghorn population.  And it's hard to predict how much



          20   of that, not knowing whether or not the council would



          21   have questions for Yakama Nation's own expert on that



          22   topic, Mr. Ganuelas, which is why we estimate half an



          23   hour, even though I understand that he, you know, is not



          24   appearing for cross-examination, just because we weren't



          25   sure whether or not the council would have questions for
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           1   him.



           2            And so our understanding from last Friday from



           3   you was they should be prepared to answer questions from



           4   the council.  And so we built in that time.



           5            So it is possible that there would be time at



           6   the end of the day Tuesday during Mr. Rahmig's testimony



           7   and Wednesday, during the remainder of his testimony or



           8   the swearing in of Yakama Nation's wildlife biologist.



           9   That's the only other time that I see on the schedule



          10   where we might be asking for that.  And it's a little



          11   tricky to predict how long that would be right now.



          12            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I appreciate that.



          13            So in summing that up, Tuesday afternoon at



          14   2:50 p.m., depending on where the cross-exam goes and the



          15   redirect for Mr. Rahmig and continuing on Wednesday



          16   morning at 9:00 a.m. for that testimony and redirect,



          17   those portions may have sessions that require us to go



          18   into closed record.



          19            You're also saying that when Mr. Ganuelas adopts



          20   his testimony Wednesday, late morning, if there are



          21   questions and he needs to comment on the pronghorn



          22   issues, those may also require us to move into closed



          23   session.



          24            Did I get that right?



          25            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.



           2            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, may I --



           3            JUDGE TOREM:  But I think it's help --



           4            MS. STAVITSKY:  I just wanted to add, the same



           5   will likely be true of -- there may be some need for



           6   confidential pronghorn testimony from our wildlife



           7   experts Erik Jansen and Troy Rahmig.



           8            And we were -- just to throw it out there as



           9   sort of a logistical solution, we were thinking it may



          10   make sense to sort of have a pronghorn subject matter



          11   time of day so that that could be held in the private



          12   breakout room, but defer to you and Ms. Voelckers on how



          13   you -- how best you think that would work out.



          14            JUDGE TOREM:  And this was Ms. Stavitsky; right?



          15            MS. STAVITSKY:  Yes.  Thanks, Your Honor.



          16   Ms. Stavitsky for applicant.



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  So, Ms. Stavitsky, you mentioned



          18   Mr. Jansen and was it Mr. Cook as well?



          19            MS. STAVITSKY:  Mr. Jansen and Mr. Rahmig.



          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And we already had



          21   identified Mr. Rahmig as potentially having that



          22   testimony.



          23            So Jansen and Rahmig on Tuesday and Wednesday



          24   this coming week and then the entire day on Monday, the



          25   21st.
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           1            All right.  I'm going to make sure Ms. Grantham



           2   is taking notes on that.  And if not, to reach out to me



           3   later to qualify or clarify anything.  But we may be



           4   putting out an amended notice today or tomorrow that



           5   indicates that those sessions on Tuesday the 15th of



           6   August and Wednesday the 16th of August are anticipated



           7   to have closed-record hearings, and that essentially the



           8   full day after the hearing opens on August 21st will be



           9   anticipated to being a closed-record session.



          10            Were there any other witnesses that any party



          11   thinks will have confidential information that requires a



          12   closed-record hearing?



          13            MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor --



          14            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Hearing -- go ahead.



          15            MS. STAVITSKY:  Apologies, Your Honor.  This is



          16   Ariel Stavitsky, again, for applicant.



          17            The only other thing we can possibly think may



          18   require a closed hearing is depending on your ruling on



          19   the pending motion to strike.



          20            If some of that testimony is allowed, there is



          21   certain trade secret information that may be required to



          22   be disclosed in a closed-record hearing.  And so that



          23   would be -- the witnesses likely affected by that, from



          24   our perspective, would be Rich Simon and Greg Poulos.



          25            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Understood.
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           1            Parties, we've been going at this for over an



           2   hour.  I want to have some mercy for the court reporter



           3   and anybody who has late-afternoon coffee consumption.



           4            So it's now 3:02.  I propose we come back at



           5   3:15 and get back on the record at that time.  So we'll



           6   take a 12-minute break here and come back at 3:15 and



           7   we'll resume the agenda with Item No. 3, I believe it is



           8   on -- Ms. Voelckers, I'm going to turn to you at 3:15 on



           9   the status of that discovery request.



          10            And I'll be prepared to give you a list of the



          11   outstanding orders I believe I need to get out when we



          12   get to Item No. 4, and then we'll go around again for



          13   No. 5.  And hopefully by 4:15, we can be done today, but



          14   I know we've scheduled it through 5:00 o'clock.



          15             All right.  We'll take a recess now until 3:15.



          16                        (Recess from 3:03 p.m. to 3:15 p.m.)



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  It's now 3:15.  Let me



          18   have a brief roll call to make sure everybody is back.



          19            For the applicant?



          20            MR. MCMAHAN:  We're here, Your Honor.



          21            JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama Nation?



          22            MS. VOELCKERS:  Present.



          23            Thank you, Your Honor.



          24            JUDGE TOREM:  Benton County?



          25            MR. HARPER:  Present, Your Honor.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld?



           2            MS. REYNEVELD:  I'm here.



           3            Thank you, Judge.



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And, Mr. Aramburu?



           5            MR. ARAMBURU:  Present for Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.



           6            Thank you, Your Honor.



           7            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's resume with Item



           8   No. 3 on the agenda, status update on the Yakama Nation's



           9   discovery request.



          10            Ms. Voelckers.



          11            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your Honor.



          12            We did receive a response to our discovery



          13   requests.  So that has been solved.



          14            I would like to note that we would likely have



          15   more, once we have a chance to review the memo that was



          16   submitted yesterday, and that's the subject of the motion



          17   to continue.



          18            JUDGE TOREM:  When you say that's the memo, is



          19   it the same memo we've been discussing today?



          20            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.



          21            MR. ARAMBURU:  Your Honor, this is Rick Aramburu



          22   speaking.



          23            The subject of the well is found for your notes,



          24   Your Honor, on Page 8 of the memo under Section 1.12.  It



          25   has been made an issue for these proceedings.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  You said Page 8, Section 1.12?



           2            MR. ARAMBURU:  Correct.



           3            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Aramburu,



           4   for that refinement.



           5            Ms. Voelckers, anything else I need to know



           6   about the discovery requests?



           7            MS. VOELCKERS:  Not at this time.



           8            Thank you, Your Honor.



           9            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Anybody from the



          10   applicant want to confirm, is there anything else



          11   outstanding you intend to be providing as continuing in



          12   this discovery request?



          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Not that I'm aware of, Your Honor,



          14   no.



          15            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then moving onto



          16   No. 4, the what does Judge Torem still have to do.



          17            So you can cross out the "if any."



          18            I understand that I still owe Mr. Aramburu and



          19   the parties my order on which witnesses are formally



          20   being moved from the TCC list that might be subject to



          21   adopting testimony and allowed for council questions and



          22   converting those to public comment.  So that's definitely



          23   something outstanding.



          24            There's some other motions to take out, I think



          25   it's Mr. Simon's testimony that was stricken.
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           1            And tell me for sure, Mr. Aramburu, if there's



           2   other portions for Mr. Krupin?  It looked as though he



           3   was listed for potential cross-examination.



           4            So there's still a motion out for both of those;



           5   is that correct?



           6            MR. ARAMBURU:  Your Honor, as I see your list,



           7   if I can put it that way, there is still an outstanding



           8   decision on a motion for reconsideration of inclusion of



           9   the testimony for witnesses Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and



          10   Simon -- part of Simon's testimony.



          11            There is an outstanding motion by the applicant



          12   to strike rebuttal testimony of those witnesses, which is



          13   also opposed by TCC.



          14            The third motion is our motion to compel certain



          15   documents in our request for production.  We have filed



          16   with you on Monday our response to that.



          17            So as far as we know, those are the three items



          18   that are outstanding that we are the most concerned with.



          19            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And I think by that



          20   listing, there's four.  There's the public comment versus



          21   prefile.  There's the motion for reconsideration you



          22   detailed.  There's the motion to compel certain documents



          23   and the Scout Clean Energy's opposition.



          24            And then there's the applicant's motion to



          25   strike rebuttal and your response that came in on this
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           1   first motion and your response this past week.



           2            I think I also have, Ms. Voelckers, a motion --



           3   I think it's really going to be the agreed order we



           4   talked about last week on the motion to supplement.  I



           5   think those came in on -- since our hearing last time or



           6   since our prehearing conference -- I can try to scroll



           7   through --



           8            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.



           9            JUDGE TOREM:  -- emails and find them.



          10            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  Shona



          11   Voelckers.



          12            That should be in your inbox.  And it just -- it



          13   took us a couple of days, given all of the other



          14   briefing.



          15            But we did circulate that and made sure that



          16   that was okay with the applicant, the way that it was



          17   phrased.  And also attached to my email is the deposition



          18   transcript for Mr. Kobus.



          19            The deposition transcripts and exhibits for



          20   Yakama Nation's motion to supplement were already



          21   provided.  And I know that Ms. Masengale was making sure



          22   that those were all able to be put online as well so that



          23   anyone could access those once the order is entered.



          24            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So then by my count,



          25   we're up to a fifth order, depending on 5A, 5B, however
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           1   many orders, taking into consideration those motions to



           2   supplement from Yakama Nation.



           3            Does the applicant see anything more outstanding



           4   than those five that we've talked about so far?



           5            MR. MCMAHAN:  I don't believe so, Your Honor.



           6            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper, was the County looking



           7   for anything else that I still owe the parties?



           8            MR. HARPER:  No, I don't believe so, Your Honor.



           9   Thank you.



          10            JUDGE TOREM:  For counsel for the environment,



          11   anything else that you are looking for that I still need



          12   to get to?



          13            MS. REYNEVELD:  No.  Thank you.



          14            We do still plan on submitting supplemental



          15   testimony, hopefully, today from our witness.  I was not



          16   able to submit that previously because of lack of access



          17   to internet.  So that's the only thing outstanding for



          18   us.



          19            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And do you anticipate



          20   that any of the parties will be objecting to that



          21   supplemental testimony, Ms. Reyneveld?  I'm not sure what



          22   discussions you may have had about that.



          23            MS. REYNEVELD:  I do not anticipate that, no.



          24            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, was the applicant



          25   considering, if you know what's going to be supplemented,
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           1   any concerns with CFE's witness?



           2            MR. MCMAHAN:  You know, Your Honor, this is an



           3   awkward question to ask -- or answer because we don't



           4   know exactly what it would be.



           5            I would say that before Ms. Reyneveld went to



           6   Maui, we did talk about it briefly and it didn't seem



           7   like we would have an issue.  But I guess it's -- I would



           8   like to reserve the opportunity to object to it if



           9   there's reason to do so.  I guess if I could just leave



          10   it at that.  I don't anticipate -- because we did --



          11   Ms. --



          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, and I'm not asking --



          13            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry.



          14            JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not asking, Mr. McMahan, that



          15   you waive any right once you've read it.  But I'm just



          16   looking for, should I be anticipating any further



          17   motions, whether in writing or verbally at one of our



          18   housekeeping sessions?



          19            MR. MCMAHAN:  I don't think so because I think I



          20   have -- we had good conversation with the CFE and so



          21   that's my answer.  I don't think so.



          22            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And, again, I don't expect



          23   attorneys to be predicting with any better luck than I



          24   had in front of military court-martial telling a judge



          25   how long a witness would take.  So I get it.
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           1            On this side of the bench, it's a lot easier to



           2   ask for information than it might be to provide it with



           3   any fidelity.



           4            Let me go, then, to Mr. Aramburu.



           5            Any other items besides those five that -- other



           6   than the pending motion we talked about earlier under



           7   No. 2 in the agenda?



           8            MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  There's been the motion to



           9   supplement the Kobus deposition.  We've filed a response



          10   to that just at 10:00 o'clock this morning.  So I think



          11   that's on your list.



          12            I do have one additional question, and it arises



          13   from this memorandum that we received at 1:05 this



          14   afternoon.



          15            On Page 2, there is a discussion of the east



          16   solar array size reduction.  And there's a paragraph that



          17   begins, "Rationale for change."  And the second sentence



          18   says, "In a settlement agreement, Scout Clean Energy is



          19   committed to reduce solar generation from this location



          20   by approximately 100 megawatts."



          21            I am not -- I have not seen a settlement



          22   agreement, and I think I would like the applicant to



          23   explain what that settlement agreement is.  And if



          24   it's -- and if one exists, that he make it available to



          25   us.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan.



           2            MR. MCMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           3            Yeah, we have been -- I would say a settlement



           4   agreement probably ought to say "proposed settlement



           5   agreement."  We -- Ms. Reyneveld can step in here too.



           6            We had -- during the spring, in particular, we



           7   had some productive conversations with the counsel for



           8   the environment on a variety of issues to deal with.



           9   Some occurred, and Mr. McGyver's concerns regarding



          10   habitat impacts any impacts on any of the species and the



          11   like.



          12            And in that discussion, we -- the applicant



          13   agreed to modify the east solar array, to remove it.



          14   Essentially remove it from a habitat that was of concern



          15   to the CFE.



          16            So that is what that is about.  And so that --



          17   so we're documenting that we have minimized the impact of



          18   that area.



          19            JUDGE TOREM:  And so that's not an agreement



          20   that's been signed or submitted to the council; is that



          21   correct?



          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct.  No agreement has



          23   been signed or submitted.  And as I, and Ms. Reyneveld



          24   can weigh in here, as I understand it, such a thing would



          25   have to be approved by the attorney general's office
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           1   anyway.



           2            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, that's correct.  That's



           3   a --



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  Go ahead, Ms. Reyneveld.  I want



           5   you to address also the timing of when that might be



           6   submitted.  And what, if any other -- from CFEs



           7   perspective, negotiations or inclusion of the other



           8   parties was done or is needed.



           9            So let me have you start again.



          10            MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  We had early settlement



          11   discussions, and they did particularly involve litigation



          12   to the east solar field.  So Mr. McMahan is correct.



          13            We -- I mean, I don't think anything has been



          14   decided other than I think those have been brought to our



          15   office and up the chain.  We've considered them but have



          16   not definitely arrived at any sort of settlement



          17   agreement.  Those discussions are on hold currently.



          18            And from my recollection, we did involve all of



          19   the parties in those initial discussions.  And the



          20   settlement proposal was shared with all of the parties,



          21   the most recent settlement proposal.  So this should not



          22   be a surprise pertaining to that discussion, if my



          23   recollection is correct.



          24            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



          25            MR. ARAMBURU:  This is Rick Aramburu.
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           1            JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on a second, Mr. Aramburu.



           2            If it's a settlement between just counsel for



           3   the environment and the applicant, Mr. McMahan, that



           4   would not preclude the other parties from either



           5   commenting on, objecting to, or continuing their own



           6   positions, but simply reflects the settlement between the



           7   applicant and the counsel for the environment; true?



           8            MR. MCMAHAN:  That is correct, Your Honor.



           9            MS. REYNEVELD:  Correct.



          10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Arauburu.



          11            MS. REYNEVELD:  I just wanted to clarify my



          12   statement, that I do believe we shared that proposal with



          13   all of the parties.  So I think that they should have



          14   received that.



          15            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Ms. Reyneveld, they are free



          16   to sign on to it as well but they don't have to; correct?



          17            MS. REYNEVELD:  That's correct.  At this point,



          18   no one has signed on to anything.



          19            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  If CFE and the



          20   applicant enter such an agreement, you would welcome the



          21   other parties to either sign on or indicate via the



          22   adjudication at some point, that they don't concur with



          23   whatever the stipulation might be.



          24            Ms. Reyneveld; is that correct?



          25            MS. REYNEVELD:  That's correct.  If and when we
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           1   do, yes.



           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Now, Mr. Aramburu.



           3            MR. ARAMBURU:  I am speaking for myself.  My



           4   inbox is filled with emails on this case, but I do not



           5   recall receiving any draft proposals or discussions of



           6   the settlement agreement from either the applicant or



           7   Ms. Reyneveld.  Perhaps I've missed one, but I have not



           8   seen such a document.



           9            MR. MCMAHAN:  (Multiple speakers.)



          10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, given Ms. Reyneveld's



          11   position and other things that should have her attention



          12   when we hang up today, would you care to provide any of



          13   that email traffic, forward it to Mr. Aramburu and copy



          14   Ms. Reyneveld so she'll know what's been sent and, of



          15   course, copy the other parties?



          16            MR. MCMAHAN:  Sorry, Your Honor.  We spoke over



          17   each other for a moment.



          18            So that's a request of the applicant to forward



          19   that to the other parties?



          20            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.  And I don't need to see



          21   it because it's not involving the council, but certainly



          22   if it's something that staff has been involved in, then



          23   copy the appropriate staff.  But I'm asking you to



          24   relieve Ms. Reyneveld of the obligation today on Thursday



          25   while she has other things to attend to.

�                                                                       63



           1            MR. MCMAHAN:  I would be happy to do that, Your



           2   Honor.



           3            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So, Mr. Aramburu,



           4   hopefully your inbox will get even fuller later today.



           5            MR. ARAMBURU:  Yes.  And thank you, Your Honor,



           6   for helping with that clarification.



           7            JUDGE TOREM:  No worries.



           8            On the agenda, then, I've got it looks like,



           9   five orders that I need to write and the motion today



          10   regarding Mr. Kobus's supplemental testimony that I have



          11   under advisement.  We may be able to deal with that on



          12   the record next week.  So I've got some homework to do.



          13            Let me go around the room, then we'll switch to



          14   Item No. 5 and we'll see what other miscellaneous or



          15   last-minute questions.



          16            I think we've brought up the settlement



          17   agreement and the other supplemental testimony that may



          18   be coming in from counsel for the environment.



          19            But let me ask the applicant, is there any other



          20   last-minute questions or concerns before we convene



          21   everything Monday morning at 8:30?



          22            MR. MCMAHAN:  No, Your Honor, as far as I'm



          23   aware of.



          24            For Monday, I intend to get cross-examination



          25   exhibits out to the parties for the land use section of
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           1   the hearing beginning Monday.  So they can expect to



           2   receive that from us tomorrow.



           3            JUDGE TOREM:  I'm sorry.  What was it you're



           4   going to circulate?



           5            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yeah.  Cross-examination exhibits



           6   for land use.



           7            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And if those are



           8   exhibits -- let me, again, since you mentioned that word,



           9   indicate to the parties.  I've consulted with



          10   Ms. Masengale about the screen-sharing issues.  And I



          11   know we had, in a technical shakeout on July 25th,



          12   watched Mr. Aramburu share with success his screen.



          13            I'm hoping that all of the parties will be able



          14   to do that themselves.  And if they are planning to have



          15   Ms. Masengale put anything up on the screen on their



          16   behalf, that those exhibits be identified by number and



          17   that she affirmatively respond to you that she will have



          18   that ready to share on your behalf.



          19            As it turns out, there have been some other



          20   duties that are going to distract Ms. Masengale from



          21   being on call during the hearing the entire dates.  So if



          22   we're going to make use of EFSEC staff, I just want



          23   parties to reach out in advance.  But otherwise, be



          24   prepared to share your own screens so that council



          25   members will be able to see things and will go on with
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           1   any of those exhibits.



           2            Mr. McMahan --



           3            MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.



           4            JUDGE TOREM:  -- does that work for the



           5   applicant?



           6            MR. MCMAHAN:  Yes, Your Honor.



           7            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers.



           8            MS. VOELCKERS:  If I could ask in the interest



           9   of clarity and also making sure that we're kind of all



          10   working off the same -- so I had planned to ask for



          11   Ms. Masengale's assistance.  So it would be helpful to



          12   know how far in advance she needs that information, with



          13   the understanding that if we don't provide that to her,



          14   we could still share the exhibits but we would need to do



          15   it ourself.



          16            Did she have a timing request on that?



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  I don't think Ms. Masengale is on



          18   the call today to speak for herself.  If she is, I'll ask



          19   her to speak up now, but I think she's out today.



          20            MS. GRANTHAM:  This is Andrea Grantham.  She is



          21   out today and tomorrow as well.



          22            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So, Ms. Voelckers, what I



          23   would suggest is that Monday morning at the housekeeping



          24   session or if you would like to send an email prior, just



          25   sometime early next week or depending on the date you're
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           1   going to ask for her assistance, that we identify which



           2   parts of the hearing session we might want to have her or



           3   another member of EFSEC staff assist.



           4            But certainly Yakama Nation will be permitted to



           5   display those exhibits that we need during



           6   cross-examination or for the supplemental testimony.  I



           7   believe it was a PowerPoint presentation to help walk



           8   through one of your witnesses' testimony.



           9            So we'll get it done one way or the other.  I



          10   just wanted to make sure -- I had made some promises for



          11   Ms. Masengale and overpromised what I think her schedule



          12   is going to allow her to deliver.



          13            If parties need assistance, we will find a way



          14   to get those exhibits up on the screens and in front of



          15   the council members so everybody can see them.  But I



          16   just need to know those things in advance.  Probably by



          17   at least 24 hours, but 48 would be preferred.  And that



          18   would be the same for any other party seeking assistance



          19   with displaying exhibits during the hearing.



          20            It's just really a troubleshooting matter to



          21   make sure we have it ready to go, so there's not any



          22   delay, given the tightness of the schedule that we have.



          23            Ms. Voelckers, does that address your concern?



          24            MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.  We will



          25   continue to do our best to get all of that in an orderly
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           1   fashion so we can share with Ms. Masengale.



           2            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And while I've got you



           3   talking, anything else that you wanted to bring up,



           4   outstanding issues before Monday morning?



           5            MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, your Honor.



           6            If you could humor me.  I just want to make sure



           7   that people can see me on camera.  I've been trying to



           8   work with our technical IT support staff.



           9            So if you or anyone else -- I just turned my



          10   camera on.  If you could let me know whether or not you



          11   can see me, that would be great.



          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Grantham, I'm not on camera



          13   today myself.  I'm calling in by phone.



          14            Is Ms. Voelckers' camera working, as far as you



          15   can tell?



          16            MS. GRANTHAM:  Yes, I can see Ms. Voelckers.



          17            MS. VOELCKERS:  Okay.  Thank you so much for



          18   humoring that.



          19            And I don't have anything else at this time.



          20            Thank you, Your Honor.



          21            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Mr. Harper, anything



          22   from the County?



          23            MR. HARPER:  No.



          24            Thank you, Your Honor.



          25            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu?
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           1            MR. ARAMBURU:  I don't see anything further for



           2   the day.  It sounds as though our housekeeping, if we



           3   want to call it that session for Monday, setting half an



           4   hour for that meeting may not be enough.  Perhaps we want



           5   to start early.



           6            JUDGE TOREM:  Well, I think we have a question



           7   as far as people's availability.  We should be able to



           8   bleed into the 9:00 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. adoption of



           9   uncalled land use witnesses.



          10            And what I might do, Mr. Aramburu, is let the



          11   parties -- or the council members know that they don't



          12   need to be on until 9:15 on Monday to take care of



          13   Ms. Wadsworth and Mr. Wiley, but we'll see where they



          14   are.  And if we need to go to 9:15 for housekeeping, we



          15   will.



          16            MR. ARAMBURU:  Thank you.



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Reyneveld.



          18            MS. REYNEVELD:  I guess my only question is, I



          19   assume there's no objection to having expert witnesses



          20   listen to the prior testimony of witnesses in their



          21   subject matter.



          22            But I wanted to ask the question as to what the



          23   protocol was pertaining to expert witnesses



          24   participating.



          25            JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Reyneveld, my understanding is
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           1   that there's no need to have them excluded.  They have



           2   all had a chance to read each other's direct testimony.



           3   They have all submitted their testimony.  So I'm not



           4   worried, like a normal trial, where credibility or people



           5   sticking to somebody else's story might come up.  All of



           6   the evidence that parties expect to come in has been



           7   disclosed.



           8            So I would have no concerns, unless a party can



           9   make a very rational objection, why any other person or



          10   expert testifying should be excluded from any other



          11   witness's testimony.



          12            So that's my initial take on things.  There may



          13   be an exception to that, but I think it will be incumbent



          14   upon a party to let the others know that they want



          15   someone excluded.  And then during housekeeping on the



          16   day of, not now, during housekeeping on the day of, let



          17   me know if there's any such concerns with people that



          18   should be excluded beyond the arrangements we've made for



          19   the confidential closed-record portions of the hearing.



          20            So, Ms. Reyneveld, I hope that addresses your



          21   concern.  Your witness, certainly, I don't think would



          22   have any -- they would be wanting to listen in to the



          23   other wildlife testimony, I'm sure, so they can respond



          24   to anything that they hear.  That would make sense to me.



          25            Does that answer your question?
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           1            MS. REYNEVELD:  It does.  Thank you, Your Honor.



           2   And that's correct.



           3            JUDGE TOREM:  Does anybody want to voice a



           4   general concern now as opposed to the instruction I'm



           5   giving you to let me know the day of witnesses, if



           6   there's anyone to be excluded?



           7            Mr. McMahan.



           8            MR. MCMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.



           9            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu.



          10            MR. ARAMBURU:  I don't have anything further,



          11   Your Honor.



          12            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And, Ms. Voelckers, any



          13   concerns with that?



          14            MS. VOELCKERS:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.



          15            JUDGE TOREM:  And, Mr. Harper.



          16            MR. HARPER:  No concerns.



          17            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I think we've gone around



          18   the room.



          19            Let me see if EFSEC staff has anything for me or



          20   the parties regarding technology issues or scheduling



          21   questions.



          22            Ms. Grantham, are you aware of anything I need



          23   to raise today that hasn't already been discussed?



          24            MS. GRANTHAM:  Not as of right now.



          25            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  You'll let me know Monday
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           1   morning as needed.



           2            Mr. Thompson, it's your chance to participate.



           3            Anything?



           4            MR. THOMPSON:  No.  Thank you.



           5            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then with that, it's



           6   3:39, almost 3:40 p.m.  We are adjourned.



           7                        (Prehearing adjourned at 3:39 p.m.)
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           1                     C E R T I F I C A T E



           2



           3             I, MICHELLE D. ELAM, Certified Court Reporter

               in the State of Washington, residing in Mayer, Arizona,

           4   reported;



           5             That the foregoing Prehearing Conference #5 was

               taken before me and completed on August 10, 2023, and

           6   thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

               Prehearing Conference #5 is a full, true and complete

           7   transcript;



           8

                         That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or

           9   counsel of any party to this action or relative or

               employee of any such attorney or counsel and that I am

          10   not financially interested in the said action or the

               outcome thereof;

          11

                         That I am herewith securely sealing the said

          12   Prehearing Conference #5 and promptly delivering the same

               to EFSEC.

          13

                         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

          14   signature on the 24th day of August, 2023.



          15

                                          ____________________________

          16                              Michelle D. Elam, RPR, CCR

                                          Certified Court Reporter 3335

          17



          18



          19



          20



          21



          22



          23



          24



          25

�

